# Telematics Solutions

Sustainable Development





International User Forum June 21, 1999 Munich, Germany

Pan-European Environmental Telematics User Forum June 21, 1999 Munich, Germany



Directorate-General Information Society

## **Telematics Solutions** for **Sustainable Development**

Organised within the **CAPE** supporting measure (Co-ordinated Action for Pan-European Transport and Environmental Implementation Support)



Martin Mudri, Werner Pillmann (eds.)





 Landeshauptstadt
 München
 Referat für Gesundheit und Umwelt



#### ORGANISED BY:

POLIS - Promotion of Operational Links with Integrated Services, Square de Meeûs 18, B – 1050 Brussels, BE Tel: +32 2 552 08 64, Fax: +32 2 552 08 89.email: polis@pophost.eunet.be

ISEP - International Society for Environmental Protection, Marxergasse 3/20, A-1030 Vienna, AT Tel: +43 1 715 28 28-0, Fax: +43 1 715 28 28-19, e-mail: isep@cedar.univie.ac.at

REC - The Regional Environmental Center for Central and Eastern Europe Ady Endre ut 9-11, H-2000, Szentendre, HU Tel: +36 26 311 199, Fax: +36 26 311 294, e-mail: rec-info@rec.org

Department for Health and Environment of the City of Munich Bayerstraße 28 A, D – 80335 Munich, DE Tel: +43 89 233 236 01, Fax +43 89 233 283 44, e-mail: rgu@umw.cube.net

#### FUNDED BY:

**THE TELEMATICS APPLICATIONS PROGRAMME (TAP)** and the INTERNATIONAL CO-**OPERATION PROGRAMME (INCO)**, 4<sup>th</sup> Framework Programme for RTD&D (1994-1998) of the European Union.

© 1999 by

International Society for Environmental Protection (ISEP),

No part of these Proceedings may be sold in any form or reproduced for sale without prior written permission of ISEP.

Published by: International Society for Environmental Protection (ISEP), Austria

Cover Design: Aquarelle 1998 by Adelheid PILLMANN (Univ. of Music and Dramatic Arts, Vienna)

#### **Table of Contents**

Opening	Session
---------	---------

Welcome Address to the Participants of the CAPE Environmental Telematics User Forum and Technical Workshop J. Lorenz, City of Munich, DE	7
Ecological aspects of the accession process in Central and Eastern Europe Janusz Radziejowski, Ministry of Environmental Protection, Natural Resources and Forestry;	9
"Moving from Telematics to IST applications and services for the Environment: Towards more coherent and integrated services for citizens" <i>W. Boch, European Commission, Directorate-General Information Society, BE</i>	13
Priority to the Environment: A long-standing Commitment of the European Community – The 5 <sup>th</sup> Environmental Action Programme 'Towards Sustainability' <i>W. Güssow, European Commission, Directorate-General Environment, BE</i>	21
CAPE: A Unique Approach to Pan-European Co-operation P. Mollet, Polis, BE and S. Rupprecht, Rupprecht Consult, DE	25
Environmental Information for the Public and for Experts	
Availability and Use of Environmental Information on the Web W. Pillmann, ISEP, AT	29
The European Environment Agency: A Reference Centre for Environmental Information S. Bjarnason, European Environmental Agency, DK	35
BLACK SEA WEB, a Demonstrator for Black Sea Marine Environmental Management Support System based on Telematics <i>P. Davis, MARIS, NL</i>	39
City Information, A Digital Environmental Information System for the public <i>M. Spring, City of Munich, DE</i>	45
Emergency Management and Disaster Warning	
Use of Telematics for Emergency and Disaster Management M. Hadrobolec, K. Zirm,	49
TELEmatics Assisted Handling of FLood Emergencies in URban Areas (TELEFLEUR) A. Koussis, K. Lagouvardos	53
DEDICS a TeleGeoProcessing and Intelligent Software Agents System for Natural Hazards Prevention and Fighting F. Guarnieri, A. Jaber., J.L. Wybo, ARMINES / Ecole des Mines de Paris Pôle Cindyniques, FR	57
Telematics Applications of the Danube Accident Emergency Warning System G. Pintér, VITUKI, HU	63

#### Environmental Monitoring and Forecasting on Air and Water Pollution

Good Practice in Air and Water Management. Lessons for the Use of Telematics in the Sustainable Management of Environmental Resources <i>F. Price, Environmental Protection Services, UK</i>	67
Joint Air Monitoring System in the Black Triangle Region, the First International Air Monitoring in CEE J. Novak, Czech Hydrometeorological Institute, CZ	73
Lessons from the Application of Telematics in Water Resources Management in Portugal J.R. da Costa, Chiron, Sistemas de Informação, PT	77
Status and Structure of Automatic Ambient Air Pollution Monitoring Network: Develop- ment Strategy in Lithuania K. Kvietkus, Environmental Protection Ministry, LT	87
Waste Management and Soil Pollution	
General Trends and Challenges for Waste Management in Europe C.G. Suarez, Environmental Transport Planning, SP	95
Internet Information Platform for the Construction Industry M. Car, Constructing-Recycling-Platform, AT	103
GIS Integrated Contaminated Sites Management W. Flacke, ESRI. DE	107
Telematics for Waste Management in the Rhône-Alpes Region P. Flori, Rhône-Alpes Regional Council, FR	111
Panel Discussion "Telematics Tools in the Environment Sector: The Real Contribution to Sustainable Development	113

#### Participants List

125

Pan-European Environmental Telematics User Forum



Landeshauptstadt München Referat für Gesundheit und Umwelt



## **Telematics Solutions for Sustainable Development**

Monday, June 21, 1999		
9:00	Registration	
	Room I	
	Chaired by: Günter Wegrampf, Department for Health and Environment of the City of Munich, DE	
9:15	Welcome and Introduction Joachim Lorenz, Superintendent and Director of Health and Environment, City of Munich, DE	
9:30	<b>EU - Accession Process-Impact on CEE Environment</b> Janusz Radziejowski Undersecretary of State, Ministry of Environmental Protection, Natural Resources and Forestry, PL	
9:45	<b>Moving from Telematics to IST Applications for the Environment</b> Wolfgang Boch, DG Information Society, Head of Unit - Applications for the Environment, European Commission	
10:00	Priority to the Environment: A Long-standing Commitment of the European Community – The 5 <sup>th</sup> Environmental Action Programme 'Towards Sustainability' Wolfgang Güssow, DG XI, Unit, Urban Environment, Noise and Air Quality, European Commission	
10.15	<b>CAPE: A Unique Approach to Pan-European Co-operation</b> Petra Mollet, POLIS Networks, BE and Siegfried Rupprecht, RC, DE; CAPE Project Coordinators	
10.30	Press Conference at the City Hall of Munich	
	Room I Room II	
11:00	Environmental Information for the Public and for Experts	Emergency Management and Disaster Warning
	Chaired by: <b>Paul Csagoly</b> , The Regional Environmental Center for Central and Eastern Europe, HU	Chaired by: <b>Dobri Dimitrov</b> , National Institute of Meteorology & Hydrology, BG
	Introduction by: <b>Werner Pillmann</b> , Int. Society for Environmental Protection, AT - <b>Availability and Use of Environmental In-</b> formation on the Web	Introduction by: <b>Konrad Zirm</b> , Austrian Federal Environment Agency, AT - <b>Use of Telematics</b> for Emergency and Disaster Management
	<b>EEA: A Reference Centre for Environmental</b> <b>Information</b> - S. Bjarnason, European Environmental Agency, DK	Telematics Assisted Handling of Flood Emergencies in Urban Areas - K. Lagouvados, University of Athens, GR
		DEDICS a TalaGaoBrocossing and Intelligent
	Demonstrator for Black Sea Marine Envi- ronmental Management Support System - P. Davis, Marine Information Service, NL	DEDICS a TeleGeoProcessing and Intelligent Software Agents System for Natural Hazards Prevention and Fighting - F. Guarnieri, Ecole des Mines de Paris, FR
	ronmental Management Support System -	Software Agents System for Natural Hazards Prevention and Fighting - F. Guarnieri, Ecole
12:30	ronmental Management Support System - P. Davis, Marine Information Service, NL City Information, A Digital Environmental Information System for the public -	Software Agents System for Natural Hazards Prevention and Fighting - F. Guarnieri, Ecole des Mines de Paris, FR Early Warning System in the Danube Basin:

Agenda Monday, June 21, 1999 Pan-European Environmental Telematics User Forum



Landeshauptstadt München Referat für Gesundheit und Umwelt



## **Telematics Solutions for Sustainable Development**

	Room I	Room II	
14:00	Environmental Monitoring and Forecasting on Air and Water Pollution	Waste Management and Soil Pollution	
	Chaired by: <b>Ivica Ružić</b> , Ruđer Bošković Institute for Marine and Environmental Re- search, HR	Chaired by: <b>Lorenz Hilty</b> , University of Applied Sciences North-western Switzerland, CH	
	Introduction by: <b>Frank Price</b> , Corporate Infor- mation Services, Environment Agency, UK - <i>Lessons for The Use of Telematics in the</i> <i>Sustainable Management of Environmental</i> <i>Resources</i>	Introduction by: <b>Carlos Garcia Suarez</b> , Environment & Transport Planning, ES - <b>Gen- eral Trends and Challenges for Waste</b> <b>Management in Europe</b>	
	Joint Air Monitoring System within the Black Triangle Region - J. Novak, Czech Hydrometeorological Institute, CZ	Recycling Börse Bau - an Internet Information Platform for Construction Industry - M. Car, Österreichische Recycling-Börse Bau, AT	
	Lessons from the application of telematics in water resources management in Portugal - J.R. da Costa, University of Lisbon, PT	COSIMA, A GIS Integrated Contaminated Sites Management - W. Flacke, ESRI Ltd. DE	
	Status and Structure of Automatic Ambient Air Pollution Monitoring Network: Develop- ment Strategy in Vilnius and Lithuania - K. Kvietkus, Ministry of Environment, LT	<b>SINDRA, Telematics for waste management in</b> <b>Rhône-Alpes -</b> P. Flori, Conseil Régional Rhône- Alpes, Direction de l'Environnement et de l'Energie, FR	
15:30	Coffee Break		
	Room I		
16.00	Panel Discussion: Telematics Tools in the Environment Sector: The Real Contribution to Sustainable Development		
	Conclusion: Results of each session presented by the rapporteurs		
	Violeta Kauneliene, Environmental Joachim Lorenz, City of Munich, DI	of Lisbon; PT I, UK inistry for State Development and Env. Affairs, DE Center for Administration and Technology, LT	
18.00	End of the User Forum		
<u>.</u>	1		

#### Agenda Monday, June 21, 1999



Landeshauptstadt München Referat für Gesundheit und Umwelt

#### Welcome Address to the Participants of the CAPE Environmental Telematics User Forum and Technical Workshop

Joachim Lorenz, Head of Health and Environment Department

June 21, 1999 Munich

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen,

on behalf of the City of Munich I would like to welcome you to the First European Environmental Telematics User Forum.

In consideration of the European elections 10 days ago it seems to be proven that the interest in European themes is still at the beginning. This should be regarded as an encouragement to share as many experiences and ideas in the European context as possible. I think environmental telematics, supported by the DG XIII, is one important part of this European exchange as many countries are facing problems in environment and transport. So cooperation and mutual exchange may explain the importance and advantage of common research and actions.

The City of Munich is proud to be a partner in the research and implementation of environment and traffic and we feel honoured to host the CAPE-Conference as a highly qualified auditorium for exchange and discussion of new perspectives in telematic solutions. Dear Ladies and Gentlemen, in the context of this conference and in your position as important decisionmakers and telematic-experts from Central- and Eastern European countries, here you have an excellent opportunity to build a foundation for the prospective cooperation of municipal departments on the European level.

Facing more imminent and dominating problems like unemployment, environmental problems are pushed in the background of the political scene. Nevertheless I am convinced that we still have to use all our knowledge and intellectual resources to aim sustainable solutions for all the matters of environmental protection. Therefore the intelligent implementation of telematics forms an important part. In my opinion telematic applications can and will be distributing successively and successfully to a new understanding of environment. Knowledge and data will be registered, evaluated and provided much faster and more efficient than today. Everyone, either it is a local, national or international decisionmaker, citizen, expert or student, will gain from the immense datapool of environment information. Early warning systems will be more precise and more prospective.

At the same time responsibility is growing for all those that provide telematic solutions or deal with them. Telematic should not evoke the impression to offer the solution of the environmental problem itself. But, and this is a fact I am dedicated to, it will contribute increasing awareness and understanding of environmental problems.

Hopefully Munich offers an ideal atmosphere for your forum. Although your timetables are dense until the early afternoon, I would like to invite you to our evening reception at the city hall of Munich and sent you warm greetings of our Lord Mayor Mr. Ude. Tonight you surely will have the opportunity to meet traditional and hospital Munich.

I wish your conference every success, a fruitful experience exchange and perspective solutions. Furthermore I wish you a pleasant stay and the opportunity to visit the beauties of Munich.

fourtien Cours

Joachim Lorenz City of Munich

#### Ecological aspects of the accession process in Central and Eastern Europe

Janusz Radziejowski

Undersecretary of State, Ministry of Environmental Protection, Natural Resources and Forestry; Member of Polish Negotiation Group on Environmental Protection

#### 1 Introduction

The European Union's decisions on the East enlargement meant the beginning of the negotiation process with Central and Eastern European Countries. These countries, ten years ago, represented the part of the world predominated by centrally planned economy and democracy there was replaced by so-called "people's democracy" with limited citizens' rights and power exercised by only one political party. After the memorable events of 1989, started by Round Table talks and having their end in the fall of the Berlin Wall and the Velvet Revolution in Czech Republic, the Central European Countries began their way towards normality. To define the countries, which started difficult transformation of their economies and political systems, the new concept appeared in political terminology - the countries with economy in transition. The above mentioned processes were attentively observed by EU Member States. To assist democratic and economic transformations a wide range of assistance programs were created (PHARE), including experts exchange and economic programmes. Financial support was also given by individual countries.

New democracies were embraced by the political and economic assistance in the shape of Europe Agreements, which provided for political dialogue, economic integration and cultural cooperation. This act was signed with Poland and Hungary in 1991, with Czech Republic, Slovakia, Rumania and Bulgaria in 1993, and with Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania in 1995. The Europe Agreements became the fundamental document determining the tendencies in Central European Countries preparations for Union membership. The Association Committee - a new political body - was also created to hold regular meetings between associated countries and European Union.

In 1993, during the meeting in Copenhagen, the European Council announced the criteria, which should be met by a country to apply for Union membership. The criteria provide for preserving democratic rules, having efficient economy and readiness to accept all member's obligations.

The progress achieved by the Central European Countries in fulfilment of the criteria allowed EU to begin negotiations with the most advanced countries: Czech Republic, Estonia, Poland, Slovenia and Hungary in 1998 (Cyprus also joined that group). The rest of the countries are expected to join the first group soon.

At present, the negotiations are at the first phase of screening in the context of degree of compliance between the candidate countries and EU legislation. It is worth noting that in some spheres the compatibility of legislation was so high that negotiations in those fields were regarded completed.

#### 2 Environmental protection problems in the accession countries.

Environmental protection is one of the most difficult negotiation problems between EU and associated countries. It is due to those countries' history. In the planned economy, where heavy industry dominated, overuse of energy and raw materials and great quantities of waste were not taken into account. The general public opinion about the citizens needs in environmental sphere was also not taken into consideration. What is more, in the 1970s and 1980s, the environmental organisations' activities were impeded and environmental information was made secret. As a result, the Central and Eastern European Countries started their transformation processes with the burden of many ecological problems like serious air and water pollution, waste heaps and extremely low environmental consciousness level in the society. Although, in some countries legislation based on the best international examples existed, its efficiency was low because of the authorities policy which, in some cases, allowed transgressing the environmental law.

So the Central and Eastern European countries were entering the period of changes with serious environmental troubles. What must be admit is that their environmental situation was in some cases advantageous. For example, they had close international contacts in the environmental protection field, particularly related with United Nations initiatives, qualified experts and relatively extensive, not degraded areas, such as rural areas, forests and other areas of exceptionally precious natural features. This situation was owed to concentration of industry in industrial centres and kind of retardation in applying agricultural machinery.

From the beginning of the transformation, environmental protection issues became one of the priorities in the new democracies' activities. What contributed to that was the atmosphere connected with great ecological event in those days – preparations to the Rio de Janeiro Conference and circumstances related.

Another important factor stimulating environmental protection development in discussed countries, was the market reform. It caused the collapse of industry which was particularly harmful for the natural environment and additionally turned out to be completely unsuitable to meet market economy challenges, because of excess use of material raw and energy and high environmental costs. The rule was that the countries, where economic reforms were quickly adopted, achieved the best environmental effects. It was confirmed by the fact of those countries entering OECD.

In the 1990s the discussed countries made a significant progress in the field of improving the quality of environment and, in general, environmental management. We should remember that the countries which signed the Europe Agreements started transposition of the Union's law into their legal systems.

#### **3** The state and the scope of accession negotiations

The official accession negotiations, which began last year in March, are the great challenge for the Central and Eastern European countries, especially in the sphere of environmental protection. That sphere is one of the most important priorities in the Union's policy. The united Europe aims, on the one hand, to create common, high environmental standards and, on the other hand, to set rules of the single European market, based on environmental criteria. The latter rule means accepting not only common standards, but also common administrative procedures to give goods producers and services suppliers same chance on the market, within European Union.

What must be stressed here is that in European Commission's and European Parliament's opinion environmental protection is one of the priorities in European Community activities. Environmental protection is to become the main premise in Europe's social and economic development. European institutions expect this kind of attitude from the candidate countries' governments.

The first technical phase of negotiations with the Union on environmental protection, so-called screening, took place in January and February this year. It was review of legal systems in the sphere of environmental protection valid in the six candidate countries (Poland, Czech Republic, Hungary, Slovenia, Estonia and Cyprus) in the context of their compliance with the Union's law and identification the problems which may appear during adjusting environmental law to the Union's legislation. The other problem discussed during screening was practical implementation of European legislation into national systems. Particularly, it concerned the question of setting administrative structures and procedures and realisation of investments necessary to ensure that in the future environmental standards will be consistent with Union's legal demands.

At present the position paper on environmental protection is being prepared. It will contain official declarations on adopting and implementing Union legislation, terms of realisation and possible reuests for transitional periods. Those documents are expected to be presented in Brussels in July or September, during the Finnish UE presidency.

Screening covered 170 legal acts which must be adopted on the whole. What is more, where necessary, the conditions to start indispensable administrative procedures must be created at the moment the candidate countries enter the Community.

Negotiations in the field of environmental protection will mainly provide for transitional periods in investing in environmental facilities or, in some cases, postponing entering into force certain standards and procedures.

Environmental screening covered the following groups of issues:

- horizontal legislation, including environmental impact assessment, access to environmental information, participating in European conventions and agencies,
- nature protection,
- water quality problems, including such considerations like municipal sewage, pollution from agricultural sources, pollution of groundwater, quality of drinking water, problems of bathing water,
- problems of industrial pollution, including integrated pollution prevention and control, air pollution from industrial and combustion plants, preventing environmental hazards, problems of ecological audits and eco-labelling,
- problems of air pollution covering general rules of air protection with daughter directives including problems like liquid fuels quality and emissions from building machinery,
- reducing noise from vehicles and machinery,
- problems of chemicals and genetically modified organisms, including control of the risks substances, limiting using of substances that deplete the ozone layer and also problems of experiments on animals,
- problems of waste management, including hazardous waste, problems of incineration of waste, control of waste shipments, problems of management of packaging waste and batteries and accumulators waste,
- nuclear safety problems and protection against radiation, including medical radiation problems.

As the preliminary screening results show, the most difficult problems which are likely to appear during law adapting process will be:

- implementation of the EU directive on integrated pollution preventing and control (IPPC), because it requires starting new administrative procedures and introducing the institution of Best Available Technology (BAT) into national legislation;
- implementation of the directive on preventing municipal sewage, which requires building highly efficient sewage treatment plants in every population equivalents inhibited by over 2000 citizens (estimated costs of this directive will be from over ten to over twenty billion EURO),
- waste management problem the most important problem here is municipal waste, including efficient purchase and transforming of industrial waste and waste management

Other undoubtedly difficult problems are chemical substances control (which, among others, will need an adequate office) and genetically modified organisms control. Each country has its own specific problems which need to be solved. All the solutions will surely take time and will require financial support.

The above-presented main problems connected with our EU accession set certain economical challenges. The last ten years period created lots of firms capable to provide the investors with attractive offer of environmental machinery and building and constructional services.

Ecological standards of various goods produced by Polish industry improved much. The above prompts me to presume that in the future our market will be entered by local enterprises, competitive with foreign firms' offer. These are quite important facts because the European Union membership will force us to accelerate investments with environmental protection facilities.

It should be mentioned here that EU established special fund called ISPA for the period 2000-2006 to support environmental investments in accession countries. About 500 (?) million EURO is to be allocated for demands of environmental protection.

Cooperation with society and non-governmental organisations representing experts and entrepreneurs is the other essential issue, apart from political and economical questions. Thanks to that kind of contacts it is possible to affect the development of society's environmental consciousness and to profit from those groups experiences in forming national strategies in the European integration field.

To rationalise these processes it is necessary to set suitable mechanisms of exchanging information and experiences between interests groups in various European countries. The already existing mechanisms of international information exchange may be successfully used for that purpose. That sort of mechanisms comprise systems operating under the auspices of UN Organisation, for example Infoterra system operating by UNEP, concerning exchanging information about diverse sources of information. The initiative which is really interesting is Clearing House Mechanism for Convention on Biological Diversity. It operates by the Secretariat of Biological Diversity Convention and concerns the questions of widely understood protection of biological resources in individual countries and in the whole world. That system allows free access to information localised in any databases and Internet pages world-wide.

Using these systems and equipping them with special services related to European integration would certainly contribute to accelerate the accession process.

#### "Moving from Telematics to IST Applications and Services for the Environment: Towards More Coherent and Integrated Services for Citizens"

Wolfgang Bochl, European Commission, Directorate-General Information Society

Paper to be presented at the CAPE<sup>1</sup> User Forum and Workshop, 21-22 June 1999, Munich, *Germany* 

#### ABSTRACT

The progressive linkage between Information Society Technologies [IST] (convergent information and telecommunication, and media technologies) and all social life aspects observed over the last decade has come more and more visible and reality in our day-to-day life. Due to the pervasive nature of Information Society Technologies and extreme short product lifecycles coupled with the high degree of innovation of products and services, this industrial sector presents one of the key drivers for economic growth and sustainability in Europe.

IST applications and services related to environment protection will play a crucial role to the contribution of environmental policy implementation, and equally, to inform Europe's citizens, industry and business about the state of the environment allowing them for better informed decisions and feedback to policy makers. The relevance and importance of this new service sector has been well reflected in the recently launched IST programme (1999-2002).

This presentation will outline the advantages of the new integrated approach of the Information Society Technologies (IST) programme in response to the most prevailing environmental issues in Europe. The strategy should be seen in the context of the wider 'IST' objective of supporting a "Sustainable Information Society".

#### The Challenges

The 4<sup>th</sup> FP (1994-1998) challenges of the Environment Exploratory action of the Telematics Applications Programme were primarily "to demonstrate the potential and the usefulness of telematics solution for improved environmental protection". About 30 research, technological development and demonstration projects have been launched over the last three/four years which largely underpinned the essential role IST can play in better environmental management.

I European Commission, Directorate-General Information Society, Systems and Services for the Citizen, Markets, Technologies – Innovation and Exploitation of Research, 29. Avenue de Beaulieu, B – 1049 Brussels, BE <sup>1</sup> CAPE: An accompanying measures project funded by the Telematics Applications Programme and the International Co-operation Programme, within the 4<sup>th</sup> FP (1994-1998)

The main challenges stipulated for the 5<sup>th</sup> FP are described by the following three main criteria for selecting the themes and objectives of community activities:

- Community "value-added" and subsidiarity principle (need to establish a "critical mass in human and financial terms; addressing problems arising at Community level; significant contributions to the implementation of Community policies)
- □ *Support to social objectives* (improve the employment situation; promote the quality of life and health; preserve the environment)
- Support economic development and scientific and technological prospects (areas which are expanding and create good growth prospects; areas in which Community businesses can and must become more competitive; areas in which prospects of significant scientific and technological progress are opening up)

From the Information Society Technologies Programme point of view and in regard to environmental applications and services the new challenges can be summarised as follows:

(i) to support the creation of a sustainable European Environmental Information Service Market

- *moving from a "systems oriented" to a "service oriented" approach.* More and more services provided previously by public administrations and authorities are being outsourced to private companies who are capable to provide better cost-efficient services.
- *securing appropriate participation of user communities* (i.e. local, regional authorities, civil protection agencies, NGO's etc...) at the level of the projects and user groups
- *building on past results and securing a critical mass of funds and efforts* for fostering a significant contribution to standardisation, e.g. for European and global environmental data exchange, for generic environmental emergency management tools

(ii) focussing on trans-boundary environmental issues with  $CEE^2$  countries. This dimension relates to both, the sheer scale of past environmental liabilities and the gap in the level of protection in the CEE countries compared with the situation in the EU. Full compliance with the "environmental acquis" will probably only be obtained in a medium to long term period. Partnerships in EU RTD initiatives between Candidate Countries and EU Member States are providing possibilities for assistance to candidate countries in the transfer of know-how and for support in their pre-accession strategies.

(iii) *integrating and taking on board new emerging environmental policies* which form or will form part of the different EU policies such as the Agenda 21, the new urban agenda, the noise, air, water and civil protection policies,

IST environmental information services to be developed under the 5<sup>th</sup> Framework Programme should fulfil the following criteria:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Central and Eastern Europe

- improve environmental systems/service quality (efficiency, robustness and reliability as a second generation tools)
- provide for accurate, timely, and reliable information to be delivered to citizens and decision makers
- support a systematic technology transfer and dissemination of know-how in the relevant fields and places (initiatives, such as DETERMINE and CAPE are pioneers in environmental telematics technology transfer)

#### <u>Results of the "Environment Telematics" exploratory action (1994-1998)</u>

In the field of Community research, a first co-ordinated environment telematics action has been implemented as part of the Telematics Applications Programme. About 30 projects related to the environment are being or have already been carried out. It is at the heart of this CAPE Conference to show and demonstrate the results achieved and lessons learnt through the demonstration and validation of innovative approaches in environmental management.

For details on projects and contact points, see the web site: http://www2.echo.lu/telematics/environ/environment.html

#### The new IST Environment research activities (1998-2002, research priorities IST-EN 1999

The IST Programme offers increased opportunities for co-operation on common environmental issues both at urban and regional, and trans-national level in domains, such as: air quality, water quality, and waste management, nature protection. The IST programme foresees a rolling workplan with annual updates.

In line with the specific programme, the research priorities for the call(s) in 1999<sup>3</sup> include: systems for intelligent environmental monitoring and management, environment risk and emergency management, including support systems for sustainable development and for ecological and resource efficiency. Probably in subsequent calls the IST environment action will promote research in environmental modelling, simulation and forecasting and technologies for humanitarian de-mining.

Further information available at: http://www.cordis.lu/ist

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> First IST call launched 19 March 1999, Closing date 16 June 1999

#### **Conclusions**

The IST environment action will play a significant role in addressing a number of issues identified in the FP4 exploratory action. Particular issues of concern are the gaps identified

- (i) between environment and data,
- (ii) between policy/administration and citizen needs,
- (iii) between users and environment R&D results, and
- (iv) between the market and environment & ICT research results.

The IST programme aims at ensuring that environmental application and services will become a new flourishing service market. Thus, it will contribute towards standardisation, a more coherent approach in environmental management, and towards better linking the various existing and emerging environmental policies.

Efficient means to ensuring transferability of research results and to strengthening and enlarging the network of users (NGOS, privates, local, regional ...) are to become intrinsic features, built–in in the environment action and the IST programme as a whole.

It is part of the CAPE User Forum and workshop to address these requirements and objectives in a number of ways and to provide essential feedback to both participants and programme and project managers.



















The IST Programme - Budget b	oreakdown
Four Key Actions	
1. Systems and services for the citizen	646 M€
2. New methods of work and electronic commerce	547 M€
3. Multimedia content and tools	564 M€
4. Essential technologies and infrastructures	1363 M€
• Future and emerging technologies	319 M€
Support for research infrastructures	161 M€
• TOTAL : ECU 3600 million	
DGXIII: Information Society: Telecommunications, Markets, Technologies - Innovation and Exploit	ation of Research

#### TELEMATICS SOLUTIONS FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT















EUROPEAN COMMISSION DIRECTORATE-GENERAL XI ENVIRONMENT, NUCLEAR SAFETY AND CIVIL PROTECTION Directorate D - Environment quality and natural resources XI.D.3 - Air quality, urban environment, noise, transport

> Brussels, 21 June1999 Dr. Wolfgang Güssow<sup>1</sup>

#### Priority to the Environment: A long-standing Commitment of the European Community – The 5<sup>th</sup> Environmental Action Programme 'Towards Sustainability' at the First Pan-European Environmental Telematics User Forum in Munich on 21/22 June 1999

#### Address

It's my pleasure to speak to you on commitment and strategies for Sustainable Development of the European Union and - like the other speakers in this session- setting a context for the discussions over the next 2 days.

**1.** I would like to start by outlining the EU's commitment to sustainable development. This is set out in the Treaty on the European Union. The new Treaty of Amsterdam, agreed in June 1997 and finally put into force on 1 May 1999 makes in Article 6 'sustainable development' an explicit objective of the EU, replacing the wording in the Maastricht Treaty which spoke about 'sustainable growth respecting the environment'.

In addition, the Treaty contains other provisions that make environmental policy stronger:

- It strengthens the requirement to take account of the environment in defining and implementing all EU policies. A *Communication on Integration* adopted by the Commission last year sets out some of the steps needed to make sure this happens.
- The new Treaty makes it easier for individual countries to take environmental measures that are stricter then the ones set by the EU, though there are mechanisms to make sure that these do not compromise the Single Market.
- It gives more powers to the European Parliament, which tends to be a bit greener than the Council of Ministers, though on some important things like tax reform it still has only a non-binding consultative role, which is one of the many reasons why for instance an EU carbon tax is such a difficult thing to set up.

Two other key points about the Treaty:

Since **health** is a theme of the conference and the Superintendent and Director of the Department 'Health and Environment' of the city of Munich, Mr. Joachim Lorenz, is hosting the conference– I want to mention that the protection of human health now has to be taken into account in defining and implementing all Community policies and activities. (Art. 152 new)

Moreover there is an intention to **involve local and regional authorities** more closely in EU processes. The new Treaty gives a stronger role to the Committee of the Regions, where local government views are formally represented; even closer links are being forged – for example by involving cities in

Email: wolfgang.gussow@.cec.be

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Rue de la Loi 200, B-1049 Bruxelles/Wetstraat 200, B-1049 Brussels - Belgium - Office: Boulevard du Triomphe 174.

Telephone: direct line (+32-2)295 37 08, switchboard 299.11.11. Fax: 296 95 54.

Telex: COMEU B 21877. Telegraphic address: COMEUR Brussels.

the development of new legislation. This is happening at the moment in the case of new legislation for environmental noise, a co-operation organised through the Eurocities network.

In practice, the new Treaty sets the framework for policy development and legislative proposals that the Commission is making now, so we can expect to see sustainable development becoming an ever more important theme.

#### 2. So much for the commitments - what about the strategy and actions for meeting them?

The EU's main statement of policy and action for sustainability is laid down in the 5<sup>th</sup> Environmental Action Programme. This was prepared in parallel with Agenda 21 and was put into effect on 1 February 1993. It is the formal framework for meeting the commitments made at the Rio Earth Summit. Incidentally, all the EU Member States and the Commission signed up to Agenda 21. However implementation of Agenda 21 as well as of many of the elements of the 5<sup>th</sup> Action Programme depends strongly on regional and local governments. This is why the Commission places such an emphasis on Local Agenda 21.

As well as providing the framework of environmental rules and regulations, one of the key things the  $5^{\text{th}}$  Action Programme does is to set out other sorts of instruments which can help to create the right market conditions for sustainable development and to support local authorities and other actors —like businesses – as they try to be greener.

Well, over the last 3 or 4 years there has been a certain amount of progress. We have the latest state of the environment report from the European Environment Agency assessing the state of the environment at the pan-European level, and the 5<sup>th</sup> Action Programme has itself been reviewed. After a long process of debate and conciliation we now have an up to date document setting out the European Union's priorities for the next stage of the 5<sup>th</sup> Action Programme taking us beyond the year 2000. The **Review of the 5 EAP**, as it is called, jointly taken by the European Parliament and the European Council, was adopted on 20 July and came into effect on 24 September 1998.

#### What has the EU decided upon?

2.1. The Review of the 5 EAP focuses its environmental efforts on five 'Priority Areas':

**2.2.1** The first priority area: Actions for integration of environmental requirements into other policies, predominantly into the Programme's five target sectors: agriculture, transport, energy, industry and tourism.

In relation to **Agriculture** the main priority objectives for integration are

- Better integration of market development, rural development and environmental policies with a view to securing sustainable agriculture esp. within the framework of the Agenda 2000 reform
- Regular reporting and the elaboration of comparable data on the pressure on the the environment, including biodiversitiy and agricultural practices such as the use of fertiliser and pesticides
- Promotion of integrated farm technologies, organic agriculture, extensive production methods to respect biodiversity and the
- Development of an integrated strategy to reduce the risk to health and to the environment from the use of plant protection products, pesticides etc.

In relation to Transport priority objectives of the Community are

- To tighten provisions on emissions and noise from vehicles and aircraft, actions to reduce CO<sub>2</sub> and to strengthen provisions on vehicle inspection and maintenance
- To give greater attention to the transport demand side e.g. through better internalisation of external costs, promotion of integrated transport policy, improvements in environmental safety aspects and promoting demand management measures such as the use of telematics

• To reduce the imbalances between the different transport modes and encouraging the more environmentally friendly modes of transport e.g. through facilitating transport intermodality and modal shift and by encouraging public/collective transport

As regards Energy priority objectives are

- Promotion of energy efficiency, support of energy-saving technologies and practices, including renewable energy sources and combined heat –power. Furthermore the Community will
- Encourage the implementation of energy demand side management measures, energy conservation measures and the internalisation of external costs and benefits through economic and other instruments

In relation to Industry priority objectives are

- Promotion of the ongoing development of eco-management schemes by the industrial sector, further promotion of environmental awareness focussing particularly on small and medium sized industries (SMEs)
- Development of a framework for an integrated life-cycle oriented product policy ('cradle to grave approach'), promotion of cleaner products
- Enforcement of steps to reduce industrial emissions and pollution by ensuring improved integration of the 'polluter pays principle' into Community legislation
- Implementation of the concept of eco-efficiency and the strengthening partnerships between governments and industry (e.g. 'Umwelt-Pakts' as they have been far developed especially in Bavaria))

As regards **Tourism** priority objectives predominantly aim

- at the exchange of information on the impact on the environment of tourism practices
- Support of awareness rising campaigns and last not least
- The implementation of innovative good practices in the field of sustainable tourism development

**2.1.2** The **second new priority** is to **broaden the range of EU instruments**. More is going to be done on market-based tools like green accounting, and some of the existing market tools are being extended. For example, the Eco-label Regulation is going to apply to services as well as products, and the EMAS Regulation (Environmental Management and Audit Schemes) is being revised at the moment to apply to all kinds of organisations, including municipalities, building on successful experimental schemes in some countries. These changes should make it easier for local authorities to develop greener purchasing and procurement policies.

Stronger emphasis will be put on the assessment of the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environment through Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA); a Directive is on the way and might be adopted by the Environment Council at the end of this year under the Finnish Presidency.

**2.1.3** A **third new priority** is **better implementation and enforcement of legislation**, which includes giving citizens more opportunities to use the courts to deal with complaints, for example about pollution incidents.

**2.1.4** The **fourth priority** is **improving communication**, **education and training** on environmental policy as a means of stimulating awareness of sustainable development issues and promoting behavioural changes towards more sustainable consumption and production patterns. Better information is regarded as an indispensable prerequisite for enhanced awareness.

**2.1.5** And **last but not least**, there is a promise to reinforce the EU's role in international sustainability efforts (Convention on Climate Change, Convention on Bio-Diversity, Kyoto Protocol and others), also in relation to the accession countries of Central and Eastern Europe, e.g. Measures focussing on capacity building and technical assistance under the TACIS Programme for the New Independent States.

2.2 Among the many other commitments in the Review of the 5<sup>th</sup> Action Programme there are two more of special relevance to this conference:

- Improving the basis for environmental policy
- Promotion of local and regional initiatives

2.2.1 As regards the **improved basis for environmental decisions** the Community will assure that its environmental policy is based on reliable and comparable data, statistics and indicators. The European Environment Agency is explicitly mentioned to play a key role in monitoring and reporting on the state of the environment. Particular attention will be given to

- Identify and fill the gaps in current statistical data on the environment
- Promote the development of environmental indicators on all relevant policy issues and indicators for sustainable development as benchmark indicators to measure progress towards sustainable development and to provide a basis for the setting of objectives and operational targets (Report on TERM-indicators to be endorsed at the Helsinki Summit in Dec. 1999)
- Improve co-ordination in the development and secure mutual feedback between scientific research, development policies and environmental policy

2.2.2 As regards the **promotion of local and regional initiatives** these activities are fundamental for the achievement of sustainable development as outlined in the beginning. Local and regional authorities are the most important partners to implement measures towards sustainable development. The Community therefore will pay particular attention

- To develop a comprehensive approach to urban issues with special emphasis on the assistance required to support actions by local authorities to implement the revised 5<sup>th</sup> Action Programme and Local Agenda 21 activities
- To promote the exchange of experience between local authorities in relation to sustainable transport initiatives and
- To promote the potential of spatial planning as an instrument to facilitate sustainable development taking forward the objectives of the European Spatial Development Perspective as a basis for creating consensus among policy makers.

**3.** The promotion of local and regional initiatives was endorsed by the Commission Communication on Sustainable Urban Development: European Union Framework for Action (COM(1998)605 final), which was adopted on 23 October 1998 and officially launched to the public at the European Urban Forum on 26/27 November 1998 in Vienna. This document contains a list of 24 detailed actions to implement 'Sustainable Development' in urban areas where 80% of the European population live. At the same time the Urban Communication serves as a major step towards implementing the strategic goals of the revised 5 EAP, providing its spatial dimension. Both documents are cornerstones to strengthen and restore the role of Europe's cities as places of environmental, economic, social and cultural integration and to secure the growing importance of a Community Policy towards 'Sustainable Development' in Europe.

#### **CAPE:** A Unique Approach to Pan-European Co-operation

	legfried Rupprecht"
	CAPE
CAPE Project A Unique Approach to Pan-European Cooperation	Co-ordinated Action for Pan-European Transport and Environment Telematics Implementation Support
Petra Mollet POLIS Network Siegfried Rupprecht Rupprecht Consult GmbH 1st Pan-European Environment Telematics User Forum Munich, 21 June 1999	Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999
Target Groups	Background
Transport and Environment Decision-Makers in Local and Regional Authorities in the EU and CEEC	<ul> <li>in EU cities and regions, the potential of telematics not yet fully appreciated in the environment sector</li> <li>in CEEC cities and regions, major concerns about environment and transport</li> <li>proven, low-cost telematics solutions exist</li> <li>need for further investigation of state of the art and more and better targeted dissemination and exploitation</li> </ul>
Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999	Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999
Strategic Objectives	Methodology
<ul> <li>Dissemination of telematics-based solutions to environmental and transport-related urban and regional problems</li> <li>Access to results from successful projects through training activities</li> <li>Consensus-formation on key issues of environmental and transport management</li> <li>Involvement of new authorities in European RTD programmes</li> <li>Establishment of links between local authorities in the EU and in the CEEC</li> </ul>	WP2: Status and Framework of Telematics Implementation       overall quality control through Project Steering Committee cooperation with other support projects and ENWAP         identify status & requirements       wP3: Good Practice Implementation       overall quality control through Projects and ENWAP         verify discuss       verify present       verify content         user profiles       verify products       verify content         user profiles       relematics User Fora       relematics Workshops         Telematics Demonstration Projects and Initiatives       Telematics and Initiatives
Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999	Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999

Petra Mollet<sup>I</sup> and Siegfried Rupprecht<sup>II</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>I</sup> POLIS Network, Square de Meeûs 18, B – 1050 Brussels, BE Tel.: +32 2 552 08 64, Fax.: +32 2 552 08 89, Email: polis@pophost.eunet.be <sup>II</sup> Rupprecht Consult, Kemperbachstraße 55, D – 51069 Cologne, GE Tel.: +49 221 689 72 54, Fax.: +49 221 689 72 55, Email: srupprecht@netcologne.de







Future Priorities	Future Priorities (2)
<ul> <li>application areas         <ul> <li>domestic waste management EU: 76%/ CEEC: 97%</li> <li>hazardous waste treatment/ contaminated sites mgmt EU: 76%/ CEEC: 77%</li> <li>reduce traffic emissions EU: 81%/ CEEC: 76%</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	<ul> <li>high interest in new technologies <ul> <li>substantial progress made</li> <li>fast take-up of new, low-cost technologies</li> </ul> </li> <li>double shift from "end of pipe" technologies to "preventive measures" (?)</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>systems <ul> <li>public information systems: 90%</li> <li>decision support systems</li> <li>EU: 67%/ CEEC: 80%</li> </ul> </li> <li>GIS integration <ul> <li>EU: 84%/ CEEC 63%</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999

<ul> <li>Obstacles to Technology Implementation</li> <li>data availability <ul> <li>"sufficient data" for air &amp; drinking water EU: 60-70%/ CEEC: 50%</li> <li>deficit areas: mobile pollution sources, noise, hazardous waste</li> <li>data handling &amp; data analysis to be improved</li> </ul> </li> <li>basic infrastructure (especially in CEEC)</li> <li>lack of comprehensive planning <ul> <li>EU: 29% "integrated action plans"</li> </ul> </li> <li>institutional barriers</li> </ul>	<ul> <li><b>Obstacles (2)</b></li> <li><i>vicious circle of</i></li> <li>missing up-to-date know-how</li> <li>low awareness of problem solving capacity of telematics</li> <li>low level of staff training in telematics</li> <li>insufficient political support and consequently</li> <li>lack of financial resources (= no. 1 obstacle)</li> </ul>
Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999	Environment Telematics User Forum - Munich, 21 June 1999

Differences in Europe	Summary
<ul> <li>EU:</li> <li>diminishing North &amp; South differences</li> <li>"technology pioneers": network members in EU</li> <li>CEEC:</li> <li>local level: transfer of power, but lack of funds and capacity to enforce laws</li> <li>vast differences in city size</li> <li>approximation has created pressure to act</li> <li>CEEC - EU:</li> <li>low in perception &amp; priorities</li> <li>high in infrastructure</li> <li>highest in environmental quality</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>lower than expected use of technology</li> <li>infrastructure issues dominate in future planning</li> <li>shift to preventive measures?</li> <li>comprehensive planning needs improvement</li> <li>awareness of technology impacts low</li> <li>high interest in telematics</li> <li>high take-up of low-cost solutions</li> <li>need to build up know-how</li> <li>address decision makers</li> </ul>

#### Availability and Use of Environmental Information on the Web

Werner Pillmann<sup>I</sup>

#### Abstract

Environmental information is essential in each phase of decision making to come closer to the goal of a sustainable development. It is a prerequisite, not only to achieve better understanding of natural systems, but also to control economic and social processes which affect the ecosystem.

This paper is focused on the need for environmental information and its distribution in the World Wide Web. Special attention is attracted to various potential and/or practical applications of environmental information in administration, science, industry, the media and for the public. A detailed example for access to environmental information is given by a Web-site application in the Danube Region.

#### **1** Access to Environmental Information

The amount of environmental information available in Europe has considerably increased in recent years. Free access to such environmental information and data was a long desired aim of the public, dating back to the United Nations Conference on the Human Environment in Stockholm in 1972, and before. It took almost one decade until these ideas were conveyed into legislation e.g. with the Council Directive 90/313/EEC (freedom of access to information on the Environment). A further step with a broader approach was introduced with the *5th Action Program* of the European Communities and the implementation of the *Rio Declaration on Environment and Development* (Earth Summit '92), including Agenda 21, Chapter 40 and others (ZIRM, PILLMANN 1996).

A new approach was established in the Convention on the access to environmental information and public participation in environmental management at the Ministerial Conference 23-25 June, 1998 in Aarhus, Denmark, including public participation in decision making and access to justice in environmental matters.

For the distribution of environmental information, several systems are available now in administration, industry and research. Recently, a great number of Telematics services have been established, e.g. for measurement purposes, preservation of nature, resource management and awareness building. Such information sources are often designed as a system of layers consisting of different levels of accessibility and confidentiality.

#### 1.1 Availability of Primary Information

As a consequence of the various international activities and in order to give public access to environmental data, several retrieval support systems are available. These are in general search machines (Yahoo, AltaVista et al.) and specific environmental data centers in the Web with links to Environmental Agencies, NGO's and to specific environmental information.

Within the 4<sup>th</sup> Framework Program, the European Commission started to support the development of Telematics applications. Especially DG XIII entrusted several consortia to elaborate environmental Telematics programs. The proceeding volume of the DETERMINE Conference 1998 (Dissemination of Environmental and Transport Telematics Results) gives an overview of applications in this field.

Activities of the European Environment Agency (EEA) related to a new, comprehensive Web-site, the further development of the metainformation system "Catalogue of Data Sources" (CDS) and the Envi-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Werner PILLMANN, International Society for Environmental Protection, Marxergasse 3/20, A – 1030 Vienna Tel.: +43 1 715 28 28 0, Fax.: +43 1 715 28 28 - 19,

email: isep@cedar.univie.ac.at, URL: http://www.cedar.univie.ac.at

ronmental Information and Observation Network (EIONET), developed between European countries and the EEA are described by Sigfús BJARNASON (p. 27). Information services like GELOS, the "Global Environmental Locator Service" and CEO (Centre for Earth Observation) for Remote Sensing and Environmental Information at the Joint Research Centre in Ispra of the European Union provides "Europe-Wide Service Exchange" (EWSE). Also, Digital Library Systems can be implemented in such Meta-information systems (HICKS, TOCHTERMANN, 1998).

Instruments to facilitate the access to environmental information can be more and more found in the World Wide Web (WWW or the "Web"). Some examples of such Web addresses are given at the end of this paper. They were treated equal in literature, but it should be clear that there are fundamental differences. Web-sites are not stable information sources. They are developed and will be maintained over a longer period only under favourable conditions. On the other hand, the world-wide access to many different topics on a low-cost level is a valuable completion of all existing information resources.

Experiences in the field of the distribution of environmental information have been made since 1991, when the International Society for Environmental Protection (ISEP) started to develop CEDAR, the *Central European Environmental Data Request Facility*. CEDAR provided computing and Internet facilities to support international data exchange, among others with the Central and Eastern European environmental community and with UNEP INFOTERRA (PILLMANN 1995, 1999).

#### 1.2 Environmentally Relevant Fields of Information

To select, initiate and evaluate measures for the reduction of pollution, the analysis of pollution causes and effects is necessary. Similar to the so-called pressure-state-response (PSR) approach or the extended DPSIR model (including driving forces and impacts), the graphical representation of a system for reducing environmental stress is depicted in figure 1 in form of a systems diagram with input/output process elements.



Fig. 1: Systemic view of environmentally relevant information

#### 1.3 Metainformation

To facilitate the access to information, metainformation systems were developed. In co-operation with many European countries, the EEA built up an environmental data catalogue (Umweltdatenkatalog UDK, Catalogue of Data Sources CDS) providing an overview of the data collected and stored by authorities and institutions (Jensen 1998). Another Environmental Data Catalogue (Umwelt-datenkatalog) is maintained by the Federal Environment Agencies of Germany and Austria. Figure 2 presents the flow of information from sources into a usable information and meta-information form.



Fig. 2: Data flow from the source to usable information and meta-information

As an example, the Austrian WWW-UDK is a tool to fulfill the requirements of the Austrian Environmental Information Act (UIG 1993) and the Council Directive "Free Access to Environmental Information", which has to be implemented by all EU Member States. The UDK is accessed by interested citizens and especially by people working in the environment-related administration units and in the field of environmental research. The UDK is updated regularly in accordance with the above mentioned pieces of legislation as well as federal and local authorities and comprises now 12.000 entries. During the last 1.000 days approximately 700.000 requests from 16.000 hosts were registered (LEGAT et al. 1999). Close to 3 gigabyte data were downloaded in this period. The further development of this innovative and strategic guidance tool is realized in cooperation with the respective competent authorities in Germany, Switzerland, Liechtenstein and with the EEA.

#### 2 Environmental Information and its use

In order to highlight how specifically information is used, I will give a brief insight in the development of the information system for the Danube River basin (DANUBIS), (FRAMEWORK FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF AN INFORMATION NETWORK, 1998).

To reduce the cumulative inflow of nutrients and pollutants in the River Danube, the DANUBE RIVER PROTECTION CONVENTION (1994) has been signed and entered into force in October 1998. This was the starting point for an intensive information exchange between the expert groups for Monitoring, Laboratory and Information management (MLIM), the Accident Emergency and Prevention Warning System (AEPWS), and the Emission Monitoring Information System (EMIS). Furthermore, the requirement of databases e.g. for adresses, literature, water balances, research programs and the transnational network of water quality monitoring stations (TNMN) had to be met. For this reason, the development of the Danube River Basin Information System (DANUBIS), as an umbrella for existing information resources was initiated to serve the International Commission for the Protection of the Danube River (ICPDR) as a tool to improve water quality, reduce risks and build a basis for the tasks within the Convention. Several existing information sources (Danube PCU-Homepage, DANIS database etc.) have to be integrated in a uniform information structure within the DANUBIS System. DANUBIS will meet the requirements of scientists, industry, administration, financing institutions and the public as well. In Table 1 some users and the use of information are classified.

International/National/Local Users	Use of Information
Task Force/Bureau & International Commission/Steering Group	to oversee and to guide the implementation of the DRPC by the ICPDR (set policy and strategy; review progress achieved; coordinate the administrative, financial, scientific and technical facts).
International Secretariat and the Program Coordination Unit (PCU)	day to day co-ordination of the work, assisting meetings and individual ac- tivities, preparing reports
Donor organisations	to define eligibility criteria and program priorities for project support
NGO network	support of public access to environmental information and public participa- tion in decision-making
Ministries for environment and/or water	co-operation with other countries; adopting environmental programs, con- ventions, agreements and declarations
Other ministries	support of environmental programs of multi-sectoral interest
Focal Points	co-ordinate preparation of National Environmental Action Plan, National Strategic Action Plan, National Strategic Implementation Plan etc.
Universities and research institu- tions	performing education, research and development activities, providing expert & consulting services and risk assessment studies
Monitoring laboratories	performing sampling, analytical measurements and quality assurance
Local health units	participating in quality assurance and health impact assessment
Municipalities	performing waste collection and waste water treatment
Industries (pollution sources)	participating in environmental management (EMAS, ISO 14000)
Political parties and interest groups	priority setting, public relation, support public participation
Journalists	information of the general public
Engineers and consultants	environmental impact, risk assessment, material flow analysis
Individuals (households)	concerned about the local environmental quality, interpretation of informa- tion needed

 Table 1: User classification for the Danube River Basin Information System

In addition, the harmonization of multinational information sources is a technical, financial but also a social/diplomatic communicative task. Some analytical details of the interaction of technical and political solutions, a necessity during the development of environmental information systems, can be found e.g. in PILLMANN (1995), RUZIC, PILLMANN (1998) and NOWOTNY, PILLMANN, RUZIC (1999).

#### 3 Internet Resources for the Information Society

The characteristics of environmental information make it a challenging commodity to manage. This information is typically made up of a variety of different formats like images, graphics, maps and da-tabases. Networking between citizens, administration, enterprises and within the scientific community makes it advisable to use state of the art Telematics to develop and distribute such information.

A variety of European Union programs are establishing links between environmental information and interested persons and organisations, the industry, research projects etc. (DETERMINE 1998). Their aim is to respond to the growing demand for improved environmental care and awareness, to improve people's working and living environments, their daily lives, their health and well-being, but also to

increase their competitiveness - an essential prerequisite for the benefit of both, the environment and the economy. Within the 5th Framework Program of the European Union it is foreseen to build an information society embedded in a global sustainable development. Therefore, available and future results of environmental management should as well be communicated within Europe for the benefit of all participating countries (PILLMANN 1999).

#### 4 Literature

- A New Model of Environmental Communication for Europe from Consumption to Use of Information (1998). Centre d'Estudis d'Informatció Ambiental (Barcelona, http://www.ictnet.es/terrabit), prepared for the European Environment Agency.
- Danube River Protection Convention (1994): Convention on Cooperation for the Protection and Sustainable Use of the River Danube, Sofia
- DETERMINE: Environment and Related Transport Telematics Results. Innovative Services and Solutions for the Citizens (1998). Proceedings of the EC DG XIII/ ISEP/KFK/REC Conference June 4-5, 1998, Pillmann W., Simpson J. (eds.), Szentendre, Hungary. (see also WWW: DETERMINE)
- Framework for the Development of an Information Network for the International Commission for the Protection of the Danube River (ICPDR, 1998). Report and Results from The GEF/UNDP Danube River Information Workshop, March 23-25, 1998, Baden, Austria. Danube Program Coordination Unit Vienna
- Hicks D., Tochtermann K. (1998): Environmental Library Systems. In: Hypermedia im Umweltschutz. Rieckert W., Tochtermann K. (eds.), 1st Workshop Ulm 1998, Metropolis Publisher, Marburg (Germany)
- Jensen S. (1998): CDS–Catalogue of Data Sources: Provision of Environmental Metainformation on an European Scale. In: DETERMINE
- Legat, Batschi, Hashemi-Kepp et a. (1999): Der Umweltdatenkatalog UDK in Österreich. Workshop documentation "Datenbanken" 1999, Karlsruhe (in preparation).
- Nowotny B., Ruzic I., Pillmann W. (1999): Danube Information system. International Society for Environmental Protection, Vienna
- Pillmann W. (1995): Austausch von Umweltinformation (Exchange of Environmental Information. In: Umweltinformatik, Page B., Hilty L.M. (eds.) Oldenbourg Publ., Munich (Germany), 2nd ed.
- Pillmann W., Schläger H. (1999): Environmental Telematics Resources in Europe. Workshop on Environmental Information. June 1999, Petra, Jordan (Proceedings in preparation)
- Ruzic I., Pillmann W.: Towards an Integrated Danube River Basin Information System. In: DETERMINE 1998
- Zirm K., Pillmann W.: The Principle of Free Access to Environmental Information. In: Internet for Environmental Communication. Environment Agency, Vienna, Austria 1996

#### Environmental Information in the World Wide Web (examples; http://)

**Best Environmental Directories** Black Sea Information System Black Sea Environm. Information Network Catalogue of Data Sources: WebCDS Catalogue of Data Sources Austria Central European Environment Data Request Facility - CEDAR Danube Information System DANIS Danube PCU-Homepage DANUBIS - ICPDR Danube Information System **DETERMINE Conference Papers** DG XI - Environment DG XIII - Telecommunication Environment Protection Agency Austria Environmental Action Plan Task Force **Environmental Links** European Environment Agency EEA EWSE (Earth Observation) **GELOS** (Environmental Metainformation) GRID Arendahl US Environmental Agency (EPA)

www.ulb.ac.be/ceese/meta/cdscom.htm www.domi.invenis.com.tr/blacksea www.grid.maps.ch/bsein (www.bsein.mhi.iuf.net) www.mu.niedersachsen.de/cds/start\_info.html udk.bmu.gv.at

www.cedar.univie.ac.at
www.ceit.sk/wwwisis/danis.htm
www.rec.org/danubePCU/
www.icpdr/danubis (until September 99 for ICPDR internal use)
www.rec.org/rec/programs/telematics/determine/default.shtml
europa.eu.int/comm/dg11/index\_en.htm
europa.eu.int/comm/dg13/index.htm
www.ubavie.gv.at/
www.oecd.org/env/
www.bmu.de/links/index.htm
ewse.ceo.org/
ceo.gelos.org/
ceo.gelos.org/
www.grida.no/baltic/
www.epa.org
## The European Environment Agency: A Reference Centre for Environmental Information

Sigfús Bjarnason<sup>I</sup>, Project Manager, EEA

#### Abstract

EEA's role as a Reference Centre for environmental information in Europe has been identified as one of the main priorities in the EEA's Work Programme. This paper provides background information about the principle of public access to environmental information and details the EEA's work towards launching the Reference Centre on Internet later this year. Main emphasis is placed on the importance of proper use of metainformation for organising the content of Web based environmental information services.

#### 1 Background

The European Environment Agency, and its wider network, the European Environment Information and Observation Network (EIONET), was established (Regulation EEC 1210/90) to ensure the supply of objective, reliable and comprehensive information at European level and to insure that the public is properly informed about the state of the environment. In co-operation with the Member States, the EEA has been developing a European Reporting System, based on the DGIII - IDA initiated EIONET Telematics Network. The Reporting System includes the elements needed for efficient flow of environmental data and information between the 500+ EIONET organisations.

In the 1998 revisions of the EEA regulation, EEA's role as a Reference Centre for Environmental Information is reinforced, and developing the European Reference Centre has been identified as one of the main priorities in the EEA Second Multiannual Work Programme (1999-2003). The Reference Centre includes, 1) the electronically publicly available data and information held within the Reporting System, either at EEA or in Member State's EIONET organisations, and 2) various services to facilitate access to this data and information. Through the Reference Centre, EEA/EIONET also provides access to data that are developed from other sources, and are of relevance for the European environmental reporting.

At the Ministerial Conference, Environment for Europe, in Århus 1998, the EU and most Member States signed the Convention on *Public Access to Information, Public Participation in Decision-Making and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters*. According to the Convention, the parties should ensure that public authorities establish and make practical arrangements to make environmental data and information publicly available, and maintains publicly available lists, registers and files of their information holdings.

In line with the Convention, EEA aims at making the EIONET Reporting System more transparent, for the purpose of promoting public awareness and, as well, to support improved efficiency of data flows within the system.

#### 2 From a Web site to a Reference Centre

By developing the Reference Centre, the EEA aims to establish a public information service that will be recognised throughout Europe as the main gateway to access easily understandable and well

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> European Environmental Agency, Kongens Nytorv 6, 1050 - Copenhagen, DK

phone: +45 3336 71 14, fax: +45 3336 71 99 email: sigfus.bjarnason@eea.eu.int, ULR: http://www.eea.eu.int

structured environmental information, wherever possible in the user's native language. For this purpose, the EEA is presently reorganising, redesigning and improving its present web site.

The main new feature of the Reference Centre Web site will be the possibility to navigate through the available environmental information by environmental themes. This service is mainly intended to support the general user in its search for environmental information. For the more advanced user, and users with specific experience and needs, another section of the Reference Centre will include a number of services for information retrieval (listed below).

For the purpose of allowing thematic navigation through the Reference Centre, the Web site has to become a dynamic site, in which its content is properly indexed and managed in a database that contains the necessary metainformation. We see the increased emphasis on proper metainformation and metadata is a key to build as successful system, as well as in general to establish better information and knowledge retrieval on the Internet.

Both EEA and the EIOENT member countries already held numerous catalogues/directories of environmental information. The Catalogue of Data Sources (CDS) is the official register of authoritative information held and distributed by EEA. Many Member States have national systems for the same purpose and many individual organisations do also have numerous files of their holdings.

The main challenge of the Reference Centre will be to integrate the isolated catalogues with the content management system of a dynamic Web site, in which the information resources and the metainformation are kept together.

The distributed catalogues will also have to be brought together to become searchable via common interface and one access point. The distributed files / registers are maintained in different formats, although with many similarities. Through the G8 Information Society Initiative, a Global Environmental Information Locator Service (GELOS) has been defined. The definition provides guidelines for data format and adopts the ISO 23950 (Z39.50) as a standard protocol for search and retrieval of environmental information. The CDS has adopted the GELOS definition, as have many national catalogues in EEA member countries. The definition includes a number of core elements for describing information resources and through the GELOS schemas, information in similar formats can be mapped to GELOS, for retrieval through a common gateway, without interfering with the individual system's architectures.

### 3 The main services of the Reference Centre

The services of the Reference Centre open different views, serving the different users needs, into the content of the Reference Centre:

### CDS:

The EEA's official catalogue of authoritative information, for example the EEA publications, as explained above.

#### **GELOS:**

The Global Environmental Information Locator Service, including a list of environmental events, links to environmental Web-sites and search in national catalogues, as explained above.

#### Thesaurus and Glossary:

A multilingual search facility, allowing the users to use their native languages to find information in other languages. This service will be based on GEMET (the General Multilingual Environmental Thesaurus) which was developed by the European Topic Centre on Catalogue of Data Sources on behalf of EEA. GEMET was developed for the purpose of harmonising environmental terminology and facilitate retrieval of environmental information across language barriers. The GEMET includes some 5000 environmental terms which have been translated into 12 languages. Although the primary application of GEMET has been the indexing of CDS entries it will also have a more general role in the Reference Centre by offering multilingual search in the full-text index of the Reference Centre Web site and national Web sites linked to the Reference Centre.

#### **Data Warehouse:**

Access to data, graphs and maps used in EEA periodical reports. The Data Warehouse contains the datasets used for deriving the stable indicators in the regular environmental reports. The datasets contain aggregated data, typically on a country level, which are time series with a regular update cycle and a geographical coverage of at least EU15. The aggregated data are extracted from the databases in the European layer of the Reporting System, as far as possible by (semi)automated procedures using the EIONET Telematics Network. Metadata for the datasets are maintained within the Data Warehouse. The data in the Data Warehouse are made publicly available, if there are no constraints to that specified by the data owner.

#### **SERIS:**

The State of the Environment Reports Information System, includes documentation of state of the environment reports in European countries.

#### **ROD** (Reporting Obligation Database):

An overview of moral and legal environmental reporting of EEA Member Countries to the Commission / Eurostat / OECD and International convention (planned for year 2000)

#### STAR (Sustainability Targets and Reference Database):

An inventory of current environmental policy targets and sustainability reference values (SRVs) which apply in the countries of Europe of the EEA Area.

#### **EnviroWindows:**

Service (mainly for SMEs) for supporting the implementation of environmental policies, initiatives, or voluntary actions that may improve the environment in Europe.

#### The European Community Clearinghouse Mechanism for Biodiversity:

Service to be set up in accordance with the provisions of the UN Convention on Biological Diversity – allowing sharing of biodiversity information held by Community institutions and establishing links and interoperability with national CHMs and other international information sources.

## **BLACK SEA WEB, a Demonstrator for Black Sea Marine Environmental Management Support System based on Telematics**

Peter Davis<sup>I</sup>

#### 4 Introduction

Marine environmental management and assessment on the regional scale normally require multinational effort by the states bordering the sea area in question. Such integrated management and assessment can be effective only if there is a high degree of compatibility, accessibility and interchangeability in marine environmental data and information in possession or obtained by the different countries and organisations carrying out investigations in the concerning sea area

#### 4.1 Requirements and tools for integrated marine environmental management and assessment

Water managers and policy makers want to be informed about the situation. For the execution of integrated regional marine environmental management facilitating tools in information strategies are required. An effective tool is a so-called Marine Environmental Management Support System. Such a system requires qualitative controlled data; these are the source for decisions. With these data the state of the art of marine ecosystems in the past can be compared with predictions, as well as input data (geographical information, water quantity and water quality data) can be obtained for numerical models.

In general data are available in digital form, but not always in possession of the organisation which needs these data and information and most of time these data are not available in the required format. A direct and uniform access to external regional data (bases), based on Telematics, is of great importance.

Besides, water managers have to deal with different kind of data (sets). These datasets must be combined with other data types and information sources. All this information should be embedded in a dynamic GIS-based Management Support System with a user-friendly interface. The Management Support System should provide the user an interactive working model, integration at various scales, viewing output in time and space and comparison of input and output data. To build and validate the application, access to meta-information should be possible.

### 4.2 Current practices in the Black Sea Region

The Black Sea is an almost closed sea being bordered by countries with intensive agriculture and several harbours without or with very limited water treating capacities. This anthropic pressure has a very important impact on the Black Sea environmental state. The main activities of administrations (organisations) in the Black Sea Region are related to the ecological functioning of the Black Sea. This implies the biological, chemical and physical functioning of the marine ecosystem. The physical and administrative area related to the Black Sea ecosystem and its environmental problems may vary from a part of this region up to several countries bounded on the Black Sea. Moreover, there is no (direct and uniform) access to each other's data as well as uniform tools (Management Support System), which complicates the execution of an adequate integrated marine environmental management of the Black Sea Region.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> MARIS, Koopmansstraat 1, P.O. Box 5807, HV 2280 Z-H Rijswijk, NL

Phone: +31 70 33 66 783 Fax: +31 70 39 03 546 email: peter.davis@maris.nl, URL: http://www.maris.nl

Active measures have to be taken by riparian countries, to improve the endamaged state of the Black Sea ecosystem. The action plan for saving the Black Sea can not be realized without a real time information on the ecological aspects within the region. Black Sea Web could provide such information and help the decision-makers in their tasks to implement an adequate integrated marine environmental management of the Black Sea Region.

# 4.3 Adequacy of current practices and tools for integrated marine environmental management in the EU

Given the not direct accessibility and uniformity of regional marine environmental data, as well as not being available of uniform and adequate management applications and tools for integrated marine environmental management of the Black Sea Region, it is clear that data-access and integrated marine environmental management may be improved by application of (innovative) practice tools and management systems from EC countries.

#### 5 Project Objectives

The Joint Research Project aims to develop a Demonstrator for a Black Sea Marine Environmental Management Support System based on Telematics (Black Sea Web). The main objectives are:

- a) Deploying of a telematics solution helping local and regional bodies around the Black Sea implementing integrated marine environmental management, describing what information is available at what location and providing IT systems (Internet techniques) with automated procedures to access the actual information:
  - \* The (innovative) design of a Demonstrator for a Black Sea Marine Environmental Management Support System (Black Sea Web) to have access into each others data of organisations dealing with marine environmental data of the Black Sea, on an independent base and maintaining the control of their own data. This concept results in several connected databases, which are physically separated, but appear as one.
- b) Capability for the implementation of different types of integrated environmental information management through the use of a Central Meta Directory.
  - \* The (Innovative) Design of a Central Meta Directory (CMD) as central element of the system, considering the guidelines of the Catalogue of Data Sources of the European Environment Agency. The CMD describes what information is available at what location and will be installed as a World Wide Web Server (WWW), and will be supported by applications based on a Geographical Information System (GIS) for geographical interfacing.
  - \* From the CMD and GIS users can search for relevant data and information. The system will provide automated procedures and telematic solutions (by the Internet) to access the actual distributed databases and to locate and bring out the required data.
  - \* The distributed database model will be based upon CORBA-software architecture; the telematics/transport model upon Internet techniques.
  - \* The Demonstrator will focus on two separate databases, maintained and managed by different partners from different countries along the Black sea:
    - The Black Sea database of Marine Hydro physical Institute in the Ukraine, containing physical and geo-chemical data on the marine Black Sea environment.
    - The database of the Romanian Marine Geology and Geo-ecology Centre containing geological and geo-ecological data.

- c) Facilitate the search for and access to specific environmental data by several well-developed navigation systems.
- d) Developing a Marine Environmental Management Support System, which can be used for a wide variety of environmental topics and management levels.
- e) Increasing velocity and quantity of environmental information available through the use of Black Sea Web.

#### 6 System Architecture

The Demonstrator consists of the following elements:

- a) Remote Access Module
- b) Central Meta Directory and other Directories
- c) Application Layer

#### 6.1 Remote Access Module

#### Objectives

Providing the (scientific) user with a tool to search a number of heterogeneous databases from the World Wide Web (WWW) using a standard WWW browser.

The user will be able to query a Central Meta directory to identify a number of distributed catalogues, which is of interest of the user. The user will then be able to formulate queries to the different catalogues using menus, forms and possibly cartographic information. The user does not need to know anything about the location of the catalogues as well as he/she does not need to know the query language used at sites where catalogues are located.

#### **Technical approach**

The Remote Data Access module of the Black Sea Web consists of the following parts:

### a) Scientific User Client Software

The client software consists of a World Wide Web Browser like Netscape, Mosaic or Microsoft s Internet Explore. The user will use the standard WWW Browser to access the Central Meta Directory where he/she is presented with information about available catalogues and their fields.

The user will be presented with a number of pages, which will enable him to locate the data on one of the distributed catalogue servers. When the data has been identified, the user can fetch the data directly from the server if the data are available via the network, or he/she can send a request to the data provider for data.

#### b) Distributed Server Software

The distributed server software will be located at the computer which holds the distribute catalogues i.e. at the different Data Centres. The local catalogue will be accessed through a local query engine with a uniform query interface (UQE). The UQE interface is used to hide the implementation layer of the different catalogue servers. Thus making the different heterogeneous catalogue servers appear as homogeneous servers that can be accessed through the same routines: e.g. AWhich catalogues will return a list of catalogues which is available at the server or those matching a specific keyword. AWhich Fields will return a list of valid fields for a given catalogue.

#### c) Local Query server

The local query server receives uniform queries from the Central Meta Directory via the WWW. The local query server takes the uniform query and converts the catalogues and fields in the query to the local presentation of the catalogues and field names by using the mapping catalogue. After the query has been converted, the query is executed against the local catalogue(s). The result of the query is passed through the result conversion layer, which is also using the mapping catalogue to convert the

fields from the local presentations to the external presentation. This will ensure that results from two local query servers, which contains the same kind of data, will be represented in a uniform way with the same names and in the same units.

#### 6.2 Central Meta Directory

#### Objectives

To provide a search facility, which can search on multiple databases of marine environmental catalogues, these databases being geographically distributed and heterogeneous.

To provide a facility for on-line retrieval of marine environmental datasets (when accessible), integrated with the search facility.

#### **Technical approach**

The Central Meta Directory contains the information about the contents of the distributed servers, like which catalogues of data sources from a server and more detailed information about the catalogue, like what information is available at what location.

The Central Meta Directory will provide the (scientific) users with forms to be able to query the catalogues. At least two top-level query forms will be provided for the user:

- \* forms based queries
- \* cartographic queries

The Central Meta directory will be embedded in the Black Sea interface that will be largely based upon a Geographical Information System for geographical interfacing. The Central Meta Directory will be installed as a World Wide Web server.

The user does not need to focus on the location of the catalogues, as the Central Meta Directory will distribute the query to be involved distributed servers. The results from the servers will be returned to the users WWW Browser.

The Central Meta Directory is updated automatically at a regular basis, for example once per month or when the data manager at the Central Meta directory simply activates a command which will query the known servers to get information about the catalogues and fields available from the server. The information is stored in the Central Meta Directory to limit network access and to have a central access point to the different distributed catalogues.

The Central Meta directory will contain a program, which makes it easy to add new servers if they comply with the UQE interface specification.

#### 6.3 Application Layer

#### Objectives

To provide application facilities for processing and presentation of data and information, largely based upon a Geographical Information System (GIS) for geographical interfacing.

#### **Technical approach**

The information demand will be focussed on spatial information, available in various table formats and locations in various scenario and interactively specified regions. It should be possible to view the output per grid cell and for the total region, to view it at various moments during the scenario and to view the differences between two scenarios. The information demand of users that are implementing and validating applications is related to the requirement to integrate various geographical information sources as input for the process model. It should be possible to view the various source data, to view the converted source data that feed the model and to compare the results. Another part of the application is aimed at the interactive presentation of data.

The GIS will have the following functionalities:

- pre-processing of input data (spatial selection and combination and data integration, retrieval, and conversion)
- numerical processing (running of numerical models)
- post processing
- presentation (visualisation, animation, overlays, spreadsheets, word processing)
- analysis (spatial analysis and statistics)

The application layer should be able to link raw information as well as derived products with various datasets and data layers, numerical models, etc. and will encompass the overlaying of various data types: raster, vector and numerical. In general the datasets can be subdivided as follows:

- administrative data (borders of countries, restricted economic zones, etc.)
- topographic data (watersheds, rivers, seas, cities, etc.)
- geo-thematic source material (optical or microwave remote sensing data)
- processed geo-thematic data (sea surface temperature, etc.)
- geological/geochemical/geo-ecological (monitoring) data
- bathymetry data

#### 7 Partners Involved

#### Marine Information Service MARIS, Netherlands (NL)

Project Management/Development Central Meta Directory/Co-ordination Development

Demonstrator Black Sea Web/User Consultation

#### Moscow State University (MSU), Russian Federation

Development Application Layer/Development Central Meta Directory/Implementation, Testing and Promotion

#### Marine Hydro physical Institute Sebastopol (MHI), Ukraine (UA)

Development Remote Data Access/Development Central Meta Directory/User Consultation/

Testing of System/Implementation, and Promotion

#### National Institute for Marine Geology and Geo-ecology Bucharest (GeoEcoMar), Romania (RO)

Development Remote Data Access/Development Central Meta Directory/User Consultation/

Testing of System/Implementation, and Promotion

#### TERMA Elektronik A/S Birkeroed, Denmark (DK)

Development Remote Data Access/Implementation, Testing and Promotion

#### Netherlands Institute of Applied Geosciences Haarlem (NITG), Netherlands (NL)

Development Application Layer (Presentation Tools)/User Consultation/Testing of System

## **City Information, A Digital Environmental Information System for the public**

Markus W. Spring<sup>I</sup>

#### Abstract

The Digital Health and Environment Information System Munich exists now in it's third year. It originated from the push of the EU funded Research&Development-Project "envirocity", but first developed into a classical textbased information system on the internet. After a conventional GIS-based map-viewer a mapserver was designed and programmed in-house and shows now about 70 maps accompanied of more than 700 HTML-pages mainly of environmental topics in the intra- and internet. The classification of the needs of different user groups helps to concentrate on the most effective way to deliver information. Further cooperation with other cities and software-companies in the DG-XIII project "THE CITY" brings easier to use internet-applications and more platform in-dependence of the server-programs by using Java and XML. From the beginning the project made and still makes heavy use of free software and tries to stay free of vendor specific deviations of international accepted standards.

#### **1** Overview: City Information in Munich

The City of Munich covers about 313 km<sup>2</sup> populated by 1.3 million inhabitants. As there is almost no heavy industry, the main part of environmental problems origins from traffic: About 1.8 million cars are crossing the city borders every day. Elder and sometimes illegal waste disposal sites cause serious but not numerous threat to the groundwater.

As the area of the city is populated quite densely, conservation of natural resources is very important, not only for nature itself but as well for recreation purposes of the inhabitants.

The Health and Environment Information System started with a port of the paper version of the "Umweltatlas", a two-folder compendium of maps of the state of the environment accompanied by textual explanations, originating from 1989. When the former department of environment was joined with the department of health, basic health information found its way into the digital information system.

There are two versions of a WWW-based information system at the moment: One for internal use which provides information only for the administration, and the public one in the Internet. Both arise from the same textual and alphanumerical database, which is accomplished by the use of SGML and conditional compilation into HTML pages.

To inform about the air pollution level, the web-pages are updated every 30 minutes. Daily messages are sent by fax to newspapers and radio stations. If a critical level of ozone is reached, immediate email messages are sent to everyone who is interested. This information is provided via telephone as well.

The internet information is now available for every citizen and tourist at the infokiosks, computer equipped columns at frequented places of the city. 1999 we do not use screen panels in the subway for real-time information about air pollution as we had a drastic cut in the available budget.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Dep. of Health and Environment City of Munich, DE, Bayerstr. 28a, D-80335 München Tel..: +49-89-233-23597, Fax.: +49-89-233-28344

email: Markus.Spring@mindless.com, URL: http://www.muenchen.de/referat/rgu)

#### 2 User needs vs. Available Information

The themes for environment and health information were chosen by an intra-administration expert group. Availability of data and possibility of publication played a major role in this first phase of design. As the internet as additional publication medium became available, measurement data was added for online information of the public about air pollution. The intellectual level of the created texts was quite high, which did not help spreading the usage of the paper "Umweltatlas" as a information source for greater parts of the population.

### 2.1 Categories of user needs

When migrating to web based environment information, it was realised that this medium offered the possibility to further differentiate the offered information according to the user-types and user wishes. As the WWW is a typical pull-medium, it is hoped that good structured information can give the necessary simple facts to those who want quick information, but provides the details to the more interested.

#### 2.2 User wishes

To identify the different user groups, their specific demands and to visualise the number of requests of each of these groups, the model of a user pyramid was created.



Public information at the base gets the most simplified, easiest to perceive information – and is the most numerous target group, whilst on the top we have only a very small number of recipients for our information, but the cause very hard and expensive efforts to fulfil their needs.

At the moment the Health and environment Information System Munich covers the needs of the levels one to three (bottom-up). In level three only the results of off-line calculations oft the air pollution models are available.

### Administrational and political demands

Administration always demands to cut costs, while politics wants the best visualised information for the big target groups, and the specialists don't want to cut away the gory details of their texts.

A WWW based information system reaches at the moment a still small but fast growing audience which is considered to be important especially in terms of economic power and leadership regarding public opinion. Therefore the Department of Health and Environment sees the costs of the information system as justified. Page hits, as cautious as they have to be interpreted, can help a little bit in showing the importance of electronic information.

Comparing costs of classical paper oriented environment information and an internet based system, the digital system tends to be cheaper per customer contact.

Information depth can be improved without a rise of costs as the Department of Health and Environment now experiences in the field of publication of ground water data: Supported by an EU DG XI project, data of about 10.000 measure points of the ground water of Munich is going to be held in a database, parts of which will be made accessible through the digital information system

#### **2.3 Implementation barriers**

Administration is not the easiest terrain for implementing a new electronic information system. Administration sometimes tends to be slow, unimaginous, thinking in paragraphs, re-chewing every semi-colon of given information and for the worst, thinking that it is the only one and legal owner of collected data.

Implementing an electronic information system means to overcome classical publication rituals of modelling data and to show the possibility of giving access to raw data. A perpetual example for this process is the almost annual discussion about the how-to-publish (air) pollution data. The Department of Health and Environment has decided to publish raw data accompanied by text which help to interpret the data, instead of restricting itself to a simple 'traffic light model', to oppose the fear that the held back data would signalise something dangerous. An european "freedom of information act" would be of great help in the process of convincing administration that data collected with tax money has to be given back to the public.

An unsolved problem is the fact that especially emission data is considered a property of the declaring company. As long as politics does not decide in an other direction, this data has to be held back.

#### 2.4 Using feedback

The paper version of the "Umweltatlas" caused a big reflux of letters. Some proposals were useful, many of the wishes were impossible to fulfil because of the sheer quantity of work the would have caused. Originating from this experience the Department of Health and Environment does not have a formal feedback system for our web-pages.

Looking too much at feedback seems to be a bit problematic, as there is no way to find out how representative the received statements are. It remains a critical question how much importance of feedback is acknowledged, the department tends to prefer own development strategies over user suggestions for new themes.

#### 3 Development of the Health and Environment Information System

### 3.1 Project "Envirocity"

This DG-XIII project brought the first approach to electronic publishing of geographical data. The developed map viewer was designed for stand-alone-PC's and did not integrate into a browser based information system.

For our Department this project was the first and most important push to develop an electronic public information system with textual, alphanumerical and geographical data. While the viewer was used only for a short period due to the upcoming internet hype, the then developed SGML-tools for textual information are still in use. The software tools for this task are purely public domain. They were chosen not only because of their (no-)cost effectiveness but as well because of their platform independence: They are available for Windows 32-bit platforms as well as almost every UNIX and VMS. The generated HTML conforms to the W3C-Standards and can be adjusted to meet the needs of almost every browser.

#### 3.2 Mapserver

A spin-off of this project was the later availability of an internet-enabled map-viewing software component, "mapobjects" (ESRI). From this toolkit a mapserver-software was programmed and implemented, which uses ArcView (ESRI) as a rapid development tool for the design of the maps. The mapserver is based on object oriented technologies. Its output can be displayed with any browser, it makes use of simple javascript to accommodate the handling. It does \*not\* need any plug-in at all. Basic functions like zoom and pan do not rely on more than pure html/cgi at all.

For the Department of Health and Environment this was a major design goal as the necessity of plugins proved to be a major obstacle accessing foreign geographical databases, especially in a software environment where the ordinary user is not allowed to modify his runtime-environment.

### 3.3 Project "THE CITY"

Thematically close to the project "Envirocity", in this project a co-operation of ESRI, the University of Athens and the cities Antwerp, Athens and Munich is developing the next generation of mapservers. Two targets are going to be pursued: First, greater operating system and hardware independence will be obtained by switching to java, second on-line processing capabilities are going to be provided especially for dynamic routing according to the air pollution situation.

### 3.4 Current hard-/software environment

The Department of Environment does the main cartographic and textual work in house with PC's and an UNIX server. For security reasons we have no direct access to the internet, this will be accom-



plished by a firewall until the end of this year. Webserver and Mapserver are kept secret for organisatorical reasons. A central telematics provides server polling and pushing services to get and re-distribute online data. At the moment it uses Windows NT, but a switch to Linux is considered in order to gain more stability; same is true for the mapserver.

#### 4 Lessons learned

Public domain software provides valuable and platform independent tools which compete in lifespan with the textual data they are used on. Using high level and wherever standardised interfaces for text and database instead of vendor specific tools made the project Digital Health and Environment Information System Munich easy to maintain and develop.

Having a small nucleus of devoted promoters of a digital information system, it is possible (while a long and tedious process) to persuade the own administration of the benefits of a digital information system. When taking part in R&D co-operations or outsourcing development projects it was absolutely necessary to build up in-house knowledge and high qualified manpower in an adequate degree to the foreign done work. For the Department of Environment and Health this turned out to be the only way to profit for a long period of the work and money invested in the development of an digital information system.

## **Use of Telematics for Emergency and Disaster Management**

Michael Hadrbolec<sup>I</sup>, Konrad L. Zirm<sup>II</sup>

#### Abstract

Disaster management and information depend to a great extent on the availability and efficiency of telematics. This is a brief overview over the recent developments in this subject, its demands and deficits. Furthermore, as an example for telematics application in disaster management, the concept of the Global Environmental Disaster Information System, GEDIS, is presented.

#### 1 Background

The general tendency of the annual global economic costs and life losses, related to disasters, rises from year to year. Each year, on average, disasters world-wide kill more than 133.000 people, and make more than 140 million homeless. In 1996, financial losses of approx. 440 Billion Dollars were reported by Flannery, 1997 et al. Progress in disaster prevention, prediction and warning capabilities allows to decrease the loss of lives and property. However, there is a tendency that disaster costs are still rising.

Nowadays, more information about disasters and hazards is being released than ever before. There have been major improvements by using data from satellites, ground based networks and telecommunication. Moreover, the rapidity of information transmission is increasing due to the Internet. New communication satellites provide opportunities to use e-mail, telephone service and others in almost any part of the world. The application of remote sensing systems, air-borne and/or from space in combination with GIS-systems allows completely new perspectives for the analysis of disaster cases as well as for training, prevention and mitigation. In this context, telematics provide the necessary transfer of information and data between different services, sensors and applications.

#### 2 State of the art at European level

Fax and telephone are still the preferred tools of communication between the different disaster relevant authorities. Daily thousands of pages are transmitted between administrations via fax. To our knowledge, in rare cases e-mail, normally without encryption, is used for the regular exchange of information between administrations in national and international organisations. In critical situations and acute disaster cases, modern technologies do not seem to be reliable enough, so that a "fallback" to past technologies is probable.

Generally, an enormous lack of interoperability and interconnectivity in the information and communication flow of disaster management can be found. Beside the communication problem, major gaps are in the field of gathering information, database access and specialised disaster meta-information availability. Last but not least, we face major problems when accessing and exchanging information in different languages.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Federal Environment Agency GmbH, Spittelauer Lände 5, A-1090 Vienna, AT Tel.: +43 1 31304-5408, email: hadrbolec@ubavie.gv.at, <sup>11</sup> Federal Environment Agency GmbH, Spittelauer Lände 5, A-1090 Vienna, AT, Tel.: +43 1 31304-5334, email: zirm@ubavie.gv.at,

URL: http://www.ubavie.gv.at, http://gis.ubavie.gv.at

#### **3** International information activities

Many organisations have the objective to improve disaster information for the purpose of reducing the loss of lives and property. One of the most recent initiatives, the Global Disaster Information Network, GDIN, is promoting the development of new and reliable tools and methods for potential users of natural disaster information sources. GDIN is an initiative of the US State Department; an international conference has recently been held in Mexico City, where a number of international work groups have been established to harmonise global activities in fields such as Technology & Systems Engineering<sup>4</sup>.

Another important progress can be seen in the establishment of the "Tampere Convention 1998" which provides the legal framework for the use of telecommunications in international humanitarian assistance. Until May 1999, the Convention has been signed by 37 countries (*H. Zimmermann, 1999*).

#### 4 Potential Benefits from Telematics

The revolutionary development in the field of Telematics during the past years has fostered systems and services in the area of applied disaster information and management. Multimedia applications (text, images, audio and video) in combination with the Internet break the barriers between traditional and advanced communication technologies. Furthermore, new ways of communication were established like the Internet, satellite based and cellular telephone communication.

#### 5 Resources

Presently a multitude of sensors and devices have been developed to collect environmental information, watch negative impacts on the environment; and we hold a large number of data bases describing all kinds of negative effects on human health. Although we have an increasing number of tools to treat and analyse data, to forecast impacts, to communicate and to disseminate information there are great difficulties to access and use the data since

- Good information is expensive,
- Data-sets are often confidential, and
- Interoperability is lacking since
- standards for integration, fusion and overlaying in order to generate added value are missing.
- Terminology and other languages applied lead to major problems in communicating in difficult and stressing situations.

### 6 Needs of Disaster Managers

The whole disaster management cycle requires support from telecommunication. It is evident that more lives and property could be saved if more efforts would be invested in prevention, preparedness, training and crisis management. Therefore, important efforts have been made to strengthen the pre disaster stages (i.e. risk analysis tools, early warning of citizens in the disaster prone area, etc.).

They need mainly during all stages of the disaster management communication and information resources (access, fusion, overlay, view, exchange, share, notify, etc.) in an easy to use, fast, reliable, confidential and cost effective way.

In order to make the appropriate decisions in this field the new arising telematics applications are perfectly predestined.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Dr. Konrad L. Zirm is co-ordinator of GDIN-WG3 Technology/System Engineering

To go further into the details of the usage of telematics technology for disaster management we give a brief introduction in our submitted RTD project proposal GEDIS (IST 5<sup>th</sup> Framework program).

#### 7 Global Environmental Disaster Information System (GEDIS)

GEDIS, the Global Environment Disaster Information System is a **new integrated system** for confidential, reliable emergency communication and coherent disaster management information support. This system will aim to overcome existing information access and communication deficiencies by using advanced **user-friendly, Internet** based, **multilingual** and **multimedia telematic** technologies (including tele-/videoconferencing and remote interpretation).

#### 8 Basic GEDIS System

GEDIS is a distributed client-server system. The internal and external communication flows are confidential and ensured through the use of the best-available and/or most appropriate broad band telecommunication technique (fixed, mobile, satellite based, ...).

The basic system is equipped with security, communication (tele- and videoconferencing, dataexchange sharing and notification) and data-access utilities, as well as multilingual support and realtime GIS tools.

In addition, the basic GEDIS system will allow confidential and reliable communication with other GEDIS systems via a docking mechanism. This opens the possibility for establishing regional, national, and international disaster management networks.



Fig. 1: GEDIS overview

#### 9 Tailored GEDIS Systems

Since an ultimate, all-including disaster information support and communication system is not feasible, a modular approach will be the GEDIS development paradigm.

Additional functionality, needed by a user, is provided by tools tailored to specific user needs, to be encapsulated as plug-ins (in short "*application-specific plug-ins*"). The well documented, modular, open architecture of GEDIS allows extensions by compatible plug-ins. This approach allows the interoperable interconnection of existing or available disaster specific information resources such as (legally) fixed and quickly deployable monitoring networks, mobile and remote sensors (including

satellite data), as well as relevant simulation tools (forecasting, risk assessment), knowledge bases and decision support systems. A GEDIS implementation will typically include the basic system and one or several related application-specific plug-ins.

#### 10 GEDIS Features at a glance

- GEDIS supports the entire disaster management cycle from prevention to post crisis phase. The system's well-documented, open, scalable and adaptable architecture allows to tailor a GEDIS implementation for nearly every requirement of a disaster manager by integrating/plugging-in application-specific tools in the GEDIS basic-core system.
- GEDIS accepts input from fixed and mobile sensors for real-time data collection, including acquisition on demand of (near) real time remote sensing data.
- GEDIS allows to process, integrate, add value and visualise (using the advanced, real-time, internal GIS capabilities), system-internal and (predominantly) system-external information resources, be them available yet or forthcoming. These include information inventories and on-line accessible forecasting, risk assessment and decision support tools. Critical-phase disaster management support is provided by real-time command and control tools.
- The system employs standard, state of the art (fixed, mobile and satellite-based) telecommunication networks to ensure a broad band reliable information and communication flow.
- GEDIS lays the foundation for an Internet based early warning system for the citizens in a disaster prone area.
- GEDIS' open architecture unfolds the market for third party vendors of relevant tools and data-sets and thus contributes to establishing a European standard in the field of disaster management.

#### 11 Conclusion

Disaster do not respect boundaries of technical disciplines, countries (languages), hierarchies of institutions etc. Therefore, we experience an urgent need for an integrative unifying approach to serve the very heterogeneous requirements of disaster managers and satisfy the demand of safety and high expectations of the European citizens in a disaster situation. The Tampere Convention which will enable an easier international co-operation in actual disaster cases and training. However, there is a lack of systems especially dedicated to the needs of the disaster management. GEDIS will hopefully solve some of those problems when it becomes available. One of the potentially driving forces within Europe could be the Commission itself which is preparing the new phase of the IDA 2000 program (Interchange of Data between Administrations, DGIII). In addition, it seems important to aim at an international or even global co-operation which can be intensified by an advanced exchange of information and experience with organisations such as the UN (OCHA and others) and with initiatives as GDIN from the United States.

#### 12 References

Flannery Terrance, Robert Winokur, J.: Harnessing Information and Technology for Disaster Management, Task Force Report, 1997

- National Research Council, Board on Natural Disasters, Commission on Geosciences, Environment and Resouces, Reducing Disaster Losses through better Information, Nat. Academy Press, Washington D.C., 1999
- **Zimmermann Hans:** The Role of Telecommunication and the Tampere Convention in Disaster Management, 2<sup>nd</sup> GDIN conference Mexico City May 11 14, 1998
- **Zirm Konrad:** The concept of GEDIS, the Global Environmental Disaster Information System, 2<sup>nd</sup> GDIN conference Mexico City May 11 14, 1998

## **TELEmatics Assisted Handling of FLood Emergencies in URban Areas (TELEFLEUR)**

Antonis D. Koussis<sup>I</sup>, Kostas Lagouvardos<sup>II</sup>

http://www.gein.noa.gr/telefleur

#### Abstract

Several Southern European urban centres situated in basins characterised by steep topography and short hydraulic response time experience catastrophic floods when exposed to severe storms. In view of this problem, and in order to reduce the impact of the flooding a solution idea is the implementation of emergency response plans. The whole project is based on the implementation of a Command Centre that will gather real-time data, produce meteorological and hydrologic/hydraulic forecasts of the evolving phenomena and finally, based on the knowledge of the drainage system, will provide an integrated information to the public authority. Then the public authority will be able to allocate resources for optimal emergency control.

#### 1 **Objectives of the project**

The objective of the "TELEmatics Assisted Handling of FLood Emergencies in URban Areas (TELEFLEUR)" project is the development of a comprehensive operational system for handling urban flood emergencies that synthesises cutting edge telematics technology with advanced forecasting of meteorology and hydrology encapsulated in a Decision Support System (DSS).

The consortium that has been formed in the frame of this project is structured as follows:

- National Observatory of Athens (Greece) NOA
- Universita di Genova, Dipartimento di Fisica (Italy) DIFI •
- IHE- International Institute for Infrastructural, Hydraulics & Environmental Engineering (Neth-• erlands) - IHE
- Ingenierbuero Brand Gerdes Sitzmann Wasserwirtschaft GmbH (Germany) BGS
- Water Corporation Athens, Directorate for Sewage Works (Greece) - WCA
- Regione Liguria Struttura di Protezione Civile (Italy) RL
- New Technology System Design Commercial & Construction Co. S.A. (Greece) G-System •

The utility of a validated, integrated system shall be demonstrated in Athens (Greece) and in Genoa (Italy). Both cities have experienced severe floods in the past due to their complex topography (which plays an important role in the enhancement of precipitation) and to the short hydraulic response time of the basins where the cities are located. Substantial government support has been secured at both sites. Regione Liguria already operates a flood forecasting centre in Genoa and is interested in enhancing its capability, in the frame of this project. The Water Company of Athens (WCA), which has the support of the Hellenic Ministry of Environment, Physical Planning and Public Works, aspires to establish such a capability.

A schematic representation of the proposed integrated system is given in Fig. 1. In brief the system demonstrator will have the capability to:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Institute of Geodynamics, National Observatory of Athens, Lofos Nymfon, Thession, 11810 Athens; GR,

Tel: +30 1 34 90 161, E-mail: a.koussis@egelados.gein.noa.gr <sup>II</sup> University of Athens, Laboratory of Meteorology, Dept. of Applied Physics, Panepistimioupolis, PHYS-5, 15784 Athens, GR, Tel.: +30 1 727 48 35, Fax.: +30 1 729 52 81, email: lagouvar@skiron.mg.uoa.gr

- manage the dynamic information provided by telemetry;
- feed the dynamic data along with the relevant static data (topography, land-use/ground cover, etc.) into models;
- forecast flooding conditions and flood risk estimates;
- assist authorities in decisions regarding emergency measures (DSS), proposing actions for avoiding flood episodes or for minimising their consequences, and in restoration actions.



Figure 1. Schematic representation of the proposed integrated system

#### 2 Implementation of the project

The project started on February 1998 and will have duration of 30 months. In order to meet the project objectives the following steps were followed:

- The user needs of an urban flood forecasting tool have been assessed.
- Up-to-date meteorological models have been tested in Genoa (Italy) and are currently being tested in Athens (Greece).
- The hydrologic/hydraulic analyses of the relevant catchments and associated drainage systems and the validation of the models are in progress.
- The Command Centre already exists in Genoa and has been designed for Athens.

- The communications protocol between the various sources of relevant information (measuring stations, databases, etc.) has been defined for Athens and has been described for Genoa.
- The front end of the Decision Support System of the telematics demonstrator has been developed.

For the demonstration phase in Athens a mock-up of the system will be installed and operated at NOA. The design of the *Command Centre* for the Athens Demonstrator was derived through:

- Interaction with the public authorities responsible for flood emergency handling, especially the Water Company of Athens, partner in this project, and the General Secretariat for Civil Protection (Ministry of Interior).
- Audit of the sources of meteorological and hydrological data and of the means for remote access to and communications with databases and monitoring platforms.
- Audit of the organisational infrastructure required for the co-ordination of the human and technological resources in order to deal with flood emergencies.
- Audit of the flood forecasting system applied by Regione Liguria in Italy (CMIRL, Centro Meteo-Idrologico della Regione Liguria).
- Own analysis of past problematic experiences in Athens.
- Study of the literature and collaboration within the TELEFLEUR Consortium.

The main functions of the Command Centre, include:

- receiving meteorological and hydrological data, via telemetry, from all types of sensors (e.g., satellite, weather radar, rain gauges, stage gauges) and processing these data dynamically;
- receiving numerical model data;
- handling of data (input to models/output from models, storage in databases, statistical processing and display, accessing information from other relevant data bases);
- receiving and sending information about status of operations and issuing of orders for actions, so that communication with authorities and public service organisations can be optimised, throughout the life cycle of an emergency;
- issuing communications to the individuals, organisations, mass media and public authorities, each cleared for access at different levels of information, via appropriate, officially approved channels, e.g., the Internet, before, during and after a severe event;
- forecasting weather and flow on the basis of numerical simulations with meteorological and hydrologic/hydraulic models operating on suitable computing platforms, with appropriate display and printout of results;
- operating a Decision Support System as objective "advisor": evaluate measurements and simulation results data and decide on the guidance to be given to and measures to be taken by the user of the telematics product, in order to handle a projected flood emergency (assist authorities in their actions until restoration to normality, administrative and technical, based on established watch/alert, warning and alarm status levels). The current stage of the prototype contains several modules that include graphic user interfaces for data input, information display with background maps, graphic information about flooding, generation of flood statements, and a mail composer to send warning statements

The cost-effectiveness of the system will be judged by calculating the hardware, software and installation cost of the demonstrator at a particular site. Then the demonstrator will run with past flood input data; the degree of prevention will thus be evaluated and hence the savings in damages. It will then be possible to calculate a payback period, clearly showing the cost-effectiveness of the system.

#### 3 Expected results

The results of the demonstrator would be employed directly by the users, in order to handle flood events successfully. This shall lead to better organisation of preventive actions against floods, the optimal distribution of the available manpower and equipment of the civil defence and the efficient organisation of restoration actions. If the operation of the demonstrator is judged successful then it can be used by other authorities (such as the Water Company of Athens, the General Secretariat of Civil Protection).

The system will be transferable to any urban area, since the demonstrator can be customised by entering the new geophysical and constructional details of the area, and by tailoring the rules and procedures of the DSS to the idiosyncrasies of the particular urban administrations and authorities. The communication protocols and interfacing software are to be tuned to the hardware requirements of the individual tasks. The meteorological forecast is implemented under UNIX environment while the remaining features are PC oriented. Therefore a maximum interoperability across systems and countries is guarantied.

## DEDICS a TeleGeoProcessing and Intelligent Software Agents System for Natural Hazards Prevention and Fighting

F. Guarnieri, A. Jaber, and J.L. Wybo<sup>1</sup>

#### Abstract

This paper presents the development and the demonstration of Telegeoprocessing capabilities thanks to Intelligent Software Agent technology. The application is dedicated to natural hazards prevention and fighting. It consists of a network of autonomous specialized Decision Support Systems linked through several communication networks. This R&D action is based on a project named DEDICS (Distributed Environmental Disaster Information and Control System) co-funded by the European Commission (Directorate General XIII, Telematics Application Programme).

#### 1 Introduction

The world of Spatial Decision Support Systems (SDSS) for natural hazards prevention and fighting is rich and varied. Hundreds of software products are already available. They supply the users with a variety of information and services in many sectors of activity related to natural hazards management (database, early detection, monitoring, forecasting, crisis pre-suppression ...). Considered separately, these products bring great satisfaction to their users. However, natural hazards management needs in term of exchange of information and services with others SDSS and Information Systems are growing fast, so the placement in the relationship of these tools seems appropriate to bring solutions as for the resolution of problems always more complex. Nevertheless, allowing the cooperation between already existing systems in different contexts is not easy. The developer in charge of this work has to overcome difficulties linked with the nature and the content of different products (data formats, operating systems, programming languages...). Despite obvious progress in the level of programming languages (object paradigm) the main problems to solve are related to the consistency, the communication and the compatibility between heterogeneous systems. Thus we propose a communicative and cooperative problem solving approach, based on Telematic and Telegeoprocessing technologies (ground sensors, remote sensing, Geographical Information System, radio-communication, telecommunication, modeling, spatial analysis...) and on an Artificial Intelligence (AI) model (Intelligent Software Agents (ISA)).

### 2 Natural Hazard and Telegeoprocessing

Many studies have more or less demonstrated the usefulness of Telegeoprocessing technologies for natural hazards monitoring and prevention, and many authors and research groups have developed prototypes of operational systems including modules for early detection, monitoring, risk assessment, simulation, advising for pre-suppression planning, natural hazard suppression decision support ... These advanced prototypes are based on the following technologies:

• Ground sensors for monitoring and early detection : monitoring and early warning of natural hazards are becoming important tools in minimizing risks due to natural hazards. Various types of sensors and cameras have been investigated on their usefulness for groundbased monitoring and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> ARMINES / Ecole des Mines de Paris Pôle Cindyniques, BP 207, 06 904 Sophia-Antipolis

Tel: 33 4 93 95 74 72 - fax: 33 4 93 65 43 04 Email: Franck.Guarnieri@cindy.cma.fr, http://www.cindy.cma.fr

early detection systems, such as weather sensors, flood alarms, infrared (IR) cameras (thermal or night cameras) and video cameras.

- Satellite communications are now available for telemetry and telecontrol application requiring portability and fast deployment of the remote acquisition points. These applications are characterized by an absence of infrastructure for communications in case close-to-target data acquisition is wanted, which is normally the case in emergency situation.
- Remote sensing, Global Positioning Systems and Geographical Information Systems are now widely used in the field of natural hazards.
- Modeling, Spatial Analysis and Decision Support : a number of major initiatives have taken place over the two past decades to provide computational natural hazard modeling tools enable to simulate environmental processes (forest fires, flooding, landslides, avalanches...).

#### **3** Telegeoprocessing thanks to Intelligent Software Agents

#### 3.1 Intelligent Software Agents, definition

The concept of Intelligent Software Agent (ISA) has been invented to facilitate the cooperation between softwares. The ISA can be a simple procedure or, more often, a more elaborate entity (several tasks in a single program, several processes in the same computer or several processes on different computers). This concept is a part of a bigger paradigm : Multi-Agents System (MAS). This paradigm is based on the share and the distribution between several agents of the totality of the knowledge and capacities of the reasoning that has an intelligent system. A MAS is therefore a distributed system composed of several agents.

#### 3.2 Model, Language and Architecture for Intelligent Software Agents

To make a set of Spatial Decision Support Systems (SDSS) more efficient, it is necessary to conceive and to implement methods and computer models which will assist SDSS to cooperate and to coordinate their actions in the framework of complex problem solving process. The efficiency of this cooperation depends on the quality of reasoning and on the communication language that will be used inside the model of agent. The reasoning will be used inside the ISA to allow them to take appropriate decisions concerning the cooperation. The communication language is used to allow the exchange of information between SDSS in a heterogeneous environment. The heterogeneity of the environment can be considered at several levels : heterogeneity between platforms (PC, MAC, workstations ...), heterogeneity between the data base and the representation of these data in each software ...



Figure 1: A system of Intelligent Software Agents

#### 4 Demonstration on forest fire prevention and fighting

#### 4.1 Demonstration background

In order to demonstrate both the capabilities of Telegeoprocessing and Intelligent Softwares Agents, two demonstrations have been organized in July and September 1998. The test location was in the Sophia Antipolis Science Park, a technological and research park, located in the South of Europe, on the French Riviera, between Nice and Cannes. Sophia Antipolis covers a green space equivalent to a quarter of the surface area of Paris, currently 5 750 acres. These features represent a typical case of interface between natural and urban areas in Mediterranean region. The presence in the same place of important companies and large forest areas increases the vulnerability and thus the risk of forest fire.

Three actors are involved in the demonstration (see figure ):

- The Firefighters Command Center (a Command Center is located in the heart of Sophia-Antipolis), where several specialized SDSS are installed.
- The Firefighter Patrols are represented by a truck (first intervention) equipped with a GPs and radio communication system.
- A watch tower where an autonomous early detection system is installed and which communicate with the Firefighters Command Center through a satellite link.



Figure 2 The actors involved in the demonstration

### 4.2 The SDSS involved in the demonstration

Five applications specialized in forest fire decision support are considered. The communication between the five Decision Support Systems is done thank to satellite, telephone, radio and internet/ethernet networks. We give a brief description of these systems:

- WILFRIED: The Wilfried system contains four dedicated modules using the data available in the firefighter's GIS: Map Viewer, Climatic Risk Assessment, Land Use Risk Assessment and Preferential Spread Area Modules.
- LogBook SYSTEM (LB/MCI): This system allows the user to store all the messages received (in the Firefighter Command Center) and forwarded (to firefighters on the field) during a forest fire. These messages are organized in a Database Management System thanks to a data-conceptual model. This system provides also a synthesis of each event, and is automatically updated with each new message, and proposes some functions to contribute to the backtracking process.

- **METEOROLOGICAL MONITORING SYSTEM**: This module is based on a real-time data acquisition system. The system is connected (via modems and a telephone line) to a network of 21 weather sensors throughout in the Alpes-Maritimes region.
- **FLORINUS**: is a system specialized in communication and exchange of information between the different firemen groups on the field (Patrollers). It is used by the different kinds of operational actors to give them an exact image of events, locations (thanks to a GPs) and to provide information when and where it is needed.
- **AFFIRM**: is a prototype for early and reliable wildfire detection. The system consists of a network of autonomous terminals disseminated in the forest area and linked to the Firefighter Command Center through a satellite communication link.

### 4.3 Conclusion of the demonstration

This demonstration has given the opportunity to present the possibilities of Telegeoprocessing and Telematic for supporting the management of emergencies and more precisely forest fires. The introduction of prototypes of DSS components in the operational environment has been achieved and the interaction with operators has permitted to improve the performance of these applications and to demonstrate their ability to support emergency management tasks. During the discussion at the end of the demonstration, the general impression was positive and it can be concluded that this project is successful, but it should be seen as a first phase of implementation. Several attendees have proposed that a second phase should start from these working prototypes, to develop a real operational system, integrated in emergency management services.

#### 5 Conclusion and outlook

The present paper has briefly described how both Telegeoprocessing and Intelligent Software concepts and technologies can improve decision making in natural hazards prevention and fighting. Nevertheless, this paper indicates only some main problems and criteria of the development of cooperative Decision Support Systems. A pilot application has validated the methodological and technological approach. Another pilot application, dedicated to forest fire too, is in test since July 1998 in Crete (Greece) in collaboration with the local forest fire services. As far as further development is concern, it has been planned to:

- implement these technologies in the field of seismic risk.
- concentrate our effort on a more advanced prototype of Intelligent Software Agent able to manage in the same time more than one DSS and having high reasoning capabilities.
- enter, as soon as possible, the project in the industrialization phase.

#### 6 Acknowledgement

Commission of the European Communities, DG XIII, Telematics for Environment, the DEDICS project is undertaken by 11 partners coming from 6 European countries: ARMINES/Ecole des Mines de Paris (France, coordinator), Algosystems (Greece), Fisia-Teletron (Italy), IBP-Pietzsch (Germany), FABA-Bazan (Spain), University of Seville (Spain), OANAK (Greece), University of Turin (Italy), Technical University of Athens (Greece), Athens University of Economics and Business (Greece) and University of Coimbra (Portugal). Commission of the European Communities, DGXII, Environment and Climate, AFFIRM project. Also thanks to «Service Départemental d'Incendie et de Secours des Alpes Maritimes» (France) and «Office National des Forêts des Alpes Maritimes» (France).

#### 7 References

- Buisson L; 1995, «Decision Support Systems for the prevention of slope related natural hazards, a personal view of the french situation" » in Proceeding of the TIEMEC'95, Nice, May 1995.
- Faure R., Pairault T., Pham M., Fayolle G., Robinson JC., Foucheyrand G., 1995, «Some aspects of computer aided decision making for the crisis management of unstable slopes » in Proceeding of the TIEMEC'95, Nice, May 1995.
- Genesereth M.R., Ketchpel S.P., 1994, «Software Agents», Communications of the ACM, Vol 37, no 7, July 1994, pp 48-53.
- Guarnieri F., Wybo JL., 1995, « Spatial Decision Support and Information Management, Application to Wildland fire prevention : the WILFRIED system », Safety Science 20, pp. 3-12, Elsevier.
- Guarnieri F., Jaber A., Olampi S., Wybo J.L, 1999, "Telegeoprocessing and Intelligent Software Agents for Natural Hazards Prevention and Fighting" First International Conference on Telegeoprocessing, Lyon, France.
- Guarnieri F., Wybo J.L, 1999, «Models systems in knowledge base systems, application to forest fire prevention ». In « Advances in environmental and ecological modelling ». Kluwer editors, to be published.
- Jaber A., Guarnieri F., Wybo JL., 1998, « Un système d'agents logiciels pour favoriser la coopération entre des systèmes d'aides à la décision dédiés à la gestion de crise », in Actes des 6° Journées francophones d'Intelligence Artificielle et Systèmes Multi-Agents, Editions Hermes.
- Lobao X., Sempere J., Wybo JL., Malek M., Den Breejen E., 1998, « AFFIRM a system for autonomous early and reliable forest fire detection », in Proceedings of 14<sup>th</sup> Conference on fire and forest meteorology, Luso, Portugal.
- Nwana H.S., 1996, «Software agents : an overview », in the Knowledge Engineering Review, Vol 11:3, 205-244.
- Schmidt D., 1995, «Florinus : an Emergency Management, Information and Communication System for Fire brigades, Police forces and Civil protection », in proceedings of TIEMEC'95, Nice, May 1995.
- Wybo J.L , G. Eftichidis, D. Koutsouris, T. Manganas, D.X. Viegas, T. Apostolopoulos, E. Pelosio, G. Bovio, A. Ollero, D. Schmidt, A. Criado, 1998, « DEDICS : a general framework for supporting management of forest fires » in Proceedings of 14<sup>th</sup> Conference on fire and forest meteorology, Luso, Portugal.

## Telematics Applications of the Danube Accident Emergency Warning System

György Pintér<sup>I</sup>

#### Abstract

The Danube Accident Emergency Warning System (DAEWS) was put into operation in April 1997, as an important step of the Environmental Programme for the Danube River Basin. The System provides immediate information on accidental transboundary river pollution incidents to assist the responsible authorities and water users in the downstream countries to make preventive measures in time. National Centres called PIACs (Principal International Alert Centres) were established in each of the cooperating countries, which are in close contact with the national pollution control authorities. The DAEWS is equipped with satellite communication system linked to local computer network between the units of the PIACs, equipped with unified information processing system, hazardous substances database, the Danube Basin Alarm Model for the simulation of pollution effects. International Operation Manual provides the standard operation technique in each country. During the last two years period of operation the System reported eight accidental water pollution incidents in the river basin, much less than expected. Transferable parts of the applied telematics applications in the DAEWS are in the field of data processing and management (IPS information processing system), the decision support model-system (Danube Basin Alarm Model) and also the telecommunication.(satellite communication system).

#### 1 Background

In the 1980s and 1990s many accidental water pollution events were identified in the Danube River Basin. A significant number of these were international, while still others went unreported. In some countries these accidents on occasion required the shut down of drinking water intakes, or other precautionary measures to be taken. A clear need appeared to improve the early information about such events, especially in case of their transboundary impacts. Countries that lie in the middle and lower part of the basin that are the most at risk from this respect.

The strategic approach to this problem was to establish a system of international co-operation in the Danube River Basin which is able to provide early information on transboundary river pollution incidents. The responsible authorities of the countries affected by the impacts of such pollution events can use this information to assist the effective control and damage prevention activities on national level.

The Rhine International Alert and Warning System which has been in operation since many years, as well as the recently developed system for the Elbe River clearly demonstrated the needs for accidental pollution warning systems in river basins where important water uses are in operation (Rhine 1987). This is why the establishment of the Danube AEWS was one of the high priority actions of the Environmental Programme for the Danube River Basin (EPDRB), and was supported by the Governments of the Danube countries with the financial support of the European Union's Phare Programme.

#### 2 Objective

The main objective of the Danube AEWS is to increase the safety of population and protect the environment in case of water pollution accidents, which have adverse transboundary impacts on the River Danube or its tributaries. For this purpose a basin-wide fast information system on emergencies caused by transboundary pollution incidents were established in the Danube Basin. The provision of

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Senior Consultant, Institute for Water Pollution Control, VITUKI Plc.

H-1095 Budapest, HU, Kvassay J. u. 1., Hungary. Telephone: +(361)-215-7782, email: pintergyorgy@vituki.hu

such information enables the competent authorities to act in time to protect sensitive water users. The DAEWS was planned to cover the whole catchment area of the River Danube, including all of its significant tributaries.

The set-up of the DAEWS is in accordance with and builds-on the relevant and adopted multilateral conventions and declarations concerning the Danube or transboundary rivers. The Convention on Co-operation for Protection and Sustainable Use of the River Danube (the provisions on the establishment of communication, warning and alarm systems are stated in Article 16.) is an important one among the related international agreements as well as the conventions agreed under the UN/ECE framework. The DAEWS is also based as much as possible on the bilateral agreements that already exist between various Danube countries.

#### 3 Set-up of the System

The set-up of the Danube AEWS is based on the principle of one national centre (called PIAC = Principal International Alert Centre) for each of the Danube countries, having the same responsibility and functionality (Delft H. 1994). There are at present nine fully equipped PIAC (Germany: Passau, Austria: Tulln, Czech Republic: Brno, Slovakia: Bratislava, Hungary: Budapest, Slovenia: Ljubljana, Croatia: Zagreb, Romania: Bucharest, Bulgaria: Sofia), all in operational stage. Three other PIAC are under establishment in the lower Danube Basin to serve the countries Ukraine and Moldova (Fig. 1.).



Figure 1. PIACs of the Danube AEWS

The geographical scope of the DAEWS unfortunately have a territorial "gap" at present. Due to the recent political situation, Yugoslavia is not part of the system in the Danube Basin. The design of the system however is such that it can be easily extended in the future, allowing the integration of the remaining areas.

The Accident Emergency Warning System Sub-Group of the Danube countries designed and directed the development activities of the DAEWS (Hartong 1994), with the essential technical support of EU consultants. The practical experiences of the design and operation of the Rhine system were taken into consideration and utilised. The Danube Program Coordination Unit in Vienna harmonised the international contributions during the implementation period (EPDRB-PCU 1996.).

#### 3.1 The PIACs of the System

Each PIAC in the co-operating countries has three <u>Units</u> to perform the following tasks during emergency periods:

- <u>Communication</u> on a reported sudden pollution of the Danube river basin waters;
- Expert involvement to assess the effects or impact of the reported accidental pollution;
- <u>Decision making</u> on further actions (local or international warnings) to be taken.

To assist the proper management of the above tasks, the computer-network established at PIACs were suited to the systems in use in the different countries (Novell, etc.). Direct access were established to the national water quality and hydrological data banks.

#### 3.2 Tools of the PIACs

International Operations Manual ensures the standardised operation of the System (Manual 1997). The operation of the PIACs during emergency periods are supported by the following tools:

- Satellite communication system provides safe and independent transmission of standard messages (warnings) between the PIACs on the planned routes;
- Data-base of dangerous chemicals pollutants;
- Danube Basin Alarm Model (DBAM). The model-system provides important tool for the impact assessment of accidental water pollution incidents (DBAM 1997).

#### 4 **Operation of the System**

During the last two years of operation since the inauguration of the DAEWS, only eight accidental water pollution incidents were recorded in the river basin by the system, much less than expected. Five of these incidents were caused by oil pollution of the River Danube, in other cases the pollutants were salt, detergents and pesticide (Pinter 1999). The System reacted properly during these emergency periods, sending the necessary messages to downstream countries. The basic information about the pollution incidents were provided for the PIACs in each country by the competent local authorities for water pollution control.

#### 5 Outputs for potential utilisation

The main main fields of outputs coming from the development activities of the Danube AEWS, in which the results could be further utilised as "good practice" were identified as follows (ENWAP 1999):

- <u>Data collection and pre-processing, data management, Output:</u> system for the management of information flow on national level within the units of the PIAC and on international level between the different PIACs in the Danube River Basin. The user-friendly software provides options for each country to use his home language while the language of international communication is English.
- <u>Models and decision support systems</u>, Project output: DBAM Danube Basin Alarm Model applied for each Expert Unit of the PIACs as a tool for decision support. The model-sytem covers the whole catchment area of River Danube and its important tributaries providing capabilities to assess water pollution impact characteristics, like time of travel, maximum concentrations, etc. along the affected river stretch.

• <u>Telecommunication</u>, Project output: basin-wide satellite communication and alarm system for the immediate receive and transmission of messages on accidental pollution incidents. Pagers connected to the system provide details on emergencies for personnel alerted

#### **6** References

DBAM (1997): EU/AR/102A/91 Phare Project of the Applied Research Programme "Development of a Danube Alarm Model". Prepared by a Consortium led by VITUKI Plc., Budapest, 1997.

- Delft (1994): Environmental Programme for the Danube River Basin. Accident Emergency Warning System. Set-up of the System. Final Report. Author: Hans Hartong. Delft, The Netherlands.
- EPDRB-PCU (1996): Environmental Programme for the Danube River Basin. Annual Report 1996. Danube Programme Coordination Unit, Vienna. August 1997.
- ENWAP (1999): Good practice case studies in air and water pollution management. Version 4.0 ENWAP User Forum. Telematics Applications for the Environment. February, 1999.
- Hartong, H. et al. (1994): The Danube Accident Emergency Warning System. European Water Pollution Control 4(4). 41-44.
- Manual (1997): International Operations Manual for Principal International Alert Centres of the Danube Accident Emergency Warning System. Version 1.1. Delft Hydraulics, Delft, The Netherlands.
- Pintér (1999): Operation of the Danube AEWS between April 1997 and April 1999. Report prepared for the 19th AEPWS Expert Group meeting in Bucharest 20-21 May 1999. György Pintér, Chairman of AEPWS-EG. 17. May 1999.
- Rhine (1987): "Rhine" International Warning and Alert Service. International Commission for the Protection of the Rhine against Pollution. Koblenz, Germany.

## Good Practice in Air and Water Management. Lessons for the Use of Telematics in the Sustainable Management of Environmental Resources

#### Frank Price<sup>I</sup>

#### Abstract

Sixteen research projects with objectives related to developing novel telematic applications in environmental resource management were reviewed and assessed by the ENWAP user forum. The work of the user forum has been to summarise common user requirements and good practice in environmental telematics as a means to identify innovation in strategic development and the production of tools for environmental resource management and sustainable development. This paper summarises the work of the user forum and its forthcoming publication of a good practice guide for telematics in air and water management.

#### 1 Context

Efficient monitoring and management of the environment are essential activities contributing to sustainable development. The exploratory action on Environment of the European Union's Telematics Applications Programme (1994-1998) has demonstrated the usefulness of telematics research and applications for protecting and improving the environment. It has promoted the development of research and technological tools which enable the sharing of information among citizens, industries and city administrators and to make informed decisions for improving the environment. In the most efficient form of a sustainable Information Society, this new range of telematics research and results should not limit the benefits to a few users but attract the interest of as wide an audience as possible. Therefore, a dedicated dissemination activity was established to make the results obtained in the Environment Telematics Application Programme more widely known. This activity, known by the acronym ENWAP, gathered in a User Forum participants and projects from EU and CEE countries, discussing the needs and results obtained by environment telematics systems applied to manage air pollution and water resources.

#### 2 Target Audience

This report is directed to stakeholders involved in the monitoring and management of the water and air environment, whether or not they are currently using telematic systems, i.e. from senior politicians and ministers responsible for implementing environmental policy to those collecting the basic data in the field. Particularly, the document is directed at central and local government departments in their role as environmental decision makers and managers. It is, also, of interest to public watchdogs, community organisations and NGO's interested in tools for supplying environmental information. Other stakeholders are represented by regulators responsible for controlling and preventing pollution, and emergency managers dealing with river flooding and with high levels of air pollution in urban areas.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Environmental Protection Services, 205 Shirebrook Road, Sheffield S8 9RF UK, Tel.: + 44 114 273 4619, Fax.: + 44 114 273 6464, email: frprice@hotmail.com

### **3** Objective

The Good Practice report aims to identify particularly innovative and efficient telematic systems developed by pilot RTD demonstration projects in the EU and CEE countries, which could be applied in similar sites elsewhere, in order to maximise the benefits of research and results for other users. The report provides a detailed description of sixteen research projects, selected as outstanding examples of environment telematics applications in the EU and CEE countries. The conditions under which projects have been successfully established are discussed, and it is stressed that good practice does not identify a single system, but shows how alternative solutions can be exploited.

#### 4 Telematics and EU accession for CEE countries

The ENWAP User Forum has given broad attention to the analysis of different telematics applications for environmental protection in the CEE countries and to the problems, the priority needs and the driving forces for future telematics applications. Therefore, one section of the Good Practice report is devoted to the problems confronting CEE countries which are preparing for accession to the EU, and which role telematics can play in the approximation of the regulations of these countries to conform to the environmental *acquis* (body of existing regulations) of the EU. Clearly, the EU projects are well aware of the existing rules and regulations, and the systems being developed are directed to monitoring situations and managing them in order to respect and to limit pollution to the legal standards, and to lead to a steady reduction in pollution. The environmental policies of the candidate CEE countries will be aligned with the requirement to achieve the standards set by the EU legislation. Particular problems exist for some of these countries because of the environmental damage created in past development and the need to remedy the situation by the date of EU accession. The report comments briefly on the progress in implementing environmental legislation in the CEE candidate countries. It looks at issues of the Information Society, research, education and telecommunications, and the various strengths and weaknesses are identified.

### 5 Analysis

The analysis of Good Practice has been carried out by completing a standard form for each of the 16 selected projects. This form contained an abstract explaining the project, its objectives and implementation. It covered the domain and target user category, including details of the site, technical parameters, functional requirements, duration of the project and the cost. It also provided the results achieved and the obstacles encountered. An assessment of the transferability of the system to other situations and the lessons learned are set out, with critical factors of success and recommendations for others intending to use the systems being supplied.

### 6 Discussion

The successful ingredients of the projects analysed consist of the creation of environmental management concepts merging effective technological solutions with social and sectoral factors. By supporting multi-disciplinary co-operation and transnational co-operation some projects have designed specific solutions to address crossboundary environmental management (TEMSIS, DANUBE-AEWS, JAMS, REMSSBOT). Innovative and early exploitation of advanced IT and telecommunication technologies are common to almost all the projects, leading to the delivery of better quality environmental information. This has led to improved decision making with regard to air quality and traffic management (EMMA, EFFECT, SIMTRAP), to drinking water (WATERNET), to water resources (E-MAIL, SNIRH, Croatia-TNMN), to assessment of environmental impact (REMSSBOT, E-MAIL, TEMSIS, ECOSIM, IOZIP), and to forecast air pollution (ECOSIM, EMMA, EFFECT, SIMTRAP). In the majority of cases, dissemination of environmental information to NGO's and the public has resulted in better awareness of the broader public on environmental issues (TEMSIS, HEIS-MUC, DANIS, EMMA, EFFECT, EUROAQ, SNIRH, IOZIP).

The obstacles encountered were of both an institutional and technical nature and similar in the EU as well as in the CEE countries. The bureaucracy encountered in public administration was a major difficulty for most projects, consisting of slow decision taking, low levels of internal competence and poorly defined responsibilities. Low levels of co-operation within and between departments were seen. Technical difficulties encountered related to the availability of data, scarce data standardization and factors such as data ownership, rights and reliable data delivery. Obsolete telecommunications infrastructures create problems in implementing telematics, especially in CEE countries. Financial provision is another area where difficulties are encountered. Inadequate education and training are major obstacles for implementing telematics systems in the administrations.

The transferability of systems and of methodologies has been examined project by project, and the broad conclusion is that most systems can be adapted to other sites if certain basic conditions are satisfied. Varying degrees of sophistication in local circumstances may lead to a complex or simpler approach in the methodology or in the application. The projects have frequently used sites of widely differing characteristics as demonstrators, and there are several examples of similar systems implemented at different levels of complexity.

#### 7 Lessons learned

The projects have assessed the lessons learned by examining different factors such as success, the need for improvement or alternative actions in future applications, and some general advice to any potential end user. The results indicate that technical factors are as important as human, social and institutional factors in achieving a successful implementation of the product. In some projects, the definition of a modular and flexible framework was the key to success, in others the use of existing components with valid data were to prove decisive elements. Early prototyping led to better definition of requirements and familiarised users with new systems. Some technologies which were new to users often needed more time to become familiar than was first expected and a standard method of defining user requirements could reduce the time needed for this element of development. Data suppliers should be involved from the outset, as their role is critical in successful projects, and data standardisation and validation are key parts of the system. Where transnational systems are involved, standardised data and comparability of data are critical factors, as well as efficient data transfer across frontiers (not just national, but also communication systems). In all cases, communication systems are important to efficiency, whether between sensors and monitoring stations, or between data collection systems and management, between departments, and between management and political decision makers. This is particularly valid if transnational organisations are involved using different languages. In all cases, the processes of political decision making and the willingness of those responsible to decide issues are important promoters of good environment management systems, however simple or sophisticated the technology involved. Whatever level of sophistication is implemented, those operating the system must be trained to an adequate standard, and existing systems should be used to the maximum extent in order to minimise the difficulties of wholesale switch-over to entirely new technologies. Integration of operations should be pursued to the maximum extent to create efficient implementation.

#### 8 Conclusions and Recommendations

The good practices of air and water pollution management systems, developed by a number of EU and CEE countries, show good examples of applications which use recent developments of telematics in the areas of :

- environmental monitoring and data and information management
- simulation and forecasting techniques for the environmental pollution processes
- decision support and warning systems
- communication systems for data and information flow

Each of the projects has clearly demonstrated that telematics are an indispensable tool to assist environmental management and contribute to the evolution towards sustainable development.

The results provided by the Good Practice form and the discussions in the ENWAP Expert Group have been the crucial elements for the analysis of experience and results of 16 demonstration projects. Communication and uptake of the information developed during the good practice exercise should be disseminated to a wider audience of potential users. Such information needs to be tailored to the receiving audience, and a suitable medium chosen, from conferences, publications, web sites, communication media, etc.

The main aim of the Good Practice document is to prevent others "re-inventing the wheel" and duplicating existing systems or repeating the errors which other researchers made, but rather to learn from their experiences and make more advanced steps.

The definition of user requirements is one of the key elements of successful projects. Transfer of the knowledge, technology and application of information must have the pro-active involvement of end-users.

The implementation of environment telematics systems does introduce considerable institutional changes. Essential to long-term public commitment to undertake measures and provide financing for environmental concerns are public awareness and educational programs. The projects stressed that human factors are the cornerstone of the integration of new 'technology' by end users. Acceptance of new ideas and advanced technology needs both training and education as well as integration of local knowledge and technology.

The most important conclusions drawn from the analysis of the projects show that supporting multidisciplinary as well as transnational co-operations are keystones for a serious and durable approach to environmental management. It cannot be stressed too often that the environment does not recognise administrative boundaries, and that good neighbourliness is critical in solving environmental problems. It is in this context particularly that EU and CEE co-operation in RDT can generate enormous benefits for all concerned, by linking related organisations, sharing data, pooling knowledge and experience and demonstrating solutions which can be exploited in other sites.

Better quality of environmental information is essential to take informed decisions by the authorities and to improve the confidence in the broader public in the information itself. By

implementation of EU Environmental Directives, the good practice exercise may assist fruitfully in the future orientation of environmental legislation.
A set of general recommendations are proposed :

### 8.1 The European Commission and National Governments should :

- improve the transfer of know-how and technology results through publications for a broader public, user fora, web sites, conferences, seminars between the EU countries as well as between EU and CEE countries.
- promote structural activities on improving training and education for use of environment telematics
- stimulate actions on the awareness of environmental problems.
- stimulate activities to develop standards and harmonization for environmental data and IT technology
- enhance the free flow of information
- promote structural activity to integrate environmental management tools with day-to-day activities such as transport, tourism, agriculture, etc.

### 8.2 The National Governments should :

- reinforce the available legislation with respect to the European Directives for the environment
- strengthen actions for environmental legislation compliance

# 8.3 Decision Makers – Regional and Local Authorities, Environment and Health Authorities should:

- enhance co-operation between authorities responsible for environmental protection decisions
- define clear responsibility within the administration for the system and the data management
- set up clear strategies for implementing the environmental legislation
- indicate at regional and national levels the specific needs for an improvement of the legislation
- support activities to transfer telematics applications (demonstrations, fora)
- promote greater dialogue between the stakeholders
- raise awareness and encourage educational campaigns
- promote initiatives to analyse good practices for the management of water and air resources by means of telematics on regional and local levels

### 8.4 Information Providers, i.e. Project managers, etc. should :

- provide information tailored to the audience addressed
- activate web sites, easily accessible, preferably supporting a multi-language information base and demonstrations
- provide an evaluation of the social and economic impact of the telematic systems developed.

### 9 Acknowledgement

This report is based on significant inputs from EU and CEE research and demonstration projects, the results of several meetings, on the results of the DETERMINE conference and on information and analyses provided by the experts of the ENWAP Group.

The ENWAP group would like to express their gratitude to all the projects participating in the Good Practice exercise. The analysis of the good practice performed here would have been impossible without the project contributions provided during the ENWAP meetings, the information extracted from the public deliverables of the TAP-EN demonstration projects and the feedback from the project managers. Only non confidential information is included.

Appreciation is given to Mrs. E. Jaskulke and Mr. K. Zirm for their Peer Reviews and contributions. A special mention goes to Mr. F. Price and Mr. N. Robson who together with Mrs. S. Azzali, rapporteur of the ENWAP activities, have been involved as co-authors of this document.

# Joint Air Monitoring System in the Black Triangle Region, the First International Air Monitoring in CEE

Jiri Novák<sup>I</sup>

### 1 Introduction

The Polish, Czech and German border areas have been recognized as the most degraded region of Europe . It covers an area of 32,400 sq. km, and has a population of 6.4 million.

The intensive mining of lignite began in Central Europe in southern Saxony in Germany, northern Bohemia in the Czech Republic, and Lower Silesia in Poland during the 19<sup>th</sup> century. Following the development of lignite-miming, the region became intensively within, and after the 2<sup>nd</sup> World War. The side effect was environmental pollution, which with the accumulation of industrial activity within a small area and without sufficient measures for the protection of the environment caused not only local pollution but also that of distant regions.

In 1990, with the advent of political change, Czechoslovakia, Germany and Poland found themselves facing a difficult legacy – the results of a long period of relentless environmental destruction. They also found that only common, trilateral cooperation could lead to the significant improvement of the environment on this Central European lignite-mining area.

In June 1991, the Environment ministers of Czechoslovakia, Germany and Poland issued a joint declaration at a meeting in Dobris that created a trilateral Working Group for neighbourly cooperation. The primary task of the Working Group was to prepare an action plan of joint priority tasks. The programme created by the Ministers became the international Regional Environmental Black Triangle Programme. The European Commission joined the Working Group as a fourth partner, providing financial support through the PHARE Regional Environment Programme. One of the first common achievements the Black Triangle Programme was the establishment of the Joint Air Monitoring System.

The Joint Air Monitoring Systems (JAMS) shared the following objectives to:

- 1) Support international cooperation in the field of air protection concerning the transboundary pollution caused by large power plants fired by brown coal;
- 2) Create a mechanism for continuos air quality control in international scale;
- 3) Collect complementary information concerning the quality of different environmental components;
- 4) Assure good quality measurement according to standards, recognisable by all cooperating countries and international institutions;
- 5) Create an early warning system for dealing with smog situations;
- 6) Enable the creation of a decision support system for efficient environmental management;
- 7) Enable research into the movement and quantities of transboundary pollution;
- 8) Collect data for dispersion model evaluation and validation

### 2 User needs

Several groups of end-users rely on and benefit from the air quality monitoring data. These include:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> PHARE Project:

Joint Ambient Air Monitoring System in the Black Triangle: Lower Silesia, Northern Bohemia and Saxony, Czech Hydrometeorological Institute, Na Sabatce 17, 143 06 Praha 4, CZ, Tel.:+420 2 440 334 51, email:novakj@chmi.cz

- 1) Environmental protection services, forestry services. The staff of national parks and protected area administration;
- 2) Researchers of universities and institutes;
- 3) Local and regional authorities, administration and decisionmakers;
- 4) The general public via the media (newspapers, tv and internet).

All the above mentioned groups rely on information concerning the quality of environment. Some of them, particularly specialists, need more detailed data further analysis and research. Non-specialists, i.e. journalists and the public, need elaborated reports and publication, where information is more general and carries clear conclusions.

### 3 Area of applicability

The monitoring system consist of three independent areas, the Polish, Czech and German segments. There are a total 43 ambient air monitoring stations within the Black Triangle region. Ten stations are based in Poland in a former provinces Jelenia Gora and Walbrych, twelve stations are based in Germany in the provinces of Chemnitz and Dresden, and 21 stations are located in Northern Bohemia of the Czech Republic in the counties of Sokolov, Karlovy Vary, Chomutov, Most, Teplice, Usti nad Labem, Decin, Ceska Lipa, Liberec, Semily, Trutnov.

The basic ambient air monitoring programme includes the continuous measurement of sulphur dioxide  $(SO_2)$ , nitroxen oxides (NO and NO<sub>2</sub>) and particulate matter-PM10. Most stations also measure ozone  $(O_3)$  and some stations measure carbon monoxide(CO). In parallel, meteorological parameters are also collected, i.e., windspeed and direction, temperature, humidity, solar radiation and atmospheric pressure.

Apart from the automatic data acquisition of air pollution compounds and meteorological parameters, manual collection and measurements are also made in selected stations. Those parameters are metals from Hi-Vol Samplers and classical parameters from Wet Collectors only ( pH, conductivity, sulphates, nitrates, selected metals ).

### 4 Technical aspects of the JAMS

The backbone of the JAMS are sets of automatic air quality stations Poland received a complete automatic monitoring system of ten stations and one mobile station. The Czech Republic received a set of monitors and meteorological sensors to update the existing network in Northern Bohemia, while a member of the European Union, Germany linked up to the Black Triangle JAMS with it's own monitoring network without financial support from the PHARE Programme.

For the purpose of automatic monitoring data between the three countries, a data exchange system was developed, based on the Meteosat satellite. Satellite communication via Meteosat offers a technical means for data acquisition from stations located across Europe, as well as from north Africa. The Central Acquisition System in Jelenia Gora, Radebeul at Dresden, and Usti nad Labem were all therefore equipped with satellite receivers.

Apart from a standard communication system, the stations in Poland and Germany are also equipped with satellites transmitters. German stations already use the Meteosat systém and data is directly received in Poland and the Czech Republic. Validate data are exchanged between the country centres via the wide area network DatexP, Eurotel and Polpak as well as the Internet.

Measurement results are collected in country regional centres and go through a validation and processing procedure. Furthermore the data is distributed in textual and graphical form to the relevant institutions and to the public. Lastly data from each monitoring centre is exchanged online, assuring direct access to environmental information across the region.

### 5 Experiences gained from implementation

A complex system such as an international monitoring system, which must assure data flow between different sites and adhere to technical standards, always causes problems when implementing. Contractual issues has also caused some difficulties and delays. The rules of PHARE project implementation is that the EC is the suppliers awarded to issue the contract. All problems must be clarified between the beneficiary and the contractor with the EC acting as mediator. Problems in this respect contributed to many months delay in project implementation.

Particular care should also be taken at the stage of supplier selection. Successful implementation relies a great deal on the ability and reliability of the supplier. References should be checked carefully.

Another problem was caused by the lack of a sound technical infrastructure within the beneficiary countries to establish a reliable wide area network connection. Digital data networks were only just being introduced in Poland when the tender for JAMS was made. This has resulted in the fact that the fully automatic international data exchanged process is still being implemented.

### 6 Transferability aspects

The JAMS relies on data acquisition, validation, storage, processing, visualisation, transfer and quality control. Familiarising oneself which such a system is a good example for all persons working in the field of air protection. Factors affecting the transferability of any system which might be learned from the JAMS include:

- 1) Planning of a monitoring system (which parameters to measure and where, which methodology to use, how to organise data transfer and processing, how to communicate with the stations etc.);
- 2) How to prepare technical tender documentation and the tender itself;
- 3) How to organise the operation of the system;
- 4) How to assure the high quality of data;
- 5) How to produce reports and in what form for different users;
- 6) How to integrate the system with other information system and tools.

### 7 Good or best practice aspects

The cooperative efforts of air monitoring experts from Germany, the Czech Republic and Poland, supported by experts hired by the Commission was an excellent opportunity to create an international team. This group of experts cooperated not only to create the system, but also to successfully operate ot, examples of such cooperation include the exchange of standards and measurement techniques, common inter-calibration programme, meetings and exchange of data.

To ensure the long-term cooperation within the framework of the JAMS project, on September 17, 1996 the Data Exchange Memorandum was signed in Most (in the Czech Republic) by the Polish Minister of Environmental Protection, Natural Resources and Forestry, the Czech Minister of Environment, and the German Minister of Environment and Reactor Safety. The countries declared to

further exchange air pollution immission data concerning the Black Triangle region and to elaborate summary reports about the immissions situation of the Black Triangle.

After the first period of JAMS operation, our conclusions are as follows:

- 1) Data processing system should be based on common standards, recognized by all;
- 2) Common methodology for environmental assessment should be used;
- 3) Data validation should be made in a similar way by all partners;
- 4) A periodic inter-calibration programme should be implemented e.g. by means JRC Ispra
- 5) The system of reporting should be commonly agreed upon, especially that data intended for the general public.

Not all of the defined objectives have yet been implemented, for example, common reporting or the full integration of systems.

The founders of the Polish Black Triangle JAMS idea were a ware that the creation of the monitoring system is just a first step in the creation of an environmental management and support system. As the network can never be dense enough, the next step is to collect information for those places between stations, this can involve the implementation of dispersion models, typically difficult to successfully implement in complex territories like the Black Triangle Region.

Cost-benefit considerations

The total cost of equipment financed by the PHARE Programme was 2.2 MECU. Additional cost related to the technical infrastructure of monitoring stations was covered by the beneficiary countries. Current operational costs are covered by the countries involved.

It is very difficult to make a direct cost-benefit assessment of an air quality monitoring system. In general, the cost of monitoring does not exceed 1.5 percent of overall environmental investments. In the case of the Black Triangle region, the analysis of the monitoring data has clearly shown that the highest concentration of air pollution in highly populated areas does not now come from big power plants except heavy metals (e.g. Cd). The elaboration of air quality data therefore confirmed that the abatement strategy which involved financing gas conversion was the correct measure.

# Lessons from the Application of Telematics in Water Resources Management in Portugal

João Ribeiro da Costa, Rodrigo Oliveira<sup>I</sup>

### 1 Introduction

Water resources planning and management have a long tradition in Portugal, where the first water law was published in 1919. The legislative framework has been regularly updated and currently, once again, a major effort is being put forward aiming at developing a National Water Resources Plan and several Watershed Master Plans for each of the river basins in Portugal. Recently, a new agreement on the preservation and sustainable sharing of common water resources has been signed with Spain and awaits approval from the Portuguese and Spanish Parliaments.

Within this spree of activities, telematics are playing a role. A National Water Resources Information System is in operation since 1996 providing data for the public administration, universities and private consultants involved in the water resources management, planning and research activities and some consultants responsible for the elaboration of Watershed Master Plans are relying on information systems to improve their analysis capabilities and to cut costs.

### 2 Framework

Situated in the Iberian Peninsula, Portugal is the most western country in the European Union. The country has an area of 92,000 km<sup>2</sup>, occupied by a population of about 10 million. The average yearly rainfall is 910 mm, but is heavily concentrated in time and space. Portugal is greatly dependent on Spain for its water resources since most of its major rivers drain from Spain. Two thirds of its area is within international watersheds and about 50 % of the run-off originates in Spain.

The Water Institute (INAG) is currently the institution responsible for water resources planning and co-ordination in Portugal, together with 5 regional environmental offices. Following the guidelines of the new Water Resources Framework Directive, INAG has in 1997 initiated the work towards the development of a National Water Plan and promoted public tenders for the elaboration of 14 Watershed Master Plans. All major Portuguese water resources consultants are now responsible for one or two watershed plans and the main universities are involved in technical committees sponsored by INAG to review all the documents and proposals that are being put forward.

### 3 SNIRH, the Portuguese Water Resources Information System

### 3.1 Objectives

Collecting hydrological data and publishing them has been the responsibility of INAG's ancestors since the beginning of the century, and this responsibility has been written into law. In fact, aware that hydrological data, including both surface and groundwater hydrology, and quality as well as quantity aspects, are the cornerstone of all water resources management activities, the legislators have established as one of INAG's responsibilities the creation and maintenance of a Water Resources Information System, capable of providing the data and information required for water resources management.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Chiron, Sistemas de Informação, Lda Campus FCT-UNL, Ed. UNINOVA, Quinta da Torre 2825 Monte de Caparica, Portugal email: jrc@chiron.pt, rpo@chiron.pt

SNIRH (Sistema Nacional de Informação de Recursos Hídricos), the Portuguese National Water Resources Information System is such a system.

The Portuguese Water Resources Information System, SNIRH, collects and stores data on climate, hydrology (quantity and quality), groundwater and reservoir operation from over 2000 measurement stations, in ten different networks in the country. Besides these data, SNIRH stores other data required for water resources planning, namely geographic data, like elevation data (DTM, slopes, aspect), hydrographic data (rivers, drainage basins, aquifers), water uses data (wells, dams, pipelines) and administrative data which is used as a framework for analysis.

The ultimate goal of SNIRH is improving the technical performance of INAG, thus contributing to:

- improved water resources management in Portugal;
- concrete implementation of EU Directives related to water resources, with special emphasis on the Water Framework Directive (to be approved by the European Parliament) and the Integrated Pollution and Prevention Control Directive.
- To fulfil this goal, SNIRH must be capable of:
- storing, processing and displaying water resources information, both internally in INAG, based on the SNIRH INTRANET, and to external entities (namely consultants, other government agencies and research institutions, EU institutions through the SNIRH INTERNET (www.inag.pt/snirh));
- making available the required planning tools, including models and data processing and analysing tools;
- integrating the geographical dimension of hydrological data;
- transparently merging these tools with the data.

SNIRH was tailored to satisfy INAG' s requirements and changes are introduced as the requirements evolve in time. As long as it is used SNIRH, will be under continuous development with new procedures being added on a regular basis, to cope with the various areas of responsibility of INAG. Presentation

The Portuguese Water Resources Information System, SNIRH, starts in the field, collecting data on climate, hydrology (quantity and quality) and ground-water in over 2000 measurement stations, in ten different networks in the country, and gathering data from day-to-day management tasks of the Institute. In a second stage SNIRH processes and stores those data in a complex database system. Besides these data collected by INAG, SNIRH stores other data required for water resources planning, namely geographic data, like elevation data (DTM, slopes, aspect), hydrographic data (rivers, drainage basins, aquifers), water uses data (wells, dams, pipelines) and administrative data which is used as a framework for analysis. In a final stage SNIRH makes those data available to the Institute as a whole and to the outside world, providing the data analysis capabilities required to support hydrological studies and the development of water resources plans.

SNIRH was designed as a database server, continuously receiving data from many different sources, and simultaneously replying to requests from many different clients. INAG selected ORACLE as the database server; the system is installed in a network including workstations and PC's at the Institute headquarters (Figure 1). The database server concept was taken as far as possible, storing at the central database not only the usual data, mostly time-series and alphanumeric, but also complex data, like geographic data and images. ESRI SDE is being used to extend the database server to geographic data and ORACLE's Binary Large Object, BLOb, is used to support image storing.



Figure 1 – SNIRH structure

Appropriate client programs were developed to fulfil the multiple tasks to be supported by SNIRH. The following client interface programs are currently operating:

- 1) SQL command line interface, for low-level system administration tasks;
- TSF-Manager the SNIRH System management client interface, used for internal system management;
- 3) *TSF-NetManager* a general purpose client interface, used for the measurement network management, database update, and to produce regular data reports;
- 4) *TSF-Loader* a generic data input client interface, for time-series data input;
- 5) *SNIRH-Ser* a generic time series visualization and analysis tool with exporting and printing capabilities, that is used to support most studies;
- SNIRH-Reservoir a visualization and analysis tools, with reporting capabilities, specific for reservoir operation data;

- SNIRH-Qual a water quality data analysis tool, used to verify the satisfaction of water quality legislation and to classify river stretches based on its water quality;
- 8) SNIRH-Hydro an hydrometry analysis tools, used to compute discharge rating curves;
- 9) H2D an ArcView extension that combines time-series with GIS;
- 10) *SDE-Manager* an ArcView extension used to load and extract geographic data from the database server;
- 11) *SDE-Browser* an independent client application with some basic geographic data visualization capabilities;
- 12) WWW Interface, for both INTRANET and INTERNET access, SNIRH-WWW.

Lei Decreto de L	.ei nº 236/98			mínimo Não	de valores-			
Cumprimento Verific	acão l							
Parâmetros a mostra Todos OSó		0.04						
	os que venticam	•0 50 os	que nao v	enncam				
Param.	Uso	Nº Vals.	VMR%	VMR	VMA%	VMA	Cumpre	
NH4-Ness	A1	11	36.36					
NH4-Ness	A2	11	100.00		100.00			
NH4-Ness	A3	11	100.00		100.00			
NH4-Ness	P-CIP	11						
NH4-Ness	P-SAL	11						
NH4-Ness	QMIN1	11	100.00					
NH4-Ness	QMIN2	11	100.00					
NH4-Ness	QMIN3	11	100.00					
ODs-Wnk	A1	12	100.00					
0Ds-Wnk	A2	12	100.00					
0Ds-Wnk	A3	12	100.00					
0Ds-Wnk	P-CIP	12	100.00		0.00			
ODs-Wnk	P-SAL	12	100.00		0.00			
ODs-Wnk	QMIN1	12	100.00					
0Ds-Wnk	QMIN2	12	100.00					
0Ds-Wnk	QMIN3	12	100.00					
0Ds-Wnk	RECD	12	16.67					
ODs-Wnk	RECI	12			100.00			
CBO5-Dil.	A1	11	54.55					
CBO5-Dil.	A2	11	81.82					
CBO5-Dil.	A3	11	100.00					
CBO5-Dil.	P-CIP	11						
CBO5-Dil.	P-SAL	11						
CBO5-Dil.	QMIN1	11	100.00					
CBO5-Dil.	QMIN2	11	100.00					
CBO5-Dil.	QMIN3	11	81.82					
Cl-Agt	A1	5	100.00					
					-			-

Figure 2 – SNIRH-QUAL, water quality legislation verification



Figure 3 – SNIRH-Hydro, the hydrometry client application



Figure 4 – Retrieving geographical data from SNIRH using a geographic query

The Database Server is an ALPHA 4000, UNIX, the Web Server is a ALPHA 600. The network includes workstations and Win95/Win98/WinNT PC's. The basic software includes Oracle Database Server, Apache Web Server, Arc/Info and ArcView GIS software and original software developed by Chiron.

### 3.2 Users and user needs

INAG was responsible for the start-up of the project SNIRH. As such, the first group of users belonged to the Institute. INAG's position regarding the access to data (all data are made available for free) and two concrete initiatives were the basis for the explosive growth of the number of users in the past year. The first initiative was determining that all data to support the basin plans currently under way, would be made accessible through SNIRH, thus allowing/compelling consultants to access the system. The second initiative was designating that the National Water Plan will draw on the system, both for data, procedures and models.

So, at present, 5 categories of users may be identified:

- 1) water resources planners, internally, within INAG and in the Regional Offices, who access the system through the INTRANET;
- 2) consultants involved in the water resources plans, who must obtain all their data through the system and provide the results in a format compatible with the system;
- 3) University researchers and students, looking for reliable data;
- 4) EU technicians, willing to obtain data on Portugal;
- 5) the public in general, to obtain information of general interest, ranging from simple climate analysis to water quality from their favourite beach.

Aware of the importance of establishing and documenting procedures INAG has produced considerable documentation on the system, organised special sessions in Congresses and promoted countrywide presentations. Numerous newspaper articles have been published and its usage has quickly spread in universities, eager to have access to data.

The SNIRH site (http://www.inag.pt/snirh) is the main contact point to users external from INAG. The number of hits currently exceeds 50'000/month, some 20% of them from outside Portugal. As a confirmation of the public interest to this site, the project SNIRH-Internet was awarded the Descartes Prize 1997, the most relevant prize for Public Administration Information Technology Projects in Portugal.

### 3.3 Project development

The strategy consisted in the development of an early prototype (6 month), followed by a full scale implementation (2.5 years), at national level. Regional deployment is under current analysis, based on concrete experience.

The main activities in the project were:

- 1) objective definition;
- 2) functional analysis, including a detailed user needs assessment, information products needed, information system and geographic information system operations required, etc.;
- 3) implementation plan (including specifications, general design, and application specification);
- 4) database, client- server software and INTRANET development;
- 5) procedure development;
- 6) INTERNET access development;
- 7) training.

One of the major concerns was the definition and implementation of specific procedures for each of the regular tasks being performed using the system. For simple cases, like computing the rainfall over a given hydrographic basin, the procedure may be totally built into SNIRH; for more complex cases, like validating rainfall stations, the validation steps can be built into SNIRH but expert intervention is always required. Precise procedure definition becomes an important tool also in terms of staff train-

ing, and even for the outside world, as consulting companies get precise rules to comply with, rather than having to re-invent the wheel at high cost each time a new contract is issued.

### 3.4 Experiences from SNIRH

The implementation of a major information system does introduce considerable institutional changes, power-shifts, etc. Upper management support and clear objectives, associated to robust technical competence in IS development, are two crucial items for a successful project. The main difficulty experienced has been getting the support staff with enough database management competence to actually manage day-to-day a large and complex database system.

As practical recommendations for other agencies willing to implement similar systems, it is possible to mention:

- 1) clearly define your goals and objectives;
- 2) find the right project director;
- 3) be realistic in the budget;
- 4) find the correct partnership for system development, implementation and maintenance;
- 5) pay attention to maintenance;
- 6) provide enough attention to training.

### 3.5 Transferability

SNIRH is a general water resources information system, which can be applied in any region. Besides the software the underlying functional analysis and theoretical concepts have a wide application in every environmental project. Potential user groups include Water Resources and Environmental Agencies. INAG is keen on helping other regions and countries to implement SNIRH like systems. Efforts are under way to implement it in Madeira, Azores and Mozambique.

### 4 Watershed plans elaboration work

Chiron has been heavily involved in the elaboration of several Watershed Master Plans, namely for the Minho, Cavado, Lima, Ave, Leça, Douro, Vouga, Mondego and Lis river basins. It is responsible for the development and maintenance of information systems, including GIS, for the water quality analysis and modelling, for the hydrological modelling and for the watershed water balance modelling.

Chiron approach to these tasks has relied on information systems storing all the available data, both alphanumerical and geographical. Several different client applications interact with the information system providing insight to the data or producing results from the data. Examples of such applications are GIS based tools that are used to compute climatic variables surfaces from point measurements or generate automatically river networks from digital elevation models. The system provides data to several mathematical models and stores its results for further analysis. Examples of such models are an hydrological model similar to the Standford Watershed model, a GIS-based non-point source pollution model, QUAL2E water quality model and IRAS, a regional water resources planning and management model.

This approach has lead to an improved analysis capacity at lower costs. The main advantages arise from

- Easy access to data and intermediate results;
- Clear data transfer fluxes between several members of the team;
- Improved information exchange within the team;
- Avoidance of work duplication;
- Automatization of repetitive and tedious tasks;
- Improved data insight and analysis capabilities;
- Possibility to evaluate different alternatives or scenarios.



Figure 5 – Automatically generated river network

### 5 Conclusions

INAG was the first public administration entity to clearly define a data dissemination policy, which is free of charge and complete. At present every citizen may have direct access free of charge to the

water resources data collected by the Water Institute. Communication with other government institutions is optimised and internal resources at INAG are better allocated. Communication with Europe, namely the European Environmental Agency, is facilitated, as all data are made available in a transparent mode.

This policy had has had a major impact in the Information Society in Portugal, and in particular in the work of other public institutions and private consultants. The availability of data, as well as the requirements put on the studies sponsored by INAG, has increased the pressure to use modern technologies throughout the technical community. The on-going planning process, aiming at developing the National Water Resources Plan and the River Basin Plans, is a clear example of such result.

This planning process, co-ordinated with the practical implementation of the Water Resources Framework, is directly associated to SNIRH, which has become the foundation of the plan and the axis for the development of all planning scenarios.

### **6** References

- Costa, J. R., Jesus, H.B., Lacerda, M. (1995) Integrating GIS and time-series analysis for water resources management in Portugal. Paper presented at HYDROGIS 1995.
- Costa, J. R.& Lacerda, M. (1995) SNIRH: Sistema nacional de informação de Recursos Hídricos (SNIRH: the Water Resources Information System). INAG Working Papers INAG, Portugal.
- Costa, J. R.& Lacerda, M. (1995) The Portuguese Water Resources Information System: using OOP to integrate time series and GIS. Paper presented at the ArcInfo Users Conference 1995.
- Cunha, L. V. 1994 Recursos Hídricos na Europa. In "O Jardim Comum Europeu", Quetzal Editores/FLAD, Lisboa, Portugal.
- INAG 1996 Proceedings of the Special Session SNIRH during the 1996 Water Congress in Lisbon. Portuguese Water Resources Association, APRH, LNEC, Lisboa, Portugal.
- Matos, J., Costa, J. R., Sousa, R. (1997) Especificações técnicas para a informação geo-referenciada a ser integrada no SNIRH (Technical specifications for the geographic information to be stored in SNIRH). INAG Working Papers INAG, Portugal.
- Sousa, R., Nery, F., Costa, J.R., Oliveira, R. (1997) Especificações técnicas para os metadados no SNIRH (Technical specifications for the geographic metadata in SNIRH). INAG Working Papers INAG, Portugal.

www.inag.pt/snirh

### Status and Structure of Automatic Ambient Air Pollution Monitoring Network: Development Strategy in Lithuania

Kestutis Kvietkus<sup>I</sup>

#### 1 Introduction

Air pollution monitoring began in Lithuania in 1967 and was initiated by the Lithuanian Hydrometeorological Board. Air pollution measurement network, which was in operation in 1995 and is still in operation today, consists of 21 manual stationary sites located in 10 cities. The Lithuanian Environmental Ministry and Joint Research Center are authorities responsible for monitoring and managing the air pollution measurement sites.

The main sources of atmospheric pollutants in Lithuania are mobile sources (traffic) and stationary (power plants and industry sector), e.g. oil refining, cement, fertiliser, pulp and paper industries and so on (see Fig. 1a, EM Report, 1996). The following figure shows the proportion of atmospheric pollutants coming from major sources in Lithuania. The ratio of air pollutants from the same sources in the largest cities differs as compared to the total atmospheric pollutant inventory data in Lithuania (see Fig.1 b). The main source of pollution in cities is mobile sources because of a high concentration of both streets and motor vehicles. Concentration of industry also partly contributes to such level of pollution. Atmosphere is a very dynamic system, and hazardous atmospheric pollutants may reach high levels within a short time, especially in cities. The influence of weather conditions is most significant, so that the emission of a pollutant being constant, the pollution conditions can change essentially only as a consequence of meteorological changes. It means that in cities and "hot spots", pollutant sampling must be frequent, and automated monitoring network is the only alternative acceptable. Automated continuous pollutant concentration monitoring systems allow to identify extreme conditions: the moment they appear, and their duration period. In such cases it is possible to warn the polluter and the population of ongoing toxic episodes, to announce alert situations, an enforcing a shutdown of emission source. Continuous monitoring not only describes the current situation, but also provides data necessary for air pollution modelling and forecasting.





<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Vilnius Air Quality Management, Joint Research Center, Environmental Protection Ministry, A. Juozapaviciaus 9, 2600 - Vilnius, LT, Tel.: +370 2 721 567, Fax.: +370 2 728 020

### 2 Current Design of an Automated Air Pollution Monitoring Network

Apart from the above mentioned manual monitoring sites, a well-equipped automated meteorological station was primaly installed in 1995 in Vilnius in the Airport area. Another automated air pollution monitoring station was set up in Zverynas area [Vilnius Air Quality Management Group (VAQMG) Report, 1995]. During 1996-97, two more automated air pollution monitoring stations in the Zirmunu and Senamiescio areas were installed [see Fig. 2 and Table 1]. Additionally, a small meteorological station was installed at the Zirmunu site. A modern air pollution monitoring station in the Senamiescio area has been constructed to meet the EU requirements. The description of a block diagram is a typical one for automated monitoring station is presented alongside with a data structural diagram. Monitored data are described by using the Swedish AIRVIRO SYSTEM [Final Project Report, 1996] and presented in the Internet almost in real time.

By the end of 1997 only a minimal number of stations needed for Vilnius city air quality management were installed [VAQMG Report, 1997]. After installation of a new air pollution monitoring station in 1998 in a dwelling district, the development of the Vilnius city automated monitoring network will be optimally completed.



Figure 2. Location of air pollution monitoring stations in Vilnius

	Altitude	Starting	Components				Wind	Absolute	Temperature	Precipitation,	
Station name	asl, m	Time	NO <sub>x</sub>	со	SO <sub>2</sub>	<b>O</b> <sub>3</sub>	direction, temperature		difference,	global	
							speed		2-8m and 8-22m	radiation	
Zverynas	108	951204	Х	Х	Х	Х					
Zirmunai	119	960922	Х	Х	Х		Х	Х			
Senamiestis	105	971017	Х	Х	Х						
Meteomast	190	950311					Х	Х	Х	Х	





Figure 3. A structural diagram of Vilnius air pollution automated monitoring and data presentation

### 3 Urban Air Quality Management Strategy

The main tasks of urban monitoring are: to verify emission inventories and models, to provide information to the public, to identify air pollution problems in order to involve decision-makers into efficient air pollution management activities, to check for compliance with the EU Directives. The urban air quality management scheme is presented in Fig. 4. The balance between measurement and modeling must be optimal in order to get needed results at minimum cost.



Figure 4. Urban air quality management

In future Lithuania could have two main networks: urban (5 major cities) and "hot spots" air pollution automated monitoring network, and other toxic pollutants (e.g. PBS, Hg, CD, As, In, Benzene, etc.) network located in existing manual monitoring sites. The latter network should be optimised by reviewing the demands of the sites today and in future. Besides, some of the above mentioned automated monitoring stations can be a part of the EU network.

- Fig.5 presents a detailed Vilnius city air quality management scheme. It could be successfully adapted to other cities or regions. The Swedish Airviro system consists of monitoring, data analysis, emission simulation, and dispersion calculation modules and is intended both for air quality management, and for production of information for decision-makers.
- Fig.6 presents the prospects and the strategy for local, state and regional air quality management systems with corresponding responsibility levels. Municipalities monitoring program must be part of the state monitoring program and the state monitoring program must be the part of Baltic Sea region and the EU monitoring program.



Figure 5. Air quality management in Vilnius



Figure 6.Air quality monitoring and management (local, state, regional)

The main functions of authorities involved in air pollution monitoring and management:

## Environmental Ministry

Joint Research Center

Development of the strategy and methodological needs, control of compliance with law, general overview of monitoring data, reports to the Government and international organisations

### **Regional Agencies of LEM**

State monitoring, analysis of data, decision-making for air quality management, regular reports to LEM

### **Municipalities**

Participation in the State monitoring program with financial support, carrying out of measurements, development of the monitoring network, data analysis, public information, air quality management, regular reports to RA LEM

- 4 Conclusions
- Measurements and modelling techniques must be used jointly in order to assess ambient air quality at minimum cost.
- Two types of monitoring network should be practised in Lithuania in future: *automated* urban monitoring air pollution network and *manual* monitoring network.
- A few automated monitoring stations being part of the EU network must be equipped in accordance with the EU requirements.
- Municipalities monitoring program must be part of the state monitoring program and the state monitoring program must be part of the Baltic Sea region and the EU monitoring program.
- Monitoring is only part of the complex air quality assessment and management system.

# General Trends and Challenges for Waste Management in Europe

Carlos García-Suárez<sup>1</sup>

### 1 Introduction

Traditionally, environmental regulations and environmental practices has been segmented depending of the type of media they referred to, i.e. water, air, land, etc. In current times, a more comprehensive holistic view is preferred by which we tend to understand that quite frequently many environmental aspects are interconnected and that the best way to minimise environmental impacts is by a preventive and integrated approach. For example, some problems in the area of waste might have been generated by a poor designs efforts, or by the generation of waste in wastewater treatment plants, or by the use of certain air emissions clean-up system. This is all to say that waste problems are not really just waste problems but that are general environmental problems.

However, if we opt to keep for a moment the traditional segmented view of the past. One could possibly say that waste related issues are the most present in area of our economic and social activity. Virtually everybody, at work or home is a waste producer.

Yet there is not a general European regulation limiting the production of waste. One can produce as much waste as desired as long as properly managed.

But, why is waste reduction so important:

Dealing with waste means a poor utilisation of scarce energy and raw materials

The handling and disposal of waste (transportation, treatment, etc.) has economic and environmental consequences that might affect air quality, water quality and soil quality

Un-proper waste management can cause serious environmental damage: e.g. Contaminated land and polluted underground

### 2 Waste management strategies

The 5<sup>th</sup> European Environmental Action Program has defined waste production targets. It indicated, for example, that the waste generated by the 2000 should not exceed the volumes produced in 1985. In addition, the EU have defined the current strategy on waste as compromising several key ingredients such as: prevention, re-use, promotion or recovery, minimisation of disposal, regulation of transport and definition of criteria for remedial action. A number of key-regulations have been issued in the last decade that materialises part of this waste strategy. Directives such as the well Packaging Waste Directives, the Council Regulation 880/92 on Ecolabelling and many others (see attached slides) are examples of this regulatory initiative.

### 3 Trends in Europe

The following trends can be signified in our opinion

- Greater role of Product oriented policies
- Use of LCA and Ecolabel type of tools
- Promotion of an Integrated Product Policy by the Commission

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>I</sup> Environmental Transport Planning, Madrid, SP

- Set up and achieve more demanding objectives for recycling and widespread implementation of the Packaging waste Directive
- Partial internalisation of external costs via taxes on packaging and landfill disposal
- Improve market for recyclable materials
- More "consensus" type of work for specific types of waste (in the line adopted by Priority Waste Stream Programme)
- More work will be done to obtain better waste related statistics
- Improved design and operation of landfill
- Tighter demands on incineration plants for both hazardous and non-hazardous waste

### 4 Role of Telematics in Waste

Telematics can play an important role in helping EU economic and social actors achieve the target and principles set up. For example, telematics can help in:

Developing internal markets for recycling of products

Improving general data collection mechanism

Gather more credible information for LCA type of exercises (e.g. Transport information)

Monitor environmental effects of the various waste disposal options

# **ITEMS PROJECT SNAPSHOT**

<b>PROJECT No: 27723</b>	ACRONYM: ITEMS
TARGET MARKETS:	

It is expected that in the coming years most organisations and industrial facilities in the EU whose activities may have an environmental impact will adopt the ISO 14000 or EMAS standard for implementing their Environmental Management Systems (EMS). All of them have a clear need for an application in this trial application since it simplifies and reduces the costs of implementation, operation, actualisation and maintenance of these Environmental Management Systems. Although this application in principle is relevant for all kinds and sizes of organisations, the need for such an application is especially relevant for SME companies, since for these organisations the costs of implementation and maintenance of an EMS are particularly hard to bear. As a consequence SMEs are expected to benefit strongly from a "standard" market solution that can easily be adapted to their individual needs.

### **TECHNOLOGIES:**

Leading-edge IT technology for building ISO-9000 oriented solutions will be adapted to the Environmental field (EMAS and ISO-14001). The software will be tested in a real-life situation, in different EU locations, assessing its viability and making sure that the obtained solution is marketable in the whole Europe. Environmental technology required for the proper functioning of a software supported Environmental Management Systems will be transferred from the Environmental consultants to the IT specialist to allow them enter into this specialised market, get an important knowledge about it and in the future design and deliver new IT solutions on it. Software technology will be transferred from the IT specialists to the Environmental consultants which will permit them to commercialise the ITEMS application as part of their offered solutions, both for

large organisations and SMEs. The **technology** from both Environmental consultants and IT specialist will be transferred to the final application **end-users**, so that they can use and benefit from it in the future.

### **EXPLOITABLE RESULTS:**

Two main interrelated practical results will be obtained at the end of this project:

- Methodological and technological knowledge and experience for the implementation of ITbased Environmental Quality Standards (EMAS and ISO-14000) in industrial installations.
- An operative and tested leading-edge software application which supports such standards.

It is the objective of the industrial partners of the consortium to transform the final result of the project into a product. ITEMS will be commercialised as a Client-Server software application, composed for installations on one Server and several Clients.

### ANTICIPATED OR DEMONSTRATED BENEFITS:

All partners are expected to benefit from the technology transfer process associated to this project. Environmental Consultancy firms will gain knowledge and experience from the IT sector, thus adding value to the services they offer. The IT company will gain knowledge and practical experience in the Environmental field, giving it an important insight in the needs of this sector for future developments. In principle all kinds and sizes of end-users that plan to implement Environmental Management Systems in the coming years may benefit from this application. However, especially SMEs are expected to benefit from this application, since for these organisations the costs of implementation and maintenance of an EMS are particularly hard to bear. SMEs will be greatly helped with a "standard" market solution that can easily be adapted to their individual needs.

### **APPLICATION AND ASSESSMENT OF RESULTS:**

Application area is IT products supporting long-term Environmental Management objectives in industrial organisations. The ITEMS product is a computer-based tool to help and support industrial companies maintaining, monitoring and improving their Environmental Management System. Is focused on ISO-14000 and EMAS support.

### **INNOVATIVE ASPECTS:**

Presently, the implementation of Environmental Management Systems according to ISO 14000 or EMAS is basically done through the development of a set of inter-related paper-based documents (the so-called Environmental Manual, Procedures and Working Instructions and Environmental Registers). This application will simplify and reduce the costs of implementation, operation, actualisation and maintenance of these Environmental Management Systems, since it will **automate** the all standard relations, document generation, procedures and other activities required by the ISO-14000 and EMAS standards.













ifferences p tic waste)	per country		Envir Trap gestión y tec	<b>ispo</b> Plani
Country	Recycling	Compost.	Incinerac.	Dump
Netherlands	28	18	31	23
Spain	10	11	5	74











h by le







# **Internet Information Platform for the Construction Industry**

### Martin Car<sup>I</sup>

### 1 Initiation

In 1997 the Technical University of Vienna, in cooperation with the City of Vienna, the Austrian Association for Recycling and Construction Industry, the Construction Industry Association, the Federal Ministries for Economic Affairs and for the Environment and other related institutions set up a working group concerned with the installation of a Construction and Demolition Recyclables Exchange. A testrun was successfully accomplished in western Austria and after several other federal governments had joined the project, regular operation began in summer 1998.

### 2 Contents of the C & D Recyclables Exchange

- 1. Secondary building materials of mineral origin:
  - total range of products (quality classes)
- 2. Construction and demolition waste of mineral origin:
  - uncontaminated soil
  - road debris and demolition concrete
  - construction and demolition waste
- 3. Humus and compost:
  - upper soil layer
  - organic composting material (quality classes)

The C & D recyclables exchange is not a trading platform for these materials. It only provides information about where, when and what type of material is in supply or demand, and who offers or needs it. The aim of the C & D recyclables exchange is to actively contribute to environmental protection, by reducing landfill quantities and promoting the marketability of recycled building materials.

Technically speaking, the C & D recyclables exchange is an MS SQL database application in the Internet

The target group addressed by the C & D recyclables exchange are building societies, recycling companies, forwarding agents, landfill operators, public and private customers, architects and consulting engineers. But also individuals who undertake to build their own house can check supply and demand an this platform.

Information about supplies/demands can be most easily recalled via internet and is provided free of charge.

Authorised users can also enter their supplies/demands via internet. Individual ID's and passwords are currently free of charge, a small subscription will be charged starting next year.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Recycling-Plattform-Bau, Karlsgasse 5 A-1040 Vienna, AT

fax: +43 1 504 15 55, e-mail: car@brv.at URL: http://recycling.or.at

Wilkonnen - Recycling Fle Edit View So Comm	Börze Bau - Netzcape@  ≍ nicator ∐elp
Remaining to any feature	RECYCLING-BÖRSE <b>BAU</b> RBB
hre Wahi ANGEBOTE ANGEBOTE NACHFRAGEN START Seite Anmeldung Neues Angebot Neue Nachfrage HILFE Betreuung Info ANDERN / LÖSCHEN	
Ponest by: VIENNA ONLINE	sowie neu dazugekommen: Land Salzburg Das Land Steiermark OBERÖSTERREICH

Figure 1.: The C & D Recyclables Exchange Start Page

The C & D Recyclyable Exchange is supported by:

- Federal Goverment of Austria
- Federal Ministry of Economic Affairs
- Federal Ministry for the Environment, Youth, and the Family
- The Associations of the Construction Industries

e <u>E</u> dik ⊻iew <u>G</u> o <u>C</u> omm		∃elp						
		Iome Search Netscape Print	Security	y 349			17.1.0.0	. Dulau
🎯 Bookmarks 🤱 Lo	cation: http	x.//recycling.or.at/				<u> </u>	y what	* Related
<b>R</b> 3	RE	ECYCLING-BÖ	RS	E BA	<b>\U</b> 1	RBB		
thre Wahl	-	Asphaltgranulat)						
O ANGEBOTE O NACHFRAGEN	9	RA (Recycliertes Asphaltgranulat)	Nein	keine	63/x	Seyring	2201	1000
START Seite	2	RA (Recycliertes Asphaltgranulat)	Ja	I	0/32	Markgrafneudsied	2282	10006
Neues Angebot Neue Nachfrage	<u>e</u> l	RA (Recycliertes Asphaltgranulat)	Nein	I	0/32	SCS/Wr.Neudorf	2351	3500
PHILTE Betreuung	<u>0</u>	RA (Recycliertes Asphaltgranolat)	Ja	I	0/32	Kottingbrunn	2542	2000
Info	2	RAB (Recycliertes Asphalt/Beton-Mischgranulat)	Nein	I	0/32	Seyring	2201	1000
-Annige- Werbung im Internet?	<u>e</u>	RAB (Recycliertes Asphalt/Beton-Mischgranulat)	Nein	I	0/63	Seyring	2201	1000
Thre Answige	9	RAB (Recycliertes Asphalt/Beton-Mischgranulat)	Nein	keine	32/63	Seyring	2201	1000
	<u>0</u>	RAB (Recycliertes & enhalt(Return, Mischaranalat)	Nein	keine	63/x	Seyring	2201	1000

Figure 2.: An excerpt of the C & D Recyclables Exchange: Supplies in Lower Austria

- RA: Recycled Asphalt-granulates
- RAB: Recycled Asphalt/Concrete mixed granules
### **GIS Integrated Contaminated Sites Management**

Werner Flacke<sup>I</sup>

#### Abstract

Objectives of the COSIMA project were to develop an integrated GIS-based Contaminated Sites Management Support System (CSMSS) to assist experts in identifying, registering, assessing and remediating sites. The project's task include: Definition of a common site examination strategy, definition of a uniform data model, and GIS-integration, i.e. to provide access to all relevant geographic data and to provide all analysis tools to support decision making. Whereas 2-D-analysis is standard in GIS, a special focus of the analysis tools lies in the additional dimensions of time and depth.

#### **3** Site examination strategy and driving forces

The following site examination strategy was agreed. It refers to each individual site. Besides the evaluation of one specific site it is important to manage the status of all sites and to priorize further activities. I.e. the current status in Cologne is that there are about 800 registered sites. The uniform data model includes site-status (intial phase, risc analysis, assessment, remediation ) and priority amongst many other site attributes.



Fig.1: Site examination strategy.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> ESRI GmbH, D-85402 Kranzberg, DE,

phone: + 49 8166 677 0, email: w.flacke@esri-germany.de, URL: http://www.esri-Germany.de

The driving forces for contaminated sites management have environmental and economical background:

- Severe contamination caused through industrialisation endangers nature and human beings.
- Continuous urban agglomeration and encroachment on green areas creates the necessity to recyle historic industrial sites.
- Manual work flow must be substituted by efficient, integrated software tools.
- Urban development and planning has to be able to attract investors by offering high quality sites.

#### 4 System architecture and data

The graphical user interface is hosted by the GIS, ARC/INFO. Geographical data for online access are in coverage format and are accessible file-system wide. External data in other formats such as the parcel- and building inventory require conversion tools. An ORACLE database contains all attribute data which are shared by another application, UMsys. Regulations concerning limit values are also shared by the two systems. Basic data management tasks ( creating an object, deleting an object ) are synchronized by the use of stored procedures. The GIS application manages all metadata. The GIS application stores the user's work as themes, views and layouts permanently. It provides rich analysis functionality, which covers also the dimensions of time and depth. Final results are published as maps by the GIS application and as reports by UMsys.



Fig. 2: Architecture and the role of metadata

Metadata describe type of data access and validity of the data. They include:

- Level of data integration (original source online or offline, path, url, local copy, ... )
- Type of data (Alphanumeric, Geographic, Vector, Raster, ... )
- Format of data (Coverage, ORACLE-table, tiff, sqd, ASCII, Excel document, ...)
- Level of Intelligence (Background data, descriptive data, static keys, dynamic keys,...)
- Type of Contents ( Admin. Boundaries, geology, infrastructure, properties, buildings, ...)
- Type of source / owner (Planning department, cadastral department, ...)

- Last update
- Geographic extent
- Update process
- Update cyclus

These metadata are external to the CSMSS (editible by the administrator). Inside the CSMSS there are metadata on how the data are used (theme properties, editible by the user) and how the UDM attributes can be accessed from another database application (invisible to the user).

CSMSS-data sources include following regional and urban authorities and their data:

- Mapping agency: Topographic maps, cadastral maps (Automated Real Estate Register, ALK)
- Local council ( statistical department, planning department): City development plans, census blocks, spatial reference system, streets
- Geolocical agency: Geological maps, soil maps
- Environmental department: Water protection zones
- Local water-, gas- and electricity- supplier: Wells, sewers, facilities
- Site investigator / planning applicant: Site information
- Developer / contractor: Measurement data
- Adminstrative actions: UMsys database
- Standards: Knowledge database



Fig. 3: Overwiew of the inputs and outputs of the CSMSS

UMsys-data are mapped against the Uniform Data Model on the basis of attributes. Access to the data is created dynamically after reading the mapping table. The technology behind it is the ARC/INFO-relate-environment. For each attribute an internal meta data structure holds following information:

- Plain text which describes the attribute and is used in the user interface
- COSIMA name of the attribute
- COSIMA table
- Class of geo-objects to which the attribute belongs (site, fixed equipment, ... )
- Primary key used by the class of geo-objects
- UMsys attribute name
- UMsys table
- Foreign key used by UMsys

This mechanism is the basis for the transferability especially with respect to the uniform data model.

#### 5 Practical experience

The installation of an integrated solution requires a process of integration. The City of Cologne had been in the process and still continue. The product which has been developed fits into this process.

The product which results from the COSIMA project must be offered as a software product plus consulting. It has to be adapted and was designed to be adapted. The common elements between the project sites Bologna, Cologne, and Cork lie on a conceptual level ( site examination stragey, uniform data model and GIS integration ). That background provided a good experience with respect to transferability.

The data which are involved use to be very valuable and often must be shared by other applications. In case of geodata it may be necessary to convert them from other data formats. In case of attribute data the contents of an existing relational database can be related to the logical data model defined in COSIMA. The City of Cologne uses UMsys to manage environmental attribute data, workflow and documents.

The major tasks in this project belong to the fields of system integration, data availability and data entry. The experience can be summarized as follows:

- GIS expertise is required. This was the case in Cologne.
- User acceptance can be improved by role-specific training and in the future role tailored clients are envisaged.
- There was just enough time to enter a sufficiently large amount of test data (sites and measurments).
- There was not enough time to capture sufficient amount of historical data.
- Visualisation is a valuable and effective way to check data.
- Attrinute data of sites and measurements could be shared by another application "UMsys".
- The interface to UMsys prooves the transferability of the system.
- The GIS-application-core could be reused to host the management of biotopes and traffic noise assessments.

### **Telematics for Waste Management in the Rhône-Alpes Region**

#### Pierre FLORI<sup>I</sup>

#### Abstract

The information system on waste in the Rhône-Alpes Region (Sindra project) is a decision-making and assessment tool designed for (domestic solid) waste managers. This tool uses Internet communication technologies and sets up interactive relations, on the one hand between the users and the database, and on the other, between the users themselves. These connections, covering the whole region, make up a network of partners that are all interested in improving their own management for the benefit of comprehensive waste management in the Rhône-Alpes Region.

#### 1 Sindra: a tool designed for (domestic solid) waste managers in the Rhône-Alpes Region

1.1) A decision-support tool: provision of information that is relevant (adapted to waste issues) and reliable (continuous validation and up-dating).

1.2) An assessment tool for policies and actions undertaken: localised monitoring of actions (control board) and comparison with actions of other partners.

#### 2 A tool continuously adapted to the needs of users

2.1) Concerted development of the information system (audit)

2.2) "Forum": venue for suggestions of users on the operating of the system

2.3) Organisation of network: "web master" for the hot-line, permanent concertation and organisation of theme meetings.

#### 3 Project open to all local authorities in the Rhône-Alpes Region

- 3.1) Precision of network of partners, to just about the same degree as the telephone network
- 3.2) Systematic pooling of local data at different geographical levels: analysis and synthesis
- 3.3) Comparison between managers and transfer of knowledge

#### 4 Interactive relations: managers - system and managers - managers

4.1) Consultation and input of data by each partner

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Rhône-Alpes Regional Council, Environment and Energy Department,

<sup>78,</sup> route de Paris - BP 19, F-69751 Charbonières-les-Bains Cedex

Tel.: +33 472 595 131, Fax.: +33 472 594 723, email: dee@crra.globalintranet.francetelecom.fr

- 4.2) Validation of data: a prerequisite to network distribution
- 4.3) "Forum" and "news flashes": communication between partners

#### 5 Technical tool with a cultural and economic dimension

- 5.1) Tool requiring the commitment of partners and decision-makers
  - 5.1.1) To show that the expected benefits reflect the level of investment
  - 5.1.2) The performance of the system depends on the level of partnership
- 5.2) New management methods to be adopted by partners
  - 5.2.1) Integration by each manager of standards, "external" definitions
  - 5.2.2) Operating constraints: frequency and date of up-dating, validation / data control, etc.

#### 6 System transferable to other regions and other environmental fields

6.1) Transferability to other geographical areas, regardless of their reach: universality of Internet

6.2) Transferability to other fields of the environment: integration of various environmental fields (cf. superposition of geographical information layers).

**Panel Discussion:** 

### **"Telematics Tools in the Environment Sector: The Real Contribution to Sustainable Development"**

Panel Chair:

**Siegfried Rupprecht:** Rupprecht Consult-Forschung und Beratung GmbH, Cologne DE; Technical Co-ordinator of the CAPE Project,

Panel members:

Nick Hodges: Leicester City Council; Leicester, UK;

Special Project Officer in charge for Transport and Environment Project on European and National Levels, Memeber of the ENWAP expert group

Joachim Lorenz: City of Munich, Munich, DE;

Top civil servant responsible for Environment and Health issues in the City of Munich,

Violeta Kauneliene: Environmental Center of Administration and Technology, Vilnius, LT;

The Environmental Center of Administration and Technology is a NGO in Lithuania, supporting the Development Implementation of Environmental Projects in municipalities;

Franz Jungwirth: Bavarian State Ministry for Development, Bavaria, DE;

Especially in charge for the regional Bavarian Development programme, in the area of air quality **Franz Josef Radermacher:** Director of the FAW (Research Institute for Applied Knowledge Processing), Ulm, DE;

Steering committee member of the Information Society Forum of the European Commission **João Ribeiro da Costa:** University of Lisbon, Lisbon PT;

Frequently involved in Environmental Programmes on European and national levels, member of the ENWAP expert group



The discussion reflects general statements from a variety of backgrounds and perspectives with statements concerning local, regional, European, global and levels. The following documentation offers a complete record of the

panel discussion. The original recording can be found as real audio streams on the Internet at the following address: http://www.isep.at/conferences/.

# 1. Intro-statement Nick Hodges: "The aim of Telematics should be to raise the awareness of administration, politicians, technical staff and the public and to implement choice firstly by the public and secondly by the infrastructure"

As an example *Nick Hodges* sketched the situation of Leicester and the experience made with traffic demand management. Leicester is situated in the east midlands at the M1 motorway from London to



the north; 400.000 inhabitants including the suburbs areas; Leicester was the first UK Environment City which was a challenge to act in an eco-friendly way. 1996 Leicester won the EU's Sustainable City Award. NH presented a dispersion model with meteorological parameters (inversion layer) includes the motorway and shows hot spots near the city center (using AVIRO eulerian grid dispersion model) The model is supported by live emission data, live demand responsive traffic control data. Using active Traffic control it was possible to give priorities to some routes. So it was possible to relocate traffic queues to an open area. The pollution load was not reduced, but located to a more rural area. The politic dimension started due to its area was in other authorities area. Regarding to this fact the question

has to be raised who is responsible for the emission (e.g. are commuters from the city's vicinity responsible for the pollution).

An alternative would be to brief the public and encourage them to come by public transport (rail or bus)

In an experiment with road tolling or a park and ride system with offering a quality bus it turned out that travel time by bus is 10 min, by car 25 min for the same distance.

# 2. Intro-statement Joachim Lorenz: Telematics and its role in information about health and environment related issues

#### Situation:

Munich has a 15year tradition with environmental information. The City Council encouraged to have environmental information for the public and for institutions. In the beginning, print media were used and an information office (Umweltladen, up to now) was established. Using telematics, a new era be-



gins in terms of public information, also the EC esp. the TAP Programme enabled new possibilities.

#### **Chances:**

• Better knowledge about the environmental situation and information for public, administration and also institutions with better opportunities for information exchange. A legislative basis ensures the right of environmental information for the public (Rechtsanspruch, approx. since 1993).

• Telematics is the main tool for fulfilling the legal framework on public information. (data acquisition, data management, data dissemination, Internet, Intranet, info-kiosks). • Telematics will help to raise public awareness and serve also as a tool for decision-makers (within the local authorities).

#### **Risks:**

- Telematics has to be a tool for improving the environmental situation and should not be developed as tool without keeping the objectives in mind.
- Data management and data handling has to be carried out very carefully and transparently
- Transport Telematics solutions may cause problems due to relocating of traffic and relocating of traffic queues, often followed by the relocation of noise and pollution emission.

#### Future priorities: (concerning city networks within Europe)

- Improving City-networks on a national and on an international scale, the European Union has an important role in the development and implementation of Telematics Solutions.
- Establish a standardised European indicator system to be comparable with Environmental data of other cities
- Telematics is a voluntary action in Munich! Problems exists due to the lack of personal resources within the city administration. Munich solves the problems partly with participating in EU Programmes.

# 3. Intro-statement Violeta Kauneliene: Problems for the implementation of Telematics in Lithuania as an example

Problems for implementation in Lithuania is that there exist no rules and no established procedures for providing environmental information. The public is not informed – or cannot be informed – on how they can access environmental information. Moreover, there exists only a low quality environ-



mental information because there is a long delay for publishing environmental data. Most environmental information is restricted to reports on paper. A face to face communication is often needed to retrieve environmental information. In Lithuania the lack of funding, the lack of institutional cooperation, relatively low expertise in the field of IT are the main obstacles that have to be overcome in the future.

Raising awareness about telematics issues would also raise public awareness. This would support environmental management in general and support sustainable development.

Telematics should be a tool for the dissemination of environmental information and never become a goal itself. Attention and funding for the development and implementation on telematics should be given in a good proportion with other actions to maintain the principle of sustainable development.

# 4. Intro-statement Franz Jungwirth: The use and the benefits of Telematics for the Bavarian area with 71.000 km<sup>2</sup> and 12.000.000 inhabitants

Protection of the environment has to be supported by the public and will be especially supported by a well informed public. Correct and timely information is the most sustainable way for environmental protection. The Bavarian state ministry uses the Internet as an information tool for general environmental information and background information as well as for very detailed information such as

summer smog by ozone or for a specialised background information about the recently ongoing discussion on electronic smog caused by mobile phones. Mr. Jungwirth sketched two examples where Telematics was used as a decision-making tool in Bavaria:

#### **Risk Management for floods in Bavaria**

The main tasks to avoid destruction by floods is preparedness and appropriate flood prediction. The



total length of rivers within Bavaria is about 6000 km. The level situation is observed by gauging stations and this parameters are combined with meteorological data from the German Weather Service (DWD – Deutscher Wetterdienst) and with other parameters (such as topographic data). Telematics help in modelling and simulation of flood and is also a tool for landuse and landplanning. Finally it is a tool for political decisions.

# Planning the train track for ICE München – Nürnberg in 1993

After a long and almost never-ending discussion about the new planned route for the track of the ICE (Inter City Express) from Munich to Nuremberg a digital noise chart helped the council to make a final decision about the rail-track.

#### The general framework for the use of Telematics is:

- A well established technical infrastructure to improve the communication between administration and institutions. An improved data exchange is necessary for decisions making.
- For an appropriate use of Telematics a training is necessary to have the benefit of environmental information. This training has to include all levels of the staff even up to the Minister.
- The Interface is one of the most important issues. Only a user friendly Information Technology will be accepted and broadly used and can be used as a service for the citizen.
- Raising the awareness of the use of telematics and its possibilities is also necessary even for high level authorities and politicians.
- Telematics is a tool that became more powerful within the last years and helps the public, the administration and the political decision-makers to create a more sustainable politic.

# 5. Intro-statement Franz Josef Radermacher: "If we are honest we are not on the way to a sustainable Society, we are on the way to a more and more unsustainable Society. We just use the word "sustainability" for marketing reasons."

"It is necessary to take a much broader view and - for the essentials - recognise that we only can be as sustainable as the world market allows us to be sustainable. We have to be competitive with the partners we have, also with global partners. We do not have the choice. How can we contribute to a global sustainable development? We are even in danger to lose the benefits that we have already reached. E.g. the liberalisation of the energy market - which is a consequence of the world market pressure - causes that the combined electricity/heat production cannot be financed any longer. Financing it can often be done only under a monopoly. Is becomes harder to finance reasonable things. A lot of money is used for social infrastructure. Problems may occur with the step out of atomic energy for Germany. The power is then generated in the Ukraine or in France and traded from there."

The global view of development and sustainability has always to be kept in mind. "We have so much of that *narrow local view* instead of what we need under a *broad world wide view*. The environmental

question and the question of sustainability will be decided world-wide and not only in Europe. The real powerful drivers will be e.g. India and China by starting doing what we now already do."



Many of our solutions are eco-efficient but under a closer view they are not solving the problems. They often even create greater problems.

#### **Example: Road Traffic Management systems:**

The better traffic management systems are handled the more capacity is given to existing traffic infrastructure as more traffic will be the result.

#### Example: Air traffic Management system:

Air travel time can be reduced by the use of air traffic management systems. The use of fuel will increase, free capacity will be used for more flight connections. As a result the market will drive the price down and finally there will be more air traffic as it was on the starting point.

"The question is : What can be done, what can Cities do?"

#### "One possible answer:

The Local Agenda 2000 is a good opportunity, but not in the way to save the world locally but to built new partnerships especially with developing countries. A suggestion is that every European town should have a partnership town with at least five time as many inhabitants. 20 % of the city budget should be used in the partnership region. This Global Cities dialogue would help to work on global solutions and would strengthen the network with others regions.

The biggest chance for a global dialogue can be seen in the Kyoto contract:

 $CO_2$  emission can be addressed world-wide. That means instead of using a lot of money to have a little impact here, it is more efficient to use the money equivalent in China, India or other developing countries. That would also be part of the contract for cleaner production mechanism. This deals should not be misunderstood as "buy us out". We have to "buy us out" much more than now. We will have to spend more for social and environmental development around the globe. That will be the only chance to get things better."

#### 6. Intro-statement João Ribeiro da Costa: "What is sustainable development?"



*João Ribeiro da Costa* pointed out that sustainable development implies predicting the future. From the past we see that a lot of predictions concerning the environment were wrong. It is clear that sustainability is a global affair and not an affair of a single country. Keeping in mind that sustainable development implies prediction and is global we can resume that sustainable development is a massive task. The solution of this task depends on the action of each of us on a local basis. Here telematics apply. As an example, Telematics means to have a network that connects people to the whole world. For the first time ever it is now feasible for us to act locally and to contribute on a global level. The only way to have sustainable development is to apply telematics at a local level and to combine locally available data on a global level by using available expertise.

#### 7. First conclusion of the Chair

*Siegfried Rupprecht* resumed that all statements reflect a variety of backgrounds, and perspectives: on a local, regional, European and global level. Siegfried Rupprecht encouraged the floor to participate actively in the discussion.

#### 8. Reaction from the Floor: Teemu Virtanen

Teemu Virtanen (air pollution coordinator for the Helsinki metropolitan area, FI) reacted to F. J.



Radermacher concerning the task of delivering technology to developing countries. He stressed the importance of financing better technology in developing countries and promoting the use of better technologies. Teemu Virtanen highlighted the importance to encourage the European industry to contribute to a better environmental situation. He compared the requirement of an improved environmental situation nowadays with the exploit of flying to the moon in the sixties. If we invest in an improved environment we will also have the spin-off effect

of the development of new technologies. These new products (state of art technology) should also be used to support developing countries.

#### 9. Reaction from the Floor: Horst Kremers, Berlin

*Horst Kremers* required to have more detailed documentation of the results of projects funded by national science foundations or financed by the EC. Technicians from computer sciences need a lot of information about technical details. This information would also be necessary for the implementation of technology on new sites. The documentation of scientific projects is often not sufficient documentations do not comprise all information. Knowledge is not spread widely enough as it would be necessary for a satisfying transfer of already developed technology. Often the contractors do not report sufficiently about the results of their work and the funded projects are not supporting the information society.

#### 10. Conclusion and questions raised by the Chair to F. J. Radermacher:



*Siegfried Rupprecht:* "What special action is demanded from decisionmakers from regional and local levels? What are the demands in the telematics area concerning global networking, and partnership agreements with cities in developing countries? How can the development be changed and how can the development be challenged?"

#### 11. Reaction from the Panel: Franz Josef Radermacher

*Franz Josef Radermacher:* "The main message is: Often the developed solution turns out to be the new problem. That is a historical fact and completely normal. New technologies cause new – and often greater problems and that is the driving force for new technologies with new problems on higher levels."

Concerning the statement of Teemu Virtanen and his comparison with the flight to the moon F. J. Radermacher mentioned that computers are responsible for a lot of new environmental problems by e.g. increasing mountains of electronic garbage. That problem is driven by the price-level of electronic gadgets as e.g. mobile phones are nowadays give-aways. "However, every year everything becomes more environmental friendly."It will turn out as a disaster if everybody on the globe has the same behaviour and uses as much resources as it is done in the high-technology countries." New technologies are only accepted if they are able to deliver new services cheaper as before. That is the real idea of the "eco-efficiency".

"Environmental arguments are often used only for marketing reasons. Consumption cannot be the way leading to a sustainable development. Believing in technology is not the way that leads to a global sustainable development."

Mr. Radermacher pointed out that it is more important to implement a fair global system for the use of wealth than to believe in technology. Therefore it will be necessary to have a fair way of trading the pollution rights. "After an agreement on that the market will find the best solution for the use of a limited amount of  $CO_2$  emissions. That means that we have to take care of an appropriate global market system for selling  $CO_2$  emissions. If this framework is set up in a satisfying way, the right of the market will do the rest. Setting up such a framework means also to have limitations in our lifestyle. That limitations will be caused by the limit of  $CO_2$  pollution that is available for us. That implies that we accept that everybody has the right to use the same amount of  $CO_2$  emissions. E.g. we would have to buy  $CO_2$  emissions from other countries. Consumption would become more expensive here and - on a longer view – consumption will also become more expensive there. The consequence will be a social development in developing countries." I suggest that particular actions for towns could be to establish networks with other towns which would influence the global contracts. The benefits would be the support of towns in the south and awareness building for the real problems. The information of the public about this situation has to be enforced.

#### 12. Reaction from the Floor: Stefan Jensen

*Stefan Jensen* (Ministry of Environment of Lower Saxony, DE): raised the - provocative - question if the EC should terminate their Telematic Programme and use the saved money for a transition programme for Eastern – Eastern European Countries to follow the path that FJR sketched?

#### 13. Reaction from the Floor: Maria Kazmukova

*Maria Kazmukova* (Senior consultant in air quality, City Development Authority Prague, ENWAP member; CZ): "Technology is absolutely useful for the global development. Technology is the only way to search for alternative energies. The risk is to impose our way of living to developing countries. That would be the worst thing we can do for them also due to cultural differences.

Maybe the new technologies that would be invented can actually save our environment. Technology should be used to reinvent our use of energy. We have to go on in our technologies to find a energy which is more sustainable and more environmental friendly."

#### 14. Reaction from the Floor: Ivica Ružić

*Ivica Ružić* (Center for Marine & Environmental Research of the Ruđer Bošković Institute, ENWAP member; HR) pointed out that there are two different things discussed in this panel discussion. He described that from his point of view Telematics is not a technology to change or save the environment. Telematics can only be used to exchange our knowledge faster, more efficiently, and cheaper. That

causes that we can react faster. Telematics can help to address the public and politicians more efficiently. Telematics does not influence the decision that is taken after the exchange of knowledge. Ivica Ružić mentioned that the knowledge is nowadays collected all over the world and that we want to use this knowledge to make decisions. Telematics can help us to make right decisions.

#### 15. Reaction from the Panel: Franz Jungwirth

*Franz Jungwirth* declared that the role of new technologies should not only be seen in a negative way. The development of new technologies offers the possibility of the reduction of energy consumption. To answer the question of the chair of what can be done by local and regional decision-makers: Any decision needs the acceptance of the public. Sustainability starts on a very small and private scale. Only when the idea of sustainability is accepted by a broad public, this public will understand and will agree to decisions on a global scale.

#### 16. Reaction from the Panel: Joachim Lorenz

*Joachim Lorenz* pointed out that only the best technology should be transferred globally. The trade of emission rights would not support the transfer of state of the art technology. The trade of emission would support the transfer of old and outdated technologies. Joachim Lorenz pointed also out the importance of the implementation of world-wide standards for emissions. It has to be kept in mind that the implementation will last some time. The implementation of world-wide standards for emissions will also demand the full potential of innovations of our industry and will cause the development of new state of the art technologies.

In the experience of the City of Munich with its partnership-town Harare, the capital of Zimbabwe Joachim Lorenz pointed out the possibilities of Telematics to improve the environmental and health situation in developing countries. This improvement can be done by using the whole potential of Telematics for disseminating the information on environmental issues.

Telematics will play an important role in building new networks and partnerships - even on a global scale - by the exchange of information across borders and long distances. This loss of distances is necessary to build global partnerships. The development of new high quality technology is important to have the security of a high rate of employment. "We have to save our human and creative capital by the development of new technologies."

#### 17. Reaction from the Panel: Nick Hodges

*Nick Hodges* mentioned that the benefit for the community itself is important. He pointed out that some transport management systems which work in Europe cannot be transferred to the United States because the cost benefit analysis does not work in the USA due to the low fuel price there. "The transport industry has a strangle hold by that and accepting that strangle hold would be the wrong way." People in the neighbourhood of an industrial location want to have the pollution load of that location reduced and they will not accept the payment of this industry to a developing country with the aim to improve the state of the environment on the other side of the globe. (That means emission trading will hardly be understood by people who are directly affected by pollution). "Telematics can play a positive role in improving the environment: Telematics is a way to bringing information together. It makes us able to simplify data and present them at the appropriate level. That will help the public to understand and that will influence the way that the politicians decide how their community should be organised." Telematics offers also the opportunity for people to change and choose e.g. by using telematics for teleworking or for studying on remote sites. Also high quality employees can stay in such remote or/and rural areas by using Telematics.

Coming back to mobility, Nick Hodges noted that there is the idea of road users charging. Some people agree to charging and see the benefit of using public transport, some do not. Nick Hodges pointed out the importance of having the choice and this should be a community decision.

#### 18. Final Statement: Franz Josef Radermacher

*Franz Josef Radermacher* said that the Information Society Forum has been working for many years on that issues and Telematics is in the kernel of that work.

He sees that Telematics is the big opportunity for a better world, and it is the only mechanism that we



have for development in the South. It is said that there is a factor 10 of improvement necessary for the next ten years and that can only be achieved with new technologies and with open markets. Telematics has to be used for economic reasons and not for sustainability reasons. "The question is: Does telematics help for sustainability?" "The answer is: It can help and it can make things worse. The major question is the question about global politics." "If we keep the WTO (World Trade Organisation) global regime or if we even extend it to investments and even extend it to services, if we just stay in the logic that we have now, we will end up all of us somewhere between US and Brazil with a "80-20" social system and we will end up absolutely not sustainable!"

"If we want to be sustainable we have to implement a Euro-

pean logic, that means we need a social ecological market system on the global scale, like in the EU with respect to the new accession countries. That means that the richer countries have to co-finance the social and ecological system of the poorer countries. That means we have to invest into co-financing standards systems. The poorer countries can only agree to standards and implement better technologies if that is co-financed, otherwise they will stay on a more unsustainable way. This model has to be transferred to a global scale. The North has to invest much more on a global scale for others to be able to lead them to better standards."

"The crucial point is to take money from the richer countries to invest it in other countries for more socio-ecological development. Taking money out here means to pollute less. We have to limit our activities by having things more expensive."

"The danger of the idea of building a green world here – in Europe – is to end up in a more polluted world and to have our social system destroyed. I would not be surprised if we would get a two class medicine within ten years, if we get privately funded top universities within ten years. At the moment we are seeing that our most important European achievements are destroyed by world market pressure and our illusion is to save it here. But the only chance is to build a global partnership."

It will depend on a European way to a global sustainable Information Society and it will take all the emphasis of our politicians for the next negotiations, e.g. the MAI (Multilateral Agreement on Investment), the Post-Kyoto, the Millenniums Rounds of the WTO and of the GATT (General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade). Once these agreements are signed, there is not much we can do any more. With the signatures under these global contracts all our dreams will be destroyed!"

#### 19. Final Statement: Joachim Lorenz

*Joachim Lorenz* stressed the importance of the dissemination and the export of information out of Europe into all parts of the world. Therefore it is necessary to build networks and partnerships on national, international and on a global level. These partnerships would be necessary to have distances decreased and to have time for the task of information dissemination. Telematics is presently the only appropriate tool therefore. Building partnerships should also aim into new environmental standards.

#### 20. Final Statement: Franz Jungwirth

*Franz Jungwirth* stressed the importance of the dissemination of information and knowledge about how to use this information on a global scale. Regarding to his personal experience with a Chinese partner region, with 8.000.000 inhabitants, he notes that it is very important to transfer only the best technology. That should also be a challenge for timesaving by the implementation of new technologies and by using the already existing knowledge. Besides it is very important to enforce the development and the use of new technologies in a broader way in the own country.

#### 21. Final Statement: Nick Hodges

*Nick Hodges*: "Telematics enables us to raise people's awareness and to understand various things. The future lies in a good education of our youth to raise their awareness of impacts to the community. They can make up their mind how they want their community to function and what they feel to be their responsibility towards the "rest of the world"."

#### 22. Final Statement: Violeta Kauneliene

*Violeta Kauneliene:* "Co-operation in a proper way helps development in general. Telematics has the function of a tool therefore."

#### 23. Final Statement: João Ribeiro da Costa

*João Ribeiro da Costa* told as an example the story of the process of decision-making that happened in 1989: The objective of the Minister of Environment was to decide how to invest money in the textile industry for supporting waste water treatment systems The aim was to improve water quality of rivers. After the Minister consulted a River Information System where the water quality was visualized with all the details about pollution sources, an unanimous decision could be made.

For João Ribeiro da Costa that story shows the two faces of Telematics:

- Telematics helps locally by improving the decision making process. Having better informed decision-makers will lead to better decisions.
- Telematics can help to make things more transparent. E.g. if the data are available for everybody on the Internet, public awareness will be raised and politicians will have to respect this fact in their decisions.

In both ways Telematics can contribute to a more sustainable development.

#### 24. Statement from the Floor: Wolfgang Boch

*Wolfgang Boch (*European Commission, Directorate-General Information Society Head of Unit, Applications for Environment Protection): "The prime issue what we are discussing is *change*. We want a certain development to change.

The question is: What are the driving forces for change? Telematics for itself can never be a goal. It can only be a means to support a goal and to support the implementation of an objective. The whole issue on environmental considerations have been largely – not only in the western world but globally – regulated by regulations. The consideration e.g. for the service market has been driven by regula-



tions. So far in the environment. We have to invest much more in thinking, how can we revise the approach that the service market in environment is driven purely by regulations. The concerns of Mr. Radermacher are *who and what are the driving forces on this globe*, the driving forces are some rules of economy. If we were in a situation that there are economic driving forces to support voluntary agreements, voluntary actions, maybe there would be a lot of change. "

"Coming back to the question what is the contribution of Telematics to sustainable development: Telematics offers an infrastructure where new services can be developed for many purposes. There is the issue of becoming more aware, as an in-

dividual, as a manage or as a politician."

With regard to the early past the costs for Telematics and for the infrastructure are steadily decreasing by getting more advanced and getting more user-friendly. Today it becomes practicable that a Telematics tool for environmental planning purposes - e.g. where to place an industrial development area - can be handled by someone who can be trained in a short period on a tool that runs on a high performance workstation. In the past a cray – machine was necessary for that purpose. In this way things became reality.

"My concerns and issues are: How can we change the kind of evolution of driving forces in this process, and there we have to see how to make best use of the Telematics options. Telematics is not an answer to our problems but it offers options we should try to make best use of it."

#### 25. Statement from the Floor: Maria Kazmukova

*Maria Kazmukova*: "Technology transfer and the transfer of Telematics helps. Telematics is necessary to understand the data which are available and to understand the consequences of our decisions. It is necessary to have easy access, better dissemination, better understanding of the Information Society Programme."

She pointed out the role of the ENWAP User "handbooks" ("User Requirements in Air and Water Management Systems" and "Good Practice Cases in Air and Water Management Systems for Europe") "The documents about the results of the Information Society Programme would increase the technology transfer and help the people in Europe to choose the appropriate technology. It should give the information what can be done by Telematics."

#### PARTICIPANT LIST

### PARTICIPANT LIST

Name	Function /Department; Organisation	Address	City	Tel	Email
AUSTRIA					
Alexander Höbart	Project Coordinator, International Society for Environmental Protection	Marxergasse 3/20	AT - 1030 Vienna	+ 43 1 715 28 28 16	alexander.hoebart @cedar.univie.ac.at
Bernhard Nowotny	Project Coordinator, International Society for Environmental Protection	Marxergasse 3/20	AT - 1030 Vienna	+ 43 1 715 28 28 15	bernhard.nowotny@cedar.univie.ac.at
Kerstin Placer	Technical Expert, Federal Environmental Agency Austria	Spittelauer Lände 5	AT - 1090 Vienna	+ 43 1 313 04 54 12	placer@ubavie.gv.at
Martin Car *	Baustoffrecyclingverband	Karlsgasse 5	AT - 1040 Vienna	+ 43 1 504 72 89	car@brv.at
Martin Mudri	Project Coordinator, International Society for Environmental Protection	Marxergasse 3/20	AT - 1030 Vienna	+ 43 1 715 28 28 11	martin.mudri@cedar.univie.ac.at
Michael Hadrbolec *	Austrian Federal Environment Agency	Spittelauer Lände 5	AT - 1090 Vienna	+ 43 1 313 04 54 08	hadrbolec@ubavie.gv.at
Werner Pillmann *	General Secretary, International Society for Environmental Protection	Marxergasse 3/20	AT - 1030 Vienna	+ 43 1 715 28 28	werner.pillmann@cedar.univie.ac.at
BELGIUM					
Petra Mollet *	Director, POLIS	18, Square de Meeus	BE - 1050 Brussels	+ 32 2 552 0863	polis@pophost.eunet.be
Wolfgang Boch *	DG Information Society, Head of Unit Appl. for the Environment,	29, Av. de Beaulieu	BE - 1160 Brussel	+ 32 2 2963 591	wolfgang.boch@cec.be
Wolfgang Güssow *	DG Environment - D3, European Commission,	174, Boulevard du Triomphe	BE - 1049 Brussel	+ 32 2 295 37 08	wolfgang.gussow@cec.be
BULGARIA					
Dobri Dimitrov *	Head Forecasting Dept., National Institute of Meteorology & Hydrology	66 Tzarigradsko Shose boul.	BG - 1784 Sofia	+ 359 2 974 44 09	dobri.dimitrov@meteo.bg
George Tsonev	Municipality of Rousse	6 Olimpy Panov	BG - 7000 Rousse	+ 359 822 38 071	ovos@rousse.bg
Julia Stefanova	NAMBR	Alabin 16-20	BG - Sofia	+ 359 2 980 0304	namrb@lgi-bg.org
CROATIA					
Ivica Ružić *	Env. Specialist, Ruđer Bošković Inst. for Marine and Env. Research	Bijenicka 54	HR - 10000 Zagreb	+ 385 1 4561140	ruzic@olimp.irb.hr
CZECH REPUBLI	C				
Jan Fiala	Ministry of Regional Development		CZ - Prague	+ 422 2 2486 1313	fiajan@mmr.cz
Jaroslav Solc*	Manager of Prague environmental Information System (IOZIP)	Zatecka 2	CZ - 110 01 Prague 1	+ 420 2 2448 5314	jsolc@imip.monet.cz
Jiri Jahn	PUDIS a.s. Prague	Voctarova 1a	CZ - 18000 Prague	+ 420 2 68 46372	pudiseko@anet.cz
Jiri Novak *	Researcher, Czech Hydrometeorological Institute		CZ - 143 06 Prague	+ 420 2 44 033 451	novakj@chmi.cz
Katerina Cechova*	Olomouc City Council	Horni nam. 1	CZ - 771 27 Olomouc	+ 420 68 55 13 165	kopka@umo.cz
Maria Kazmukova*	City Development Authority Prague	Hradcanske Namesti 8	CZ - 11854 Praha 1	+ 420 2 2430 8452	Telmat@comp.cz
Pavel Rittenauer	Director, PPU-Babtie s.r.o. (PPI)	Vyzlovská 2243/36	CZ - Prague 10 100 00	+ 42 02 781 25 37	babtiegp@login.cz

126

#### PARTICIPANTS LIST

DENMARK					
Sigfus Bjarnason *	Project Manager, European Environment Agency (EEA)	Kongens Nytorv 6	DK - 1050 Copenhagen	+ 45 33367114	sigfus.bjarnason@eea.eu.int
ESTONIA					
Madis Korvits	Tallin City Government	Harju 13	EE -10130 Tallin	+ 372 6404 573	m.korvits@tallinnlv.ee
FINLAND					
Teemu Virtanen*	Regional Coordinator, Helsinki Metropolitan Area Council	Opastinsilea 6A	FI - 00520 Helsinki	+ 358 9 1561233	teemu.virtanen@ytv.fi
FRANCE					
Pierre Flori *	Conseil régional de Rhône-Alpes	78, route de Paris - BP 19	FR - 69751 Charbonières-les- Bains Cedex	+ 33 472 595 131	dee@crra.globalintranet.francetelecom.fr
Samuel Olampi *	ARMINES/Ecole des Mines de Paris		FR - 06904 Sophia-Antipolis	+	samuel.olampi@cindy.cma.fr
GERMANY					
Gabriele Spies	Health Monitoring Expert, Department of Environment, City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 233 215 49	gabi.spies@iname.com
Uwe Geuß	Digital Subcontractor, Department of Environment, City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 233 215 49	uwegeuss@gmx.de
Thomas Hausler	Remote Sensing Expert, Applied Remote Sensing Ltd.	Amulfstrasse 197	DE - 80634 Munich	+ 49 89 1215 2820	haeu@gaf.de
Stefan Saradeth	Remote Sensing Expert, Applied Remote Sensing Ltd.	Amulfstrasse 198	DE - 80634 Munich	+ 49 89 1215 2820	sara@gaf.de
Andreas Jaeschke	Head of Dept., Inst.of Applied Informatics, Forschungszentrum Karslruho	e Postfach 3640	DE - 76201 Karlsruhe	+ 49 7247 82 5702/03	aja@iai.fzk.de
Bernard Page	Researcher, University of Hamburg. Dept. of Informatics	Vogt-Kölln-Str 30	DE - 22527Hamburg	+ 49 40 54542426	page@informatik.uni-hamburg.de
Christian Dade	bfz Bildungsforschung	Obere Turnstraße 8	DE - 90429 Nuremberg	+	dade@bf.bfz.de
Daniela Schäfer	Health and Env. Information Expert, Dept. of Env., City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 233 244 54	
Franz Josef Radermacher *	* Director, Research Institute for Applied Knowledge Processing	Helmholtzstraße 16	DE - 89010 Ulm	+ 49 731 501 100	radermacher@faw.uni-ulm.de
Franz Jungwirth *	Bavarian State Ministry for State Development and Env. Affairs	Rosenkavalierplatz 2	DE - 81925 München	+	
Georg Ritter	Health and Env. Information Expert, Dept. of Env., City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 23323597	ritter@umw.cube.net
Günter Wegrampf *	Head of Sector, Munich Department of Environment, City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 23323597	
Horst Kremers	Researcher,	PO Box 200548	DE - 13515 Berlin	+ 49 30 3728587	horst_kremers@compuserve.com
Joachim Lorenz *	Head of Department, Department of Environment, City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 23323600	lorenz@umw.cube.net
Josef Burgard*	Engineer, German Research Center for Artificial Intelligence Inc.	Stuhlsatzenhausweg 3	DE - 66123 Saar-bruecken	+ 49 681 9375-110	josef.burgard@stz.dfki.uni-sb.de
Kristina Voigt	Technical Expert (Public Authority), Nuremberg City Council	Jugol Stapdter Landstr. 1	DE - 85764 Nuremberg	+ 49 89 31874029	kvoigt@gsf.de
Markus Spring *	Health and Env. Information Expert, Dept. of Env., City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 233 235 97	markus.spring@mindless.com
Moses Mensah	Executive Director, MYM Envirotech Services Ltd.	Mariendorfer Damm 34	DE - 12019 Berlin	+ 94 30 706 036 21	mymens@online.de

PAN-EUROPEAN USER FORUM ON ENVIRONMENT TELEMATICS, MUNICH 1999

#### PARTICIPANT LIST

Rolf Annecke	Health and Env. Information Expert, Dept. of Env., City of Munich	Bayerstrasse 28 A	DE - 80335 Munich	+ 49 89 233 274 72	annecke@umw.cube.net
Siegfried Rupprecht *	Director, Rupprecht Consult Research & Con-sulting	Dellbruecker Hauptstr. 34	DE - 51069 Köln	+ 49 221 689 72 54	srupprecht@netcologne.de
Silke Hertz*	Amt für Umweltschutz und Lebensmittelüberwachung	Willy-Brandt-Platz 2	DE - 50679 Köln	+ 49 221 221 34611	silke.hertz@stadt-koeln.de
Stefan Jensen	Project Leader ETC/CDS, Ministry of Environment of Lower Saxony	Archivstr. 2	DE - 30169 Hannover	+ 49 511 120 3452	stefan.jensen@mu.niedersachsen.de
Werner Flacke *	ESRI Gesellschaft für Systemforschung und Umweltplanung mbH	Ringstraße 7	DE - 85402 Kranzberg	+ 49 81 66 6 77 0	w.flacke@esri-germany.de
Lauter, M.	GAF m.b.H- München	Arnulfstr. 197	DE- München	+49 89 1215280	
Waich, G.	EUROMAP GmbH	Arnulfstr. 197	DE - München	+49 89 1215280	
Haase, M.	FAW, Ulm	Helholtzstr. 16	DE -89010 Ulm	+49 731 731-501550	
GREECE					
Kostas Lagouvardos *	Laboratory of Meteorology, Dept. of Applied Physics	Panepistimioupolis, PHYS-5	GR - 15784 Athens	+ 30 1 7274835	lagouvar@skiron.mg.uoa.gr
HUNGARY					
Csaba Madarasz	North-Transdanubian Environmental Authority	Arpad 28-32	HU - 9021 Gyor	+ 36 96 312 888	edkf@mail.datanet.hu
Dariusz Urbaniak	Project Officer, Information Exchange Dept., REC	Ady Endre ut 9-11	HU - 2000 Szentendre	+ 36 26 311 199	darek@fs2.bp.rec.hu
Ferenc Dombai	Ministry of Environment	Fo utca 44	HU - 1394 Budapest	+ 36 1 457 3476	dombai.ferenc@ktmdou2-ktm.hu
Gabor Barcsai	North-Transdanubian Environmental Authority	Arpad 28-32	HU - 9021 Gyor	+ 36 96 312 888	edkf@mail.datanet.hu
Gyorgy Pintér *	Water Quality Expert, Institute for Water Pollution Control of VITUKI	Kvassay Jeno 1	HU - 1095 Budapest	+ 36 1 215 6140	pintergyorgy@attmail.com
Jerome Simpson	Project Manager, Information Exchange Dept., REC	Ady Endre ut 9-11	HU - 2000 Szentendre	+ 36 26 311 199	jsimpson@rec.org
Lajos Horvath	North-Transdanubian Environmental Authority	Arpad 28-32	HU - 9021 Gyor	+ 36 96 312 888	edkf@mail.datanet.hu
Paul Csagoly *	Dept. Head, Information Exchange, REC	Ady Endre ut 9-11	HU - 2000 Szentendre	+ 36 26 311 199	pcsagoly@rec.org
Zoltan Tamas	City Council of Gyor	Varoshaz ter 1	HU - 9021 Gyor	+ 36 96 500 371	
LITHUANIA					
Antanas Mieliauskas	Municipality of Marijampole	J. Basanaviciaus a.1	LT - 4520 Marijampole	+ 370 43 90053	avs@marijampole.lt
Kestutis Kvietkus *	Head of Dept. Air Quality Management, Ministry of Environment	A. Juozapaviciaus 9	LT - 2600 Vilnius	+ 370 2 721567	kvietkus@ktl.mii.lt
Neringa Vilutyte	Vilnius Healthy City Bureau	Vytenio 13	LT - 2600 Vilnius	+ 370 2 652 898	neringa@post.omnitel.net
Violeta Kauneliene *	ECAT Lithuania	Laisves Al. 94	LT - 3000 Kaunas	+ 370 7 209 880	violeta@ecat.lt
NETHERLANDS					
Jaap Van Gour	Decision Maker (Public Authority), Rotterdam OBR-PIR	PO Box 6575	NL - 3002 Rotterdam	+ 31 10 4897103	j.goor@obr.rotterdam.nl
POLAND					
Andrzej Rochowiecki	Voivodship Inspectorate of Environmental Protection	Waly Chrobrego 4	PL - 70-501 Szczecin	+ 48 91 433 9318	andy@wios.szczecin. pl
Elzbieta Polak	City Hall of Malomice	Plac Slowianski 17	PL - 67-320 Malomice	+ 48 68 377 2545	

PARTICIPANTS LIST

Harek BaranovskiUNEP-GRID/WarawMerliniego 9PL - 02-511Waraw+ 48 22 627 4623mareko@gridu.plHarezea PluciennikCity Council of OpoleRynck RatuszPL - 45-015 Opole+ 48 77 4545 755urzadó@m.opole.pl/*ioleta GiessiekzukCity Council of OpoleRynck RatuszPL - 45-015 Opole+ 48 77 4545 755urzadó@m.opole.pl/*ioleta GiessiekzukCity Council of OpolePL - 66-100 Zagan+ 48 68 377 5574urzadó@m.opole.pl/*ioleta Gosta /*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyEdificio Uninova, Quinta da Tore:PT - 2825 Monte de Capariea+ 351 1 2948096jrc@gunnova.pt/*ioleta Gosta /*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyEdificio Uninova, Quinta da Tore:PT - 2825 Monte de Capariea+ 351 1 2948096jrc@gunnova.pt/*ioleta Alexa AlexaPI - 68-100 Zagan+ 48 68 377 5574viel@gunnova.ptmareid@gunnova.pt/*ioleta Gosta /*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyEdificio Uninova, Quinta da Tore:PT - 2825 Monte de Capariea+ 351 1 2948096jrc@gunnova.pt/*ioleta Gosta /*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyYagansheinNo- 1000 Ramineu Valeea+ 40 50 73 1020danel_ioneseu@ghomatin eon/*ioleta Gosta /*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyYagansheinNo- 1000 Ramineu Valeea+ 40 50 73 1020danel_ioneseu@ghomatin sk/*ioleta Gosta /*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies Ma	<b></b>					
Harzen PluciennikCity Council of OpoleRynek RatuszPl 45-015 Opole+48 77 4545 755urzad@um opole plJoleta CicsielezukCity Council of OpoleRynek RatuszPl 45-015 Opole+48 77 4545 755urzad@um opole plJofn BorowskaCity Council of OpoleRynek RatuszPl 68-100 Zagan+48 68 377 2545zaganum@mac.com plJoromski BurowskaUrzad MiastaPL - 68-100 Zagan+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTPolesortPL - 68-100 Zagan+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*Polesort+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*Profesort+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*Profesort+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*Profesort+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*ProfesortPL - 68-100 Zagan+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*ProfesortPL - 68-100 Zagan+48 68 377 5245zaganum@mac.com plPORESORTFunderson Acoust*ProfesortPL - 68-100 Zagan+40 50 73 1020daniel ionescu@hotmail.comPORESORTFunderson Acoust*ProfesortPC - 690 Partin+40 50 73 1020daniel ionescu@hotmail.comStortFiy Hall of MatrinNajanskeho 1Sk - 074 05 Banska Bystine+421 88 413 9398svihlova@plb acid.acid.comPara StorigeCity Couneil of Nitr	Janusz Radziejowski *	Undersecretary of State, Ministry of Env. Prot., Nat. Res. and Forestry	Wawelska 52/54	PL - 00-922 Warsaw	+ 48 22 825 3346	jradziej@mos.gov.pl
NotestandCity Council of OpoleRynek RatuszPL - 45 - 015 Opole+48 77 4545 75urzad@um opole plJafna BorowskaCity Council of ZaganPL - 68 - 100 Zagan+48 68 377 2545zaganum@max.com plBorowskiUrzad MinataPL - 68 - 100 Zagan+48 68 377 574YeORTUCALPI - 68 - 100 Zagan+48 68 377 5574YeORTUCALProfessor, University of I isbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyFdificio Uninova, Quinta da TorrePT - 2825 Monte de Caparica+351 1 2948046jrc@uninova ptROMANIAPandie IonescuRO - 1000 Ramnicu Valcea+40 50 73 1020daniel ionescu@botmail.comSUOVAK REPUBL/CUrzad MinatinYajanskeho 1SK - 036 01 Martin+420 842 2391 28janceskow@martin.skJonas Stilova*City Hall of MartinVajanskeho 1SK - 940 05 Banken Byarre+421 84 413 9398svihlova@phartin.skJonas Stilova*City Council of NiraStefanokova 60SK - 94005 Nira+421 87 502 218mantir@gar.skn.t.skJOVAK REPUBL/CUrzat Statistical Office of SloveniaVojkova 13S1 - 1000 Ljubljana+366 61 178 4423barbara bernard@gov siJamich SabieStatistical Office of SloveniaVozarski Pot 12S1 - 1000 Ljubljana+386 61 178 2423barbara bernard@gov siJamich SabieStatistical Office of Public HealthIpaveeva 18S1 - 1000 Ljubljana+386 61 178 2423barbara bernard@gov siJamich SabieStatistical Office of Public HealthIpaveeva 18S1 - 1101 Ljubljana+386 61 178 2423barbar@gov.si<	Marek Baranowski	UNEP-GRIDWarsaw	Merliniego 9	PL - 02-511 Warsaw	+ 48 22 627 4623	marek@gridw.pl
Join Borowska       City Council of Zagan       PL - 68-100 Zagan       + 48 68 377 2545       zaganim@max.com.pl         Jorowski       Urzad Miasta       PL - 68-100 Zagan       + 48 68 377 2545       zaganim@max.com.pl         VORTUGAL       Biosta       PL - 68-100 Zagan       + 48 68 377 2545       zaganim@max.com.pl         VORTUGAL       Biosta       PL - 68-100 Zagan       + 48 68 377 2545       zaganim@max.com.pl         VORTUGAL       Biosta       PL - 68-100 Zagan       + 48 68 377 2545       zaganim@max.com.pl         Winter Control       Biosta       PL - 68-100 Zagan       + 48 68 377 2545       zaganim@max.com.pl         VORTUGAL       Biosta       Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and Technology       Edificio Uninova, Quinta da Torre       PT - 2825 Monte dc Caparie a + 351 1 2948096       jre@minova.pt         Notice A       Ramicu Valcea       Ramicu Valcea       redo Statistica       daniel Lonescu@hotmail.com         SLOVAK REPUBLIC       waterea       Radvanska 9       SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica       + 421 87 502 218       msunitra@m statist.ad         Barbara Bernard       Ministry of Environment       Vojkova 13       SI - 1000 Ljabijana       + 386 61 178 4423       barbara bernard@gav.si         Statistical Office of Slovenia       Vozaraki Pot 12       SI - 1000 Ljabijana	Marzena Pluciennik	City Council of Opole	Rynek Ratusz	PL - 45-015 Opole	+ 48 77 4545 755	urzad@um.opole.pl
borowski       Urzad Miasta       PI 68-100 Zagan       + 48.68.377.5574         ORTUGAL	Violetta Ciesielczuk	City Council of Opole	Rynek Ratusz	PL - 45 -015 Opole	+ 48 77 4545 755	urzad@um.opole.pl
PORTUGAL <ul> <li>ada Ribeiro da Costa *</li> <li>Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and Technology</li> <li>Falificio Uninova, Quinta da Torre</li> <li>PT - 2825 Monte de Caparica + 351 1 2948096</li> <li>jrc@uninova.pl</li> </ul> Annali Lonescu         Ramnicu Valeea Town Hall         32 Gen. Praporgescu         RO - 1000 Ramnicu Valeea + 40 50 73 1020         daniel ionescu@hotmail.com           SUOVAK REPUBLIC         Institute for Municipal and Regional Development         Radvanska 9         SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica + 421 88 413 9398         svihlova@bs.amet.sk           Jana Svihlova*         Institute for Municipal and Regional Development         Radvanska 9         SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica + 421 88 413 9398         svihlova@bs.amet.sk           SLOVENIA         Institute for Municipal and Regional Development         Radvanska 9         SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica + 421 88 413 9398         svihlova@bs.amet.sk           SLOVENIA         Institute for Municipal and Regional Development         Radvanska 9         SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica + 421 88 413 9398         svihlova@bs.amet.sk           SLOVENIA         Institute of Public Netters         Stefanokova 60         SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica + 421 88 413 9398         svihlova@bs.amet.sk           SLOVENIA         Institute of Public Netters         Vozarski Pot 12         SI - 1000 1jubljana + 386 61 1776 225         stanard@gov.si	Zofia Borowska	City Council of Zagan		PL - 68-100 Zagan	+ 48 68 377 2545	zaganum@max.com.pl
noise Ribeiro da Costa*Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and TechnologyEdificio Univova, Quinta da TorrPT - 2825 Monte de Caparia+ 351 1 2948096jre@uninova.ptROMANIANamiei IonescuRamnicu Valeca Town Hall32 Gen. PraporgescuRO - 1000 Ramnicu Valeca+ 40 50 73 1020daniel_ionescu@hotmail.comSLOVAK REPUBLICVajanskcho 1SK - 036 01 Martin+ 420 842 2391 L8janceokova@martin.skJana Svihlova*Institute for Municipal and Regional DevelopmentRadvanska 9SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica+ 421 88 413 9398svihlova@ba.anet.skJana Svihlova*Institute for Municipal and Regional DevelopmentRadvanska 9SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica+ 421 87 02 218manufa@ar.sknet.skSLOVENIAJanied SabiteCity Council of NitraStefanokova 60SK - 99006 Nitra+ 421 88 66 1178 4423barbara.bernard@gov.siJanied SabiteStatistical Office of SloveniaVozaki Pot 12SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 178 4423barbara.bernard@gov.siJanied SabiteStatistical Office of SloveniaVozaki Pot 12SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 176 225zaranstoji@giv.siSparan Stoji@*EkonovaLepodvorska 31SI - 1101 Ljubljana+ 386 61 176 225zaranstoji@givb.siSparan Stoji@*EkonovaEkonovaSP - Madrid+ 34 91 411 23 11direccion madrid@grupoenvironment.comSWITZERLANDVarezti y of Applied Sciences North-western SwitzerlandRigenbachstraße 10CH - 4601 Otten+ 41 62 286 0 783peterdavis@maris.nlSWITZERL	Borowski	Urzad Miasta		PL - 68-100 Zagan	+ 48 68 377 5574	
ROMANIA       Description       Description <thdescription< th=""></thdescription<>	PORTUGAL					
Number of the second stress of the second	João Ribeiro da Costa *	Professor, University of Lisbon, Faculty of Sciencies and Technology	Edificio Uninova, Quinta da Torre	PT - 2825 Monte de Caparica	+ 351 1 2948096	jrc@uninova.pt
SLOVAK REPUBLIC         vandrea Jancoskova       City Hall of Martin       Vajanskeho 1       SK - 036 01 Martin       + 420 842 2391 28       jancoskova@martin.sk         vandrea Jancoskova       Institute for Municipal and Regional Development       Radvanska 9       SK - 074 05 Banska Bystria       + 421 88 413 9398       svihlova@bb snet.sk         vandres Sublova*       Oty Council of Nitra       Stefanokova 60       SK - 974 05 Banska Bystria       + 421 88 413 9398       svihlova@bb snet.sk         SLOVENIA       Stefanokova 60       SK - 974 05 Banska Bystria       + 421 88 413 9398       svihlova@bb snet.sk         SLOVENIA       Stefanokova 60       SK - 9500 Nitra       + 421 88 413 9398       svihlova@bb snet.sk         SLOVENIA       Stefanokova 60       SK - 974 05 Banska Bystria       + 421 88 413 9398       svihlova@bb snet.sk         SLOVENIA       Stefanokova 60       SK - 974 05 Banska Bystria       + 421 88 413 9398       svihlamaftarsket.sk         SLOVENIA       Stefanoka 60       SK - 0120       SK - 01201       stafsket 61 173 2030       shoka bystria       + 386 61 173 2030       shok@geov.si         Vana Stejane Karez       Ekonova       Lepodvorska 31       SI - 1011 jubljana       + 386 61 177 6225       zoranstoji@gibe.si         Stefan Starez       Everentitis       Si - 0210 Starez       S	ROMANIA					
Andrea JancoskovaCity Hall of MartinVajanskeho 1SK - 036 01 Martin+ 420 842 2391 28jancoskova@martin.skDana Svihlova*Institute for Municipal and Regional DevelopmentRadvanska 9SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica+ 421 88 413 9398svihlova@bb sanet.skDana Svihlova*City Council of NitraStefanokova 60SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica+ 421 87 502 218msunitra@mr.sknet.skSLOVENIAStefanokova 60SK - 95006 Nitra+ 421 87 502 218msunitra@mr.sknet.skSarbara BernardMinistry of EnvironmentVojkova 13SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 178 4423barbara.bernard@gov.siJaniela SabicStatistical Office of SloveniaVozarski Pot 12SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 133 2030sabie@gov.siVan HerzenRegional Institute of Public HealthIpavceva 18SI - Celje+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@ibe siSPAINStatistical Office of SloveniaLepodvorska 31SI - 1101 Ljubljana+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@ibe siSPAINStatistical Statistical Office of SloveniaSpectra Barez *SP - Madrid+ 34 91 411 23 11direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.comSPAINStatistical Statistical Office of SloveniaPo. Box 5807NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk+ 31 70 33 66 783peter davis@marin.nlJNITED KINGDOMTrank Price *Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency2-10 Carbrook Hall RoadUK - S9 2DB Sheffield+ 44 114 273 46 19fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	Daniel Ionescu	Ramnicu Valcea Town Hall	32 Gen. Praporgescu	RO - 1000 Ramnicu Valcea	+ 40 50 73 1020	daniel_ionescu@hotmail.com
Jana Svihlova*Institute for Municipal and Regional DevelopmentRadvanska 9SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica+ 421 88 413 9398svihlova@bb.sanet.skJana Svihlova*City Council of NitraStefanokova 60SK - 95006 Nitra+ 421 87 502 218msunitra@nr.sknet.skSLOVENIABarbara BernardMinistry of EnvironmentVojkova 13SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 178 4423barbara bernard@gov.siDaniela SabicStatistical Office of SloveniaVozarski Pot 12SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 133 2030sabic@gov.siVan HerzenRegional Institute of Public HealthIpavceva 18SI - Celje+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@jub.siVaran Stojic*EkonovaLepodvorska 31SI - 1101 Ljubljana+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@jub.siSP AlaN	<b>SLOVAK REPUBI</b>	JC				
ubos MojzisCity Council of NitraStefanokova 60SK - 95006 Nitra+ 421 87 502 218msunitra@nr.sknet.skSLOVENIABarbara BernardMinistry of EnvironmentVojkova 13SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 178 4423barbara.bernard@gov.siDaniela SabicStatistical Office of SloveniaVozarski Pot 12SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 133 2030sabic@gov.siVan HerzenRegional Institute of Public HealthIpaveeva 18SI - Celje+ 386 61 176 225zoran.stojic@ibe.siVara HerzenRegional Institute of Public HealthIpaveeva 18SI - 1101 Ljubljana+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@ibe.siSPAINExolos Garcia Suarez *Environmental Transport PlanningSP - Madrid+ 34 91 411 23 11direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.comSWITZERLANDJorenz Hilty *University of Applied Sciences North-western SwitzerlandRiggenbachstraße 10CH - 4601 Olten+ 41 62 286 01 32lorenz.hilty@fhso.chNETHERLANDSVeter Davis *MARISP.O. Box 5807NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk+ 31 70 33 66 783peter.davis@maris.nlJNITED KINGDOMTrank Price *Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency2-10 Carbrook Hall RoadUK - S9 2DB Sheffield+ 44 114 273 46 19fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	Andrea Jancoskova	City Hall of Martin	Vajanskeho 1	SK - 036 01 Martin	+ 420 842 2391 28	jancoskova@martin.sk
SLOVENIA         Barbara Bernard       Ministry of Environment       Vojkova 13       SI - 1000 Ljubljana       + 386 61 178 4423       barbara.bernard@gov.si         Daniela Sabie       Statistical Office of Slovenia       Vozarski Pot 12       SI - 1000 Ljubljana       + 386 61 133 2030       sabie@gov.si         Van Herzen       Regional Institute of Public Health       Ipavceva 18       SI - Celje       + 386 61 1776 225       zoran.stojic@ibe.si         Zoran Stojic*       Ekonova       Lepodvorska 31       SI - 1101 Ljubljana       + 386 61 1776 225       zoran.stojic@ibe.si         SPAIN       Surtizera Suarez*       Environmental Transport Planning       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         SWITZERLAND       University of Applied Sciences North-western Switzerland       Riggenbachstraße 10       CH - 4601 Olten       + 41 62 286 01 32       lorenz.hilty@fnso.ch         NETHERLANDS       VOI Box 5807       NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk       + 31 70 33 66 783       peter.davis@maris.nl         UNITED KINGDOM       Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency       2-10 Carbrook Hall Road       UK - 89 2DB Sheffield       + 44 114 273 46 19       fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	Dana Svihlova*	Institute for Municipal and Regional Development	Radvanska 9	SK - 974 05 Banska Bystrica	+ 421 88 413 9398	svihlova@bb.sanet.sk
Barbara BernardMinistry of EnvironmentVojkova 13SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 178 4423barbara.bernard@gov.siDaniela SabicStatistical Office of SloveniaVozarski Pot 12SI - 1000 Ljubljana+ 386 61 133 2030sabic@gov.sivan HerzenRegional Institute of Public HealthIpavceva 18SI - Celje+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@ibe.siZoran Stojic*EkonovaLepodvorska 31SI - 1101 Ljubljana+ 386 61 1776 225zoran.stojic@ibe.siSPAIN	Lubos Mojzis	City Council of Nitra	Stefanokova 60	SK - 95006 Nitra	+ 421 87 502 218	msunitra@nr.sknet.sk
Daniela Sabic       Statistical Office of Slovenia       Vozarski Pot 12       SI - 1000 Ljubljana       + 386 61 133 2030       sabic@gov.si         van Herzen       Regional Institute of Public Health       Ipavceva 18       SI - Celje       + 386 61 133 2030       sabic@gov.si         Coran Stojie*       Ekonova       Lepodvorska 31       SI - 1101 Ljubljana       + 386 61 1776 225       zoran.stojic@ibe.si         SPAIN	SLOVENIA					
Regional Institute of Public Health       Ipavceva 18       SI - Celje       + 386 63 4251 111       Ivan@zzv-ce.si         Aoran Stojic*       Ekonova       Lepodvorska 31       SI - 1101 Ljubljana       + 386 61 1776 225       zoran.stojic@ibe.si         SPAIN       SPAIN       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         Carlos Garcia Suarez *       Environmental Transport Planning       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         SWITZERLAND	Barbara Bernard	Ministry of Environment	Vojkova 13	SI - 1000 Ljubljana	+ 386 61 178 4423	barbara.bernard@gov.si
Coran Stojic*       Ekonova       Lepodvorska 31       SI - 1101 Ljubljana       + 386 61 1776 225       zoran.stojic@ibe.si         SPAIN       SPAIN       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         Carlos Garcia Suarez *       Environmental Transport Planning       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         SWITZERLAND	Daniela Sabic	Statistical Office of Slovenia	Vozarski Pot 12	SI - 1000 Ljubljana	+ 386 61 133 2030	sabic@gov.si
SPAIN         Carlos Garcia Suarez *       Environmental Transport Planning       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         SWITZERLAND       SWITZERLAND	Ivan Herzen	Regional Institute of Public Health	Ipavceva 18	SI - Celje	+ 386 63 4251 111	Ivan@zzv-ce.si
Carlos Garcia Suarez *       Environmental Transport Planning       SP - Madrid       + 34 91 411 23 11       direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com         SWITZERLAND	Zoran Stojic*	Ekonova	Lepodvorska 31	SI - 1101 Ljubljana	+ 386 61 1776 225	zoran.stojic@ibe.si
SWITZERLAND         Lorenz Hilty *       University of Applied Sciences North-western Switzerland       Riggenbachstraße 10       CH - 4601 Olten       + 41 62 286 01 32       lorenz.hilty@fhso.ch         NETHERLANDS         Peter Davis *       MARIS       P.O. Box 5807       NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk       + 31 70 33 66 783       peter.davis@maris.nl         UNITED KINGDOM       UNITED KINGDOM       2-10 Carbrook Hall Road       UK - S9 2DB Sheffield       + 44 114 273 46 19       fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	SPAIN					
Lorenz Hilty *       University of Applied Sciences North-western Switzerland       Riggenbachstraße 10       CH - 4601 Olten       + 41 62 286 01 32       lorenz.hilty@fhso.ch         NETHERLANDS         Peter Davis *       MARIS       P.O. Box 5807       NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk       + 31 70 33 66 783       peter.davis@maris.nl         UNITED KINGDOW         Grank Price *       Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency       2-10 Carbrook Hall Road       UK - S9 2DB Sheffield       + 44 114 273 46 19       fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	Carlos Garcia Suarez *	Environmental Transport Planning		SP - Madrid	+ 34 91 411 23 11	direccion.madrid@grupoenvironment.com
NETHERLANDS         Peter Davis *       MARIS       P.O. Box 5807       NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk       + 31 70 33 66 783       peter.davis@maris.nl         UNITED KINGDOM       Frank Price *       Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency       2-10 Carbrook Hall Road       UK - S9 2DB Sheffield       + 44 114 273 46 19       fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	SWITZERLAND					
Peter Davis *       MARIS       P.O. Box 5807       NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk       + 31 70 33 66 783       peter.davis@maris.nl         UNITED KINGDOM	Lorenz Hilty *	University of Applied Sciences North-western Switzerland	Riggenbachstraße 10	CH - 4601 Olten	+ 41 62 286 01 32	lorenz.hilty@fhso.ch
UNITED KINGDOM Frank Price * Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency 2-10 Carbrook Hall Road UK - S9 2DB Sheffield + 44 114 273 46 19 fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	NETHERLANDS					
Frank Price *       Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency       2-10 Carbrook Hall Road       UK - S9 2DB Sheffield       + 44 114 273 46 19       fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk	Peter Davis *	MARIS	P.O. Box 5807	NL - 2280 HV Rijswijk	+ 31 70 33 66 783	peter.davis@maris.nl
	UNITED KINGDO	Μ				
Nick Hodges * Special Project Officer Env. and Develop. Dept., Leicester City Council York House, 91 Granby Street UK - LEI 6FS Leicester + 44 116 247 05 22 nhodges@lccatc.demon.co.uk	Frank Price *	Corporate Information Services, Environment Agency	2-10 Carbrook Hall Road	UK - S9 2DB Sheffield	+ 44 114 273 46 19	fprice@sheffieldeps.demon.co.uk
	Nick Hodges *	Special Project Officer Env. and Develop. Dept., Leicester City Council	York House, 91 Granby Street	UK - LEI 6FS Leicester	+ 44 116 247 05 22	nhodges@lccatc.demon.co.uk

\* speakers/chair/panelists of the User Forum

128